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Founded in 2001, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (“Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
achieved sound development in the past and has now become a pharmaceutical
corporation with leading capabilities in research and development (“R&D”),
marketing and sales and production. Sihuan Pharmaceutical has been the largest
cardio-cerebral vascular (“CCV”) drug franchise in China’s prescription drug
market since 2007. Its major products such as Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu, Kelinao,
Wei'ao, Yeduojia and Mainokang are widely used in the treatment of various
CCV diseases.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical marked its seventeenth year in 2017. The Group
continued to be the largest CCV prescription drug manufacturer and is the sixth
largest pharmaceutical company in China’s hospital market in terms of hospital
purchase. The Group's current products and R&D pipeline encompass the top
five medical therapeutic areas in China: CCV system, central nervous system,

metabolism, oncology and diabetes.
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2001

° Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan”) was founded.

2002

®  Developed a differentiated marketing and sales model.

2003

®  Exclusive first-to-market generic drug Kelinao was launched.

®  Acquired 28% interest in Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Sihuan”) and expanded the Company’s business into product

manufacturing.

®  Chuanqing was launched.

2004

®  Received a 20-year patent protection in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC” or “China”) for the synthesis process of Kelinao.

2005

®  Hainan Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise”

status.

2006

®  Kelinao was granted “State Torch Programme” status by the Science and
Technology Ministry of the PRC.

®  Acquired the remaining interest in Beijing Sihuan which then became a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
®  Anjieli was launched.

®  Received a 20-year patent protection in the PRC for the improved

production method of Kelinao and Anjieli.

2007

. Sihuan Pharmaceutical was listed on the main board of the SGX-ST on
23 March 2007.

®  The Group has commanded the largest market share of the CCV market

in China.

®  Hainan Sihuan Cardiocerebral Vascular Drugs Research Institute Co.,
Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan CVD Research”) became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.
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2008

Acquired 60% interest in Shandong Xuanzhu Pharma Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Xuanzhu”, “KBP BioSciences”, or known as “KBP
BioSciences Co., Ltd.”) to enhance the Group’s research and development

capabilities of innovative drugs.
GM1 was launched.

Received a 20-year patent protection in the PRC for the invention
and production method of non-solvated cinepazide maleate crystal for

producing Kelinao and Anjieli.

Beijing Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise”
status while Hainan Sihuan successfully had its “High and New

Technology Enterprise” status renewed.

2009

2010

Qingtong was launched.

MSPEA III Cayman invested in the Company. Subsequently the Company
was privatised and delisted from the SGX-ST.

Listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

Ranked No. 4 in the Forbes 2010 list of the most promising enterprises

in the PRC and No. 1 among pharmaceutical companies.

Completed the construction of a pharmaceutical raw material plant,
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Gaobo
Jingband” or formerly known as Langfang Sihuan Gaobo Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.).

Obtained a 30-year exclusive distribution rights of Yimaining.
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Acquired Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”, formerly
known as Dupromise Pharmaceutical (China) Co., Ltd.) which owns three
exclusive drug products and various exclusive drug formulations mainly
focused on CCV diseases.

Acquired 80% interest in Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Changchun Xiangtong”) , which owns both the manufacturing
facility and production license of the GMI injection and API.

Acquired Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sichang”) which
owns four Traditional Chinese Medicine (“TCM”) CCV products with
vast market potential. In the second half of 2011, the Group sold 19%
equity interest in Jilin Sichang to Shandong Buchang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Buchang”), a leader in China’s TCM market, at a
premium. The Group will continue its cooperation with Jilin Sichang to
develop more TCM CCV products.

Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu and Yeduojia were launched.

Jilin Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise”

status.

Langfang Gaobo Jingband was granted the “High and New Technology

Enterprise” status.

Obtained production approval for exclusive first-to-market generic
drug Roxatidine Acetate Hydrochloride for Injection and generic drug

Nalmefene Hydrochloride Injection.
Danshen Chuanxiongqin Injection was launched.

Acquired remaining 40% equity interest in Shandong Xuanzhu which

then became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Established cooperation with NeuroVive Pharmaceutical AB, a company
listed in Sweden, to develop, promote and sell innovative patent drugs,
CicloMulsion® and NeuroSTAT® in China.

MEBEEZREEERA
2017 F E &

o &l



R

Milestones

— —a
—a s
— —a

B 3 ) 2 R A A B 7T R 2 B S
TR B R LA

AR W R AT BT N S BEUR AR R TR MY
i DK ot L R A o R A
i BB ([ RS ) 25 -
JAR 3 e T R R AR TSR A B
EIR ([FDA ) (B GRE -

R4

AR i e 1 T R A A5 95 I FDA B 1 LG
FAHE ([EIR])

1f] 5% B0 FDA NE A 7 52 WR 28 45 J2 00 3 45 i
TR B (T 2L G TR 1) w1 0 | i > ol 2 of
e ARG PR i B -

3B T e L JRE R 6 4 B R 2R S
HERRR BRI

B I R0 DR 81 2 A% 514 B
%Hﬁi?qﬂ gé.%%mnu ii °

B BIREEY R RA SRS R
HRMEEAE

—FR—h4

Wl A ST S R A R A R (T 8t
2 ) 1399 BEHE LV & R AL
FE o

L SR AT SRR SO 4 R (RSO ) %5 %
TRMAEBEmE LS AERE
BFEEHT 4L 06 H 1 2 BRI 3 -

F 3 F 2 1 e R 987 3 25 B R 2 Ry T
FE B A 1A ER PR B ¢ R 15
R4 T ) 1/ 39 A R R e B A A

R 8 A0 ) — LR 1 S 4 7 A
B JE 15 958 il 51 M i 2 B 2 A ) R T
A0 i B ARRE TR I M B R Ul R A B K
R RRZI -

1T 1 ) gﬁiRaQualia Pharma Inc.
(fRaQualiaJ)?ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&%?ﬁ
HE O R AT B TS B A o

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

2013

2014

2015

Obtained clinical trial approval for innovative patent drugs Imiglitin

Dihydrochloride and Anaprazole Sodium.

The application for clinical trial approval of Pirotinib (the first self-
developed oncology drug of the Group) was accepted by China Food and
Drug Administration (“CFDA”).

Langfang Gaobo Jingband passed on-site inspection by the United States
of America (“U.S.A.”) Food and Drug Administration (‘FDA”).

Langfang Gaobo Jingband received the Establishment Inspection Report
(“EIR”) issued by the U.S.A. FDA.

The Investigational New Drug (“IND”) application of Pirotinib was
successfully submitted to the U.S.A. FDA and the clinical trial approval

was granted.

Tylerdipine Hydrochloride (the self-developed innovative antihypertensive

drug) received clinical trial approval.

The application for clinical trial approval of Janagliflozin (the self-

developed innovative anti-diabetic drug) was accepted by CFDA.

Established cooperation with Chongqing Peg-Bio Biotechnology Co., Ltd

for development of Insulin Products.

Acquired 39% interest in Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co. Ltd.

(“Beijing Ruiye”) to enrich and expand the Group’s product resources.

Shandong Xuanzhu and Covance Inc. (“Covance”) signed a long-term
partnership to support the global development of the Group’s drug

candidate pipeline consisting of multiple compounds.

The Phase I clinical trial of Pirotinib, the first self-developed innovative
patented oncology drug commenced in the U.S.A.. CFDA has granted
full approval of Phase I/IVIII clinical trials of Pirotinib.

The Investigational New Drug applications for clinical trial approval
for two innovative patent drugs, Sirotinib (antoher oncology drug) and
Fadanafil (clinically to treat BPH, ED), were officially accepted by the
CFDA.

Shandong Xuanzhu and RaQualia Pharma Inc. (“RaQualia”), entered into
a research collaboration agreement in novel analgesic drugs development

and ionchannel technology.
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J CFDA granted approval for clinical trials of internally developed diabetes

treatment new drug Janagliflozin.

U CFDA granted approval for Phase II/III clinical trials of Imigliptin

Dihydrochloride, an internally developed innovative patent drug.

o Shanghai LIDE Biotech Co., Ltd., an equity participation investment,
successfully listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations

System.

U CFDA granted approval for Phase I/II/III clinical trials of internally

developed innovative patent new drugs - Fadanafil.

2017

. Acquired 100% interest in Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Company Limited
(“Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)”) which currently holds the drug production
approvals of Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate and Cysteine and Sodium
Chloride Injection and Floium Ginkgo Extract with the brand name “Huineng”
and Tertram Ethypyrazine Sodium Chloride Injection with the brand name

“Mainokang”.

o Established joint venture company (“JV")with Austria-based pharmaceutical
company CROMA-Pharma GmbH (“Croma-Pharma”), expanding into the

aesthetic medicine market in China.

. CFDA granted approval of Phase I-III clinical trials for Birociclib, an internally

developed innovative patented new drug.

o Set up the United States Research and Development Centre (“U.S. R&D Centre” or
the “Centre”) in the San Francisco Bay Area in California of the United States (the
“U.S."). The Centre focuses on developing more innovative shall molecule and large

molecule drugs, especially first-in-class immunotherapy.

° The Group invests in PharmaDax (FoShan) Co., Ltd (“PharmaDax Foshan”) in
phases and will hold a maximum of 51% equity interests in PharmaDax Foshan
in aggregate. The PharmaDax Foshan owns advanced drug production technique
and normative drug quality control system that meets the United States (the “US”)
Food and Drug Administration (‘FDA”) requirements. New Drug Application of
its US-FDA-approved products such as the Quetiapine Fumarate ER Tablet (anti-
pyschotic) have been submitted to the CFDA.
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2017 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Below are the financial highlights for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year” or “Reporting Period”):

Revenue of the Group decreased by 13.8% from RMB3,185.7 million to
RMB2,745.8 million in 2017.

JG °
o T LAERNFEEA AL A D ®  Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 15.2% to
15.2% ENRM1,448.9 A E L © RMB1,448.9 million in 2017.

o X LEGEIEARBIE - ANE °
WD#8.9% BHNRME 15357

o EHREEHERLIREANE SR LT y
TN R 1320 o M AR A 2 R EOR
(T 1) S o 4% BR AT O OB 4F K &

Basic earnings per share decreased by approximately 8.9% over 2016 to
approximately RMB15.3 cents in 2017.

The Board recommends the declaration and payment of a final cash
dividend of RMB1.3 cents per share which is subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)at the forthcoming

A annual general meeting.
SRR CR-NE CE-RF CRRF ZE-tE
AREF RMB' 000 213 2014 2015 2016 217
(&it)
(Restated)

e Operating results
it Revenue 2586402 3084236 3167211 3185699 2,745,809
Bl Gross profic 1455460 2111422 2228054 2188946 1,986,853
REh Operating profit 1497,142 1979088 2,808,998 2,131,156 1,688,256
B B e BL i 1 Profit before income tax 1,602,624 2073423 2841746 2,152,570 1,729,075
LY U Profit for the year attributable to
TG A A owners of the Company 1284882 1671281 2062378 1708239 1448935
Gl ES Profitability
ER Ik Gross margin 56.3% 08.5% 70.3% 68.7% 72.4%
Aiflz Net profit margin 50.0% 54.6% 04.6% 52.7% 53.9%
BREA Earning per share
BEREE AR Basic and diluted (RMB cents) 124 16.1 19.9 168 153
BRI Asset status
g Total assets 10,097,075 11,322,985 12,321,007 12,187,604 13,591,863
LN 28 2PN 3 4 Equity attributable to equity

owners of the Company 7821459 9291677 11,095,639 10,901,438 11,056,992
BALK Total liabilities 2160131 1916970 1,129275 1216511 2,225,793
R REREEN Cash and cash equivalents 1593503 1317945 2282370 2407073 831,859
HER ) Quick ratio (£imes) 3 3 6 5 2
RELRE) Current ratio (zimes) 3 3 6 5 3
FEmE () Inventory turnover ratio (days) 31 52 79 78 102
B m IR R ) Trade receivables turnover ratio (clays) 102 82 60 63 69
BH AR R ) Trade payables turnover ratio (days) 11 13 2 40 4

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2017, more reformative policies have been introduced with the aim of
encouraging innovation, controlling medical expenditure and reducing
regulatory burden on the pharmaceutical industry. The breadth of these reforms
spans from drug development, marketing to clinical usage. The significance of
these reforms is substantial for all pharmaceutical companies. During the year,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical dedicated its efforts in the advancement of its product
resources and marketing capabilities. Although the sales performance of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical has been adversely impacted by unfavourable policies over the
short term, the Group has effectively strengthened its fundamentals to steer

long-term growth.

In terms of product resources, the Group has established a strong product
pipeline of innovative and generic drugs, by means of in-house R&D,
international cooperation and merger and acquisition (“M&A”). For its in-
house R&D, the Group aims to take advantage of policies supporting scientific
innovation by speeding up the examination and approval of urgently needed
drugs and medical devices. To that end, the Group set to allocate resources to
its R&D projects in accordance to their potential clinical needs, competitive
landscape, and technical barriers. The Group's efforts are demonstrated in the
sound progress of its innovative projects Birociclib and Janagliflozin, which
are expected to commence phase III clinical trial in the second half of 2019
and enter the market in 2021. For its generic drug development, in addition
to Metfrmin hydrochloride tablet becoming the first in the industry to pass BE
test and complete submission, the Group has scheduled the launch of a number
of new products in the coming few years, and is expecting clinical trial approval

of certain biological drugs in the near future.

The Group continued its efforts in international cooperation and M&A. The
Group made great strides with its progress of internationalization, by the
establishment of the U.S. R&D Centre and investment in PharmaDax Foshan,
accelerating commercialization of its innovative drugs through simultaneous
applications to U.S. FDA and the CFDA. The Group expanded its product
offerings to the aesthetic medicine field through the joint venture with Austria-
based pharmaceutical company Croma-Pharma GmbH. In addition, the Group
obtained two non-CCV products through the share acquisition in Ambest
Pharmaceutical (China) and they have already become important revenue

contributors.
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The strengthening of marketing capabilities was another focus of the Group
in 2017. For its key products, the Group strived to explore untapped potential
in lower-end markets to where the government has been directing more
resources to develop. Also, the Group improved recognition of efficacies of its
key products by intensified national academic promotions, inclusion in official
clinical pathways, and re-evaluations. For its growth-stage products, the Group
dedicated its efforts in winning tenders and product inclusion in provincial

RDLs, which led to significant growth of those products during the Year.

The reformative measures have led to industry consolidation and presented
pharmaceutical companies with a combination of challenges and opportunities.
We believe that the efforts we made in 2017 have laid a concrete foundation for
sustainable development. In the future, the Group will continue its efforts to
enrich its products resources through in-house R&D, M&A and international
cooperation, while deploying effective marketing strategies for its key and
growth-stage products. With a clear product pipeline and strong marketing
capabilities, we possess the advantages to compete and win in the market.
Although difficulties may persist in the near future, we are confident that we are

on the right path to yet another stage of growth.

Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

26 March 2018
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting period
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

Publication cycle

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

Holdings Group Ltd. is an annual report and published on an annual basis

Scope of report

Unless specified otherwise, the report covers the head office of Sihuan

Pharmaceutical Group and its subsidiaries, including:

Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Sihuan”), Jilin Sichang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sichang”), Langfang Gaobojingbang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Gaobang”), Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”), Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Benxi
Hengkang”), Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Changchun
Xiangtong”), Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Led. (“Jilin Zhen'ao”), Jilin
Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Co., Led. (“Jilin Aokang”), Jilin Jinsheng
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Jinsheng”), Honghe Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Honghe Pharmaceutical”), Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Sihuan”), Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Tonghua Jida"),
Beijing Aohe Pharmaceutical Research Institute (“Beijing Aohe”) and Shandong
Xuanzhu Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Xuanzhu”)

Basis of preparation

This report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guidelines” (“Guidelines”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and with reference to the G4 Sustainability Guidelines
of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and ISO 26000 Guidance on Social
Responsibility
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Reference

In this report, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. is referred to as

“Sihuan Pharmaceutical”, the “Group”, the “Company” or “we” for convenience

Information

All historical information quoted in this report is the final statistics. If there
is any inconsistency between the financial information contained herein and
those contained in the Annual Report, the latter shall prevail. Unless specified

otherwise, all information in this report is denominated in RMB

Availability

This report is available in English and Chinese on:
the website of Hong Kong Exchange at http://sc.hkex.com.hk, and

the website of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. at http://www.

sihuanpharm.com.cn

1  RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE

Sihuan Pharmaceutical is committed to embedding our environmental
and social commitments in our development strategy. We aim to establish
a robust environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) system, focus our
communications with stakeholders, identify and optimize material ESG
issues, strengthen our corporate governance, and consistently reinforce
our compliance system, so as to effectively perform our economic, social

and environmental responsibilities at all levels in the course of operation.
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1.1

Corporate governance

Sihuan Pharmaceutical complies with all relevant laws and
regulations, continues to enhance the system development and
supervision for compliance, anti-corruption and integrity, with
well-established compliance systems and procedures to prevent
corruption risks including commercial bribery, providing solid

support for our corporate governance and long-term development.

In light of the special nature of the industry, the Company has
established the Compliance Management Regulation of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group for all employees, which sets
out the operational standards and procedures for all business
processes including business activities, marketing, expert
services, information confidentiality, payment, sponsorship and
donations, complaints and whistle blowing. To enhance the
Group’s compliance requirements, employees in departments
exposed to higher corruption risks, such as sales, procurement,
engineering, research and development are required to sign a
Compliance Undertaking Letter. Moreover, we drive the integrity
and compliance governance of external partners by requiring
upstream suppliers to sign an Integrity Partnership Agreement and
downstream distributors to sign a Compliance Undertaking Letter,

which prohibits all forms of commercial bribery.

The Company has established and published a compliant and
whistle blowing system, which sets out the scope, channels,
acceptance approach and principle of confidentiality concerning
complaints and reports, and is communicated internally and
to our partners consistently. Our compliance department will
conduct independent investigation into complaints and reports
made by employees at all levels or external partners, and issue an
investigation report to the management. Disciplinary or relevant
actions will be taken against responsible person(s) once the

allegation is substantiated.

During 2017, the Company conducted 12 sessions of training and
communication on our compliance system with a coverage ratio of

100%, and there were no litigations involving alleged corruption.
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1.2

ESG system

Sihuan Pharmaceutical considers ESG issues as an important
part of our risk management. The Board has established an
ESG management system on the basis of the group-wide risk
management framework. The Group has set up a Risk Management
Committee which is composed of members of the Board and
various departmental leaders and responsible for establishing
the ESG development strategies of the Group, in addition to
monitoring our risk management and internal control systems.
The Risk Management Committee held regular meetings to guide

relevant ESG works of the Company.

The Group requested its subsidiaries to establish environmental,
safety and health task force and appoint professionals to evaluate
and improve the environmental, safety and health conditions of the
Company, ensuring that all subsidiaries meet the environmental,
safety and health standards set by the Company, in addition to

compliance requirements.
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1.3 Materiality analysis

requirements.

WK

Expectations and requirements

B R AR BUR KRR

(A 7 A B T

BB

LRIEE

Strict compliance with national policies and laws and
regulations

Support local economic growth

Drive local employment and ensure production safety

Wi i 5] 8¢
ARER

Returns

Compliant operation

kB

WERE

R i BB
TR

Performance of contracts
Operate with integrity
Quality products and services

Drive the industry to develop

AR

Ak

Rk

Compliant emission

Energy saving and reduce emission

Protect the ecosystem

Sihuan Pharmaceutical highly valued the communications with
stakeholders, and works to promote the Group’s philosophy and
practices in ESG and understand the needs of stakeholders through

various channels, addressing their reasonable expectations and

{8 1y 5

Means of communication and response

i
EERE
BUREW
REEA
Filings
Suggestions
Dedicated reports

Examinations and inspections

/\‘J/\H:

L
| BlE
Announcements
Dedicated reports

Site visits

Fips i

F R
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mkafE

Business communications
Customer feedback
Exchanges and discussions

Engagement and cooperation

TAEREHR
AR
IR A
Work briefing
Reporting

Investigations and inspections
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Means of communication and response
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Employees Protection of rights Staff representative meetings

Occupational health Collective negotiations

Remunerations and benefits Democratic communication platform

Career development
AR R B B Akt

SR 5% AR

Hall A Y] BRI
Community and the public Improve community environment Company website

Participation in charity Announcements

Transparency Interviews
B AR T B B [ E R > ACS To enhance the relevance and responsiveness of this report, the
T 7 MR I 4 32 5 B A PR S 7 Company has identified our ESG issues and recognized material
(B335 - B BRI R A issues pursuant to the Guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited and the G4 Sustainability Guidelines of the GRI,

ensuring that information disclosed in the report full covers the
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Company’s development and key issues of concern to stakeholders.
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BREE ~ Moy RGO R AR Screening process for ESG issues
RIE -HEREAREGERRE Screening process for ESG issues
[ ] SRERR Source of issues
- TV R - Suggestions from company management
- INAMISE R A BT ek - Suggestions from internal and external expert analysis
- IRBE R b - Analysis of media information
- B SN ZE ST 5T - Benchmarking with peers home and abroad
A E AR - Social responsibility standards guidelines
R Screening criteria
- B AR A E R - Contribution to sustainable development
- A g A B 5 B - General concern to stakeholders
BB R R R Emphasis of social responsibility guidelines
- P F O R B - Alignment to the Company’s needs for strategic development
BAMBEHELER Results of materiality analysis
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In 2017, Sihuan Pharmaceutical determined its material issues to be:

ESG materiality issue matrix of Sichuan Pharmaceutical

High‘

Compliant operation
(]
(]
Product quality
Research &
. development
Supplier Customer and innovation
management services ()
(] (]
Occupational
health and Safe
manag.ement manufacturing
2 Use andt ; Employee training ¢
b5) management o and development
= packaging materials WESDETTSY P
= ® treatment
< [
S o et Hazardous
& esources protection ® substance
= and recycle Emission ® management
= L4 management  Green
- manufacturing
s .
e Solid waste E
3 management Nergy
= Support local consumption
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Importance to sustainable growth of Sichuan Pharmaceutical
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RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION

Research & development and innovation represent the core

competitiveness for a company’s sustainable growth. For pharmaceutical

companies, products with proprietary intellectual property are not only

strategic resources for comprehensive strength, but also important tools

to perform social responsibility. Sihuan Pharmaceutical focuses on the

research and development of both first generic drugs and innovative

drugs. We work actively to meet unsatisfied medical needs by sticking to

a market-oriented approach and continuously improving the effectiveness

and ease of use of our drugs, supported by a well-designed system for

intellectual property management.

2.1

Support for innovation

The Company has established, among others, the Rules on
Patent Management of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Group in strict
compliance with laws and regulations including the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China and with reference to the actual
situation. On this basis, Sihuan Pharmaceutical has set up a
system for intellectual property management, which standardizes
various activities in managing our intellectual properties in respect
of confidentiality, risk control, dispute resolution, access, due
diligence, implementation, licensing and transfer, maintenance,
information management, and valuation, ensuring sustainable
research and development with a comprehensive patent portfolio.
The intellectual property management system developed by
the innovative drug research and development team of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical was certified for meeting national standards
for intellectual property in 2016 and the team received the

qualification notice on third party supervision and review in 2017.
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In 2017, the Group set up the Intellectual Property Department,
which is responsible for collectively handling intellectual property
matters and controlling associated risks under the direct leadership
of the Chairman. As the division dedicated for managing
intellectual property, the Intellectual Property Department is
in charge of the management, operation, maintenance, review
and coordination concerning intellectual properties. Subsidiaries
focusing on research and development have each set up a patent
department, while subsidiaries focusing on manufacturing and
sales have each appointed an intellectual property officer and
contact person for executing the Group’s planning for works
related to intellectual properties, as well as managing and
operating their intellectual properties. Meanwhile, to effectively
drive the alignment of the intellectual property strategy with its
operation strategy, the Group has included its intellectual property
such as trademarks, technical know-how and copyrights in the area
of management and operation, while embedding the review and
approval process for intellectual property management in its OA
system, which enables the centralized management and effective

approval of intellectual property matters across the Group.
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2.2

Research and development progress

Supported by the Group’s systems, the Company continues
to develop and launch products with proprietary intellectual
properties by leveraging on advanced scientific equipment and a
highly capable research and development team. In 2017, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical actively built on its research and development
platform. On one hand, we set up a research and development
center for innovative drugs in the San Francisco Bay Area, United
States (the “U.S. R&D Center”), which focuses on developing
more innovative small molecule drugs and large molecule drugs,
especially world-first drugs for tumor immnuotherapy, so as to
further enhance its research and development capabilities. On
the other hand, we acquired PharmaDax (FoShan) Co., Ltd, and
since it has sophisticated drug manufacturing technologies and an
FDA-compliant management system for manufacturing quality,
thus allowing the simultaneous launch of drugs manufactured by
it to the markets in both China and the U.S., while significantly

accelerating the development of generic drugs.

2017 R&D Progress Related Data of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

RTH5 MEEPH R T -
31
28
Patent Patent
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Research and development of innovative drugs

The Group’s research and development of innovative
drugs are focused on major diseases, such as diabetes,
cancer and so on. The first human trial in 2017 was a new
antidiabetic drug. Furthermore, the innovative patent
medicine PiRossini, researched and developed independently
by the Company, won Phase I-III clinical trial approvals
which are drug intends for the treatment of breast cancer
and malignant brain tumors. As of the reporting period,
there is no similar drugs listed in China. In 2017, our
innovative drug research and development team completed
on an application of Type 1 medicine clinical approval,
3 supplement applications of Type 1 medicine Phase II/
II, and as of the end of the reporting period, a total of 13
clinical approval applications were completed, of which 11
clinical approvals are obtained. At the same time, the team
has launched a number of exploratory research projects this
year, and more than 10 projects with potential research
and development value are being investigated, providing
guarantee for the Group's product lines in the next few years.
In 2017, the innovative drug research and development
team applied for 10 major new drug innovation technology
projects and 2 major new drug research and development
projects to Beijing Municipal Science and Technology
Commission, and 9 projects were funded by the state and

government which subsidized nearly RMB20 million.
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Research and development of generic drugs

The Group’s research and development of generic drugs are
focused on major therapy areas including cardiovascular,
central nervous system and tumors. Based on analysis of
overseas new products, imported drugs and best-selling
generic drugs, we made bold innovation to develop patented
high-tech products as our distinctive leading products.
During 2017, the generic drug research and development
team obtained approvals for 15 Investigational New Drug
Applications, including 14 for Category 3 chemical drugs,
completed the clinical tests for 6 drugs and submitted
manufacturing applications for 7 drugs. For drugs requiring
manufacturing application only and not subject to clinical
test, none of the 19 samples submitted for examination
had been rejected during the reporting period despite more

stringent regulation on China’s pharmaceutical market.

As a key part of quality assurance of generic drugs,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical attaches great importance to and
actively drives the consistency evaluation. According to
national requirements for the consistency evaluation of
generic drugs in solid dosage form, we have conducted
consistency evaluation of Metformin Hydrochloride
Tablets, Azithromycin Capsules and Oxcarbazepine Tablets
and at the end of the reporting period, we completed
the pharmaceutical and in-vivo bioequivalence study
of Metformin Hydrochloride Tablets, making us the
first company to complete the consistency evaluation of
Metformin Hydrochloride Tablets in China.
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2.3

. Patents

Sihuan Pharmaceutical is in a leading position within the
pharmaceutical sector in China in terms of patent quantity
and quality. In 2017, the Group submitted 31 new patent
applications with 28 applications authorized in total. As of
the end of the reporting period, the Group had submitted
some 710 patent applications with 250 patents validly
authorized and maintained by the State Intellectual Property
Office and some 50 valid patents in other countries or

territories.

Promotion of industrial development

Sihuan Pharmaceutical values cooperation and exchange in respect
of research and development resources within the industry, and
continues to elevate the scale and level of cooperation, providing
steady and effective support for innovation. Among the National
Science and Technology Major Projects applied for in 2017,
Project XZP-3990 was applied for jointly with the Pharmaceutical
Biotechnology Research Institute of the Chinese Academy of
Medical Sciences & Pecking Union Medical College, and Project
XZP-3287 was applied for jointly with the Chinese Academy
of Sciences Shanghai Institute of Materia Medica, both being
examples of such cooperation. Besides, we keep ourselves abreast
of the development of cutting-edge technologies home and abroad
and have developed long-term partnership with many outstanding
research institutes within and outside of China with a view to
complementing the advantages of each other and jointly promoting
pharmaceutical innovation and development. Since 2015, we have
been closely working with Japan-based RaQualia on preliminary

research and development in the area of pain indications, enabling
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fast and efficient evaluation and screening of pharmacodynamics in
vitro and in vivo. We have now obtained valuable chemicals with
active pharmacodynamics in vivo. In China, we carry out research
and drug development activities with famous universities and
research institutes, such as the Center for Drug Molecule Design
and Biological Super Computer of the School of Pharmaceutical
Sciences, Sun Yat-sen University, the Department of Immunology,
School of Basic Medical Sciences, Pecking University, the National
Center for Pharmaceutical Screening, Institute of Materia Medica,
Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences, the National Engineering
Research Center for Industrial Crystallization Technology, School
of Chemical Engineering and Technology, Tianjin University,
and the Institute of Clinical Pharmacology, First Hospital of
Peking University, and the Huashan Hospital of Fudan University,

making great achievements.

OPERATION MANAGEMENT

Superior product quality, efficient customer services, and responsible

material procurement have always been Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s

requirements for itself and commitment to the society throughout its

development and operation for years. In this regard, we have established

a comprehensive management system to facilitate the sustainable growth

of the Company through consistent implementation and improvement

thereof. We also strive for the development of the pharmaceutical

industry as a whole.

3.1

Quality assurance

Sihuan Pharmaceutical recognizes that an effective quality
management system is crucial to ensuring product quality and
safeguarding the reputation and achievements of the Group. The
production process of the Group is in line with the standards of
the pharmaceutical Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP). We
have set up advanced systems for product quality control and
pharmacovigilance to secure the control over product quality from
research and development, manufacturing to point of sales, and
committed to ensure that products consistently meet the highest

industry standards and requirements.
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Quality management system

The Group has set up a quality management system pursuant
to the standards contained in GB/T 19001-2016 IDT ISO
9001:2015 Quality Management System - Requirements
and in light of the actual situation. We obtained the
ISO9001 Quality Management System certificate in 2016,
and successfully passed the accreditation and re-certification
for ISO9001 Quality Management System in August 2017.
The Quality Management Manual is the core of the Group’s
quality management system, which is supported by various
procedural documents and other supporting documents and
records, providing systematic guidance for the head office
and subsidiaries of the Group to establish, implement,
maintain and improve the quality management system.
We perform internal audit and management review of our
quality management system each year according to the
Internal Audit Administration Procedures and Management
Review Administration Procedures, as well as sampling
examination of system implementation in each department
on a quarterly basis. In 2017, the Group conducted sudden
inspections of three manufacturing subsidiaries, including
quality audits on production site management, information
reliability management, people training, plant and facilities
management, quality control and quality assurance

management, confirmation and verification management.
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Production quality control

On the basis of strict compliance with standard operational
procedures and equipment operating procedutres, the Group
closely monitors and manages all steps of the production
process to ensure it is in line with the Group’s quality
standards. Any abnormality found will be rectified and
recorded immediately. All production facilities of the Group
are GMP certified by China Food and Drug Administration.
The Group continues to closely manage its quality
assurance and control procedures, while requiring third
party manufacturers to comply with its quality and good

manufacturing practice standards.

Quality control of finished products

Each batch of the Group’s finished products is subject
to strict sampling examination before being sent to
distributors. Following the examination, a report is issued on
the relevant finished products, and only those having passed
will be transported to the warehouse. It is the Group’s policy
to destroy any sub-standard batch of finished products. Use
of materials, production process, production control and
batch records are audited and a product approval certificate
is issued in the absence of any finding. The warehouse will
release the products only upon receipt of both the finished

product report and the product approval certificate.
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U Pharmacovigilance system

Sihuan Pharmaceutical has established a pharmacovigilance
system and the Administrative Provisions on Evaluation
and Control of Drug Safety in accordance with the
Administrative Measures for Adverse Drug Reaction
Reporting and Monitoring (Order of Ministry of Health
No. 81) and the Guide on Examination of Adverse Drug
Reaction Reporting and Monitoring (Ttial), to manage and
supervise the adverse drug reaction reporting and monitoring
across all manufacturing subsidiaries. All employees have
to perform adverse drug reaction reporting and monitoring

activities under the pharmacovigilance system.

3.2 Customer service

We pay particular attention to customer feedback and opinions
on our products and services, and improve their satisfaction by
understanding their needs via smooth communication, helping
them deal with various issues arising from the sales process and

protecting their privacy effectively.
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Customer complaints and feedback

We receive feedbacks and complaints on the Group’s product
quality from distributors, hospitals, medical institutions and
end customers seriously. We have formulated the Complaint
Handling Process of Adverse Drug Events, under which
a complaint received will be recorded in detail, classified
and then referred to relevant department for follow-up
actions. For a clinical adverse event, we will look into the
cause, ask pharmaceutical experts to make professional
evaluation, make a conclusion based on comprehensive
analysis, and then reply to the complainant. Meanwhile, we
will also report the adverse event to the National Adverse
Drug Reaction Monitoring System on time pursuant to the

relevant regulations and for filling within the Group.

All manufacturing enterprises within the Group have
formulated the Drug Recall Administration standard
operational practice according to the Drug Production
Quality Management Regulation and Drug Recall
Administration Measures, covering detailed operational
rules concerning the identification, investigation and
evaluation of potential drug dangers, implementation of
drug recalls, disposal of recalled drugs, recall tracking, filing
of recall drug information, corrective and preventive actions
and analogical recalls. The enforceability of recall process is
ensured by clearly setting out specific roles, activities and
deadlines for each department to ensure public medication

safety. During 2017, there were no major product recalls.
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Providing quality services

We provide customers with one-stop management services.
Enquiries and issues raised by customers will be handled by
the first receiver who is solely responsible for follow-up. To
improve customer satisfaction, the Customer Script Manual
has been compiled as a useful tool for day-to-day works.
We continue to engage with customers over telephone on
a regular basis for feedback on sales volume based on sale
and purchase contracts with them. At the same time, a
dedicated shipment assistant is assigned to each customer
and is responsible for timely notification to the customer
on waybill numbers of goods and sales invoices, reminding
the customer to refill stocks to prevent shortage before
public holidays, and tracking business filings by companies
regularly, giving one month prior notice to the customer on

expiring materials via telephone.

Protecting customer privacy

We lay emphasis on protection of customer privacy.
Customer information and shipment details in the
Company’s day-to-day operation are stored on the Enterprise
Resources Planning system, with strict control over its
user access. Before joining the Company, each employee
is required to sign a non-disclosure agreement, and staff
in customer service center are also required to sign a price
confidentiality document. All work-related communications
are required to be made on internal system. Any employee
leaving the Company must log off his or her email and
system account with department directory updated, and
relevant departments are notified to update and share the

information.
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3.3 Supply chain management

The Group has formulated the Supplier Management Protocol
(Trial) for the centralized category and grade-based management
of suppliers and identification of quality risks caused by materials.

Suppliers are managed with different reward and penalty policies

on their grades assigned in accordance with the results of

regular assessments and evaluations. Meanwhile, we also focus on
the management of downstream sales system and distributors,
enhancing their managerial and professional capabilities with a

robust training system.

Supplier admission and assessment

The Supplier Management Protocol sets out specific
provisions on the supplier admission process and supplier
assessment and evaluation to ensure a fair and just process
for supplier selection. All procurement processes of the
Group are required to be supervised by two people who
will supervise each other. A dedicated supplier survey team
has been set up to evaluate suppliers through field visits
and qualification review. The Group conducts day-to-
day management and annual audits on qualified suppliers,
ensuring they supply stable and quality products and

services.

Number of suppliers to Sihuan Pharmaceutical by region
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Green supply chain

The Group proactively engages upstream and downstream
businesses in practicing green sustainable growth together.
We specifically require in our procurement contracts that
products provided by suppliers must comply with relevant
environmental laws and regulations, as well as national and
industrial standards. In day-to-day procurement, we will
take into consideration the impact of policies made by the
Chinese government of the production of our suppliers,
avoiding to work with risky suppliers. In the process
of tender evaluation and determination, in addition to
comparing technical solutions offered by suppliers, we will
consider environmental protection and employee health and
safety as separate grading criteria and prefer suppliers with
better performance in environmental protection, health and

safety.

Sales system training

In 2017, the Group provided trainings in light of key issues
and needs for improvement identified for distributors and
employees within internal marketing system. We conducted
targeted training sessions for more than 500 sales persons
at various levels with different needs through 14 thematic
programs on communication skills, objection handling,
leadership integration project, regional business planning,
and clinical Q&A. To expand the training coverage and
improve training efficiency, training materials in various
forms like Q&A manuals, H5, video courseware have been
prepared to provide convenience to marketing persons and

distributors.
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SAFE MANUFACTURING

The Group has established a robust production safety management

system and has formulated the Environmental, Health and Safety

Policies. Dedicated departments and persons are appointed for

environmental, health and safety management, setting up a group-wide

accountability system for each and every employee to meet its obligations

for production safety in terms of targeted duties, system development,

education, training, site safety management, hazard inspection and

rectification, emergency management, accident management and ongoing

improvement. Throughout 2017, there was no employee injury or death

across the Group.

4.1

Safety education and training

Safety education and training are a crucial part of the initiatives to
raise safety awareness among employees and foster internal safety
culture. The Group has established a three-level safety training
system and developed materials for three-level safety training
pursuant to the Provisions on Safety Training of Manufacturing
and Operating Entities (State Administration of Work Safety
Order No. 80). In 2017, the Group fully rolled out the three-
level safety training education to new joiners, and provided safety
training at company, department and position levels to current
employees who have not received the three-level safety training.
As a research and development company, Beijing Aohe provided
detailed explanations and training to employees on safety risks that
may arise from the process of research and development, including
personal protective equipment, use of flammable and explosive
chemicals and volatile solvents, treatment of waste liquid, use of
instruments and protective equipment, use of hazardous chemicals

and treatment of intoxication, fire and chemical burns.
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4.2

Risk prevention and control

The Group places emphasis on the prevention and control of
potential risks in production and operation to ensure safety in
production, research and development with a range of measures.
In 2017, we established and updated the three-level production
safety standard system and continued to implement the system
of examination and rectification of accidents and dangers. We
have established and improved the accountability system of
environmental protection, health and production safety, safety
training management, production safety examination, system of
examination and rectification of accidents and dangers, dangerous
operation management, production safety commitment, fire safety
management, related parties management and other systems
and relevant emergency planning. By refining the SOP of all
emergency planning, we have effectively accelerated our reaction
on production safety accidents and environmental emergencies,
enhanced our ability to handle accidents and emergencies, which
helps protect employee safety and the Group against financial loss,

environmental damages and negative social impact.

Besides, the Group continues to carry out renewal of fire equipment
and fire safety supervision and inspection, significantly reducing
fire hazards. To enhance the fire safety skills and awareness of
employees, we conduct regular fire safety training, fire-fighting
practices and fire drills to equip employees with basis knowledge

on fire safety and use of fire-fighting equipment.

During the Year, the head office and subsidiaries in Beijing
of Sihuan Pharmaceutical set up a campus production safety
committee, responsible for coordination of production safety works
across all entities within the Beijing campus, as well as special
inspection on fire safety, security and environmental protection
within the campus on a monthly basis. Beijing Sihuan performed
throughout examination and rectification of flammable and
explosive sources of danger. Jilin Sihuan established a micro fire
station and a system of two people rotating on two shifts for the
control room, while introducing a specialist company to test and

assess its fire safety facilities and management works.
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Occupational health and protection

The Group strictly complies with various safety laws and
regulations of China, and management system in place including
the Environmental, Health and Safety Policies, to improve the
management system of occupational disease prevention and
treatment, SOP of occupational hygiene management, and
relevant job-specific operational practices for occupational hygiene.
Employee health and safety are secured with robust systems and
suitable personal protective equipment. In light of the special
nature of pharmaceutical companies, the Group embarked on and
completed the development of occupational hygienic infrastructures
in 2017 to further promote the occupational health of employees.
Besides, Beijing Aohe commissioned a third-party specialist
company to examine the hazards at research and development sites
and further optimized occupation hygienic measures based on the
results. Beijing Sihuan invited a third-party specialist company
to evaluate the effectiveness of controls over occupational disease
hazards and inspected and accepted the occupational disease
prevention facilities under on-site expert assessment. Throughout
2017, there was no employee injury or death across the Group, and

we recorded a voluntary employee medical check ratio of 100%.

Process of occupational disease prevention and control of employees of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
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ENERGY SAVING AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical strives for environmental protection and pollution
prevention and control in strict compliance with national laws and
regulations and industrial standards. Based on the Environmental, Health
and Safety Policies, the Group further improved various management
systems like the Environmental Protection Management of the Company,
Environmental Protection Equipment Management, Waste Water, Waste
Gas and Solid Waste Management, Hazardous Waste Management and
Plan for Environmental Emergencies, to provide for works on waste water
treatment, boiler exhaust emission, and hazardous waste management,

among others.

5.1 Clean production

The Group promotes green and clean manufacturing and works
to embed sustainable growth in all steps of production. In
2017, the Group focused more on environmental protection by
introducing the Lean Production Management Protocol of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group and set up an implementation
team and an evaluation team for lean production, and enhancing
employee awareness of saving resources and building an
environment-friendly company through the implementation and

promotion of lean production projects.

Although our production process is not an activity with high
energy consumption, we continue to launch new energy saving
initiatives by studying the sources of energy consumption.
In 2017, we carried out a number of system transformations,
including pipeline transformation for recycling residual heat from
steam or high temperature condensed water to the heating system,
replacement of lighting system in production workshops with LED
bulbs, and technical energy-saving alterations to some equipment.
We also saved energy in operation and management by managing

use of air conditioners and timely notice to turn off the power.
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We increased the water efficiency in our processes by maximizing
the use of recycled water. In 2017, the Group implemented a
project for optimizing the cooling water recycle system, further
improving the recycling ratio of cooling water. In our large volume
injection workshop, the bottle washing process is composed of two
steps, namely gross rinse with purified water and fine rinse with
injection water. The quality of injection water after fine rinse is
as good as the purified water used for gross rinse. As such, water
discharged from the fine rinse machine will be recycled to reduce

the use of purified water.

We also reuse recyclable materials. Excessive penicillin bottles,
rubber plugs and aluminum-plastic covers from production
workshops are reused in the experiment of medium simulation
embedment. In 2017, we found that the time limit of high
temperature endurance of ampoule bottles is 2 hours and therefore
recycled ampoule bottles enduring high temperature for 1 hour in

total.

Table: Resources used by Sihuan Pharmaceutical in 2017

Figure
Resources usage g7
Comprehensive energy consumption 24,502.9

(tons of standard coal equivalent)

Carbon dioxide emission equivalent (tons) 106,022.9
Total power consumption (Kw/h) 28,166,302.4
Total coal consumption (tons) 24,306.2
Total petrol consumption (liters) 196,563.7
Total diesel consumption (liters) 12,556.9
Total gas consumption (cubic meters) 2,407,195.5
Total water usage (tons) 773,748.2
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5.2

Emission management

We strictly prohibit any excessive emission. Waste gas, waste
water and solid wastes arising from the Group’s production and
operation are discharged in compliance with relevant national and
local regulation. Subject to compliance, the Group actively explores
mitigating measures and practices to minimize pollutant emission

impacting the environment.

J Reduced emission of waste gas

Factories under the Group are encouraged to transform
their boiler exhaust treatment device to create more
environmental benefits. Factories in Jilin built a sodium
alkali desulphurization and dust removal device, which
can reduce emission of pollutants such as dusts and sulfur
dioxide. Besides, in response to stricter control over VOCs
emission in China, in 2017, the Jilin factory focused on
transforming generation and emission locations of waste gas
and aqueous organic solvents from biochemical workshops
by recycling VOCs in the vacuum pipelines and exhaust
discharge pipelines using refrigerant heat exchange, which
effectively reduces the disorganized emission of VOCs
and makes it easier for waste water and gas treatment.
Subsequent improvement to the project will also increase its

economic and environmental benefits.

The factory in Beijing actively responded to actions taken by
the government to tackle air pollution in autumn and winter
by strictly carrying out production limitation or suspension
measures on the basis of air pollution: production suspension
for red warning, production limitation with emission
reduced by at least 20% for orange warning and production
limitation with emission reduced by at least 10% for yellow

warning.
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Table: 2017 Waste gas emission of Sihuan

Pharmaceutical

Figure
Emission i
Total waste gas emission 28,843.4

(10,000 standard cubic meters)

SO, emission (tons) 81.4
NO, emission (tons) 92.8
Dust emission (tons) 15.4

Waste water treatment

Companies within the Group are required to properly treat
all waste water generated in their operation to protect
surrounding environment and underground water from
pollution. Waste water from production flows to water
treatment stations through dedicated pipelines, treated to
discharge standards through processes such as the activated
sludge process and the H/O process, before being discharged
to municipal pipelines. The water treatment stations are
equipped with discharge monitoring devices to ensure water

quality at the exit meets the standards.

Table: 2017 Waste water emission of Sihuan

Pharmaceutical
Figure
Emission g
Total waste water emission (tons) 259,646.5
COD emission (tons) 50.1
Ammonia-nitrogen emission (tons) 2.2
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Solid waste disposal

Solid wastes generated by the Group can be classified into
general solid waste and hazardous waste, for which there
are standard collection management process and disposal
procedures. General solid waste can be classified into
general industrial solid waste, which is disposed of under
the supervision of the Quality Assurance Department and
includes slag, waste packaging materials generated in
production, and household refuse, which is collected and
disposed of by the Administration Department and includes
used paper, office supplies and kitchen waste generated in
operation. Hazardous waste includes waste drugs, waste
liquid of chemical agents, used bottles, batteries and
fluorescent tubes from the process of production, research
and development, which are properly labeled and stored
and handled by qualified entities for disposal under the
supervision of professionals in strict compliance with
national regulations and requirements of provincial and
municipal environmental protection authorities. In 2017,
the Group generated 303.3 tons of hazardous waste, 7,963.4
tons of general industrial solid waste and 318.6 tons of

household waste.
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5.3 Green office
The Group has adopted a sustainable office approach by

formulating the Office Paper Use Management System to require
employees to use paper efficiently and encourage the use of recycled
paper. Application is required for replenishment of office supplies
and print cartridges are reused by refilling with powered ink.
Employees are encouraged by the Group to save energy through
focusing on the awareness of energy saving and emission reduction
during orientations for new joiners, posting reminders within
office areas, requiring employees to check and turn off power after
work, and appointing dedicated persons for inspection. The Group
has formulated rigorous and clear requirements on waste sorting
in office areas, under which recyclable waste such as used carton
boxes and unrecyclable used glass are stored separately in different
garbage chambers and transferred to specific places for disposal on
a regular basis. Household refuse and kitchen waste are also sorted

and transferred to disposal companies in a timely manner.

HARMONIOUS DEVELOPMENT

Sihuan Pharmaceutical focuses on coordinated development internally and
externally, taking employee development and community development
as an integral part of corporate responsibility. Internally, we protect
the lawful rights of employees and endeavor to build a harmonious
culture. Externally, we positively contribute to the community through

philanthropic activities and enabling local development.
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6.1

Employee rights and benefits

The Group recognizes that people are core to its long-term
development. As such, it strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and has formulated administrative rules and provisions
such as the Recruitment Management System, the Recruitment
Operational Practice and Guidebook, and the Employment
Contract Management Provisions, to ensure lawful employment
in all aspects, as well as fair and impartial benefits and workplaces
without discrimination for all employees since interview. Basic
labor issues, such as child labor and forced labor, the Group has
adopted a zero-tolerance approach in terms of both rules and
systems and supervisory mechanism, eliminating the possibility
of labor problems. As of the end of the reporting period, Sihuan

Pharmaceutical had 3,445 employees in total.
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6.2

The Group focuses on protection of employee rights by enabling
employees to express their views through mailbox, hotline,
and regular employee meetings on one hand, and establishing
a complaint mechanism and various systems including the
Accountability Management Measures to ensure employee
complaints are addressed and resolved in a timely manner on the

other hand.

The Group provides employees with comprehensive benefits,
including annual leaves, paid leaves, holiday cash gifts, birthday
gifts, dormitories and activity centers with yoga rooms, gym rooms,
children’s playrooms, table tennis rooms and other amenities for
spare time entertainment, in addition to timely social security
contributions. Moreover, we work to give employees a sense of
belonging through regular team building and thematic activities
to facilitate communications and interactions among them and
boost team cohesiveness. High-end talents are also provided with

apartments, home buyer allowances and cost-of-living allowances.

Employee training and development

The growth of employees and the development of the enterprise
complement each other. The Group regards employees as a
core asset and prioritize the professional training and career
development of employees. The Group has a well-established
career development system in place, comprising employee training,
promotion mechanism, performance assessment, etc. Employees
are provided with broad room for career development regardless of

position or seniority.
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Employee training

The Group has a well-developed training system in place
to provide an open platform for employees to improve their
professional qualities and build capabilities. The Group
has formulated the Training Management System, the In-
house Trainer Management System, the Expatriate Training
Management System, and the Employee Orientation
(Transfer) Training and Coaching Management System,
which clearly provide for the Group’s training structure
and training contents for all categories of employees. A
range of operating templates have been developed on the
basis of processes from training planning, organization and
implementation, training assessment, to training filing, in
order to unify and standardize the training systems across all
departments of the Group’s head office and all branches and

subsidiaries.

Employee trainings include orientation, induction training
and on-the-job training. Orientations are conducted to
enhance the new employees’ basic understanding of the
Company and relevant laws and regulations. Regarding the
forms of orientations, in 2017 the Group developed a model
of new employees to train new joiners and built the training
brand “Jiangwutang”, while building professional training
rooms and facilities, enhancing classroom interactions,
and conducting field visits, which achieved high trainee
satisfaction. New employees also need to receive induction
training from their specific department, so as to familiarize
themselves with their departments and positions and learn
professional knowledge and skills required for the position.
The Group also provides opportunities for employees
to improve themselves continuously through on-the-
job training, which aims to broaden their knowledge and
improve efficiency, and after which the staff will be assessed
to ensure continuous improvement to their capabilities to
meet the Company’s needs for development. In 2017, the
Group provided 3.8 hours of training on average to each of

13,537 employees in total.
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To further enhance the quality of training, the Group
launched a training need survey and developed the training
plan for 2018 based on the needs identified by analyzing
some 500 samples, coupled with competency and quality
model. The Group intends to build a four-level training
system for its key employees including group senior
management (decision makers), operational management
(subsidiary senior management, heads of first level centers),
department managers (workshop directors and department
managers), high potential employees (department heads and
high potential staff), to provide programs tailored for the

needs at different levels.

Promotion mechanism

The Group has a clear and well-designed career path
and mechanism in place to secure fair and transparent
promotions. On such basis, Jilin Jinsheng has set up a two-
pronged promotion mechanism covering both managerial
and technical positions and conducted two rounds of
promotions for managerial positions with candidates
selected on the basis competitive speech. Jilin Sichang has
formulated the Employee Promotion Management System
under a merit-based employment philosophy to promote
the right employees through comprehensive and quality

assessment and business knowledge examination.
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6.3 Social contribution

Sihuan Pharmaceutical adheres to the idea of harmonious and
joint development with the community, while developing its own

business, it also contributes to society through various ways.

The Group’s pharmaceutical plants are located in various provinces
and cities in China, and we care for local community development
and public well-being. The Recruitment and Hiring Management
System of the Group specifically requires that priority shall be
given to residents around the plants during recruitment, who
are provided with employment training commensurate with the
jobs. In active response to national policies, the Group have also
invested in a number of projects in the established industrial bases
in Northeastern China to revitalize local economy. In 2017, various
projects including Jilin Huikang, Jilin Shengtong, Jilin Zhongjian,
Jinsheng Insulin (Zhongshi Plant) had been largely completed
with several projects under commissioning. The Honghe project
acquired by the Group reported a significant growth of efficiency.
During the reporting period, investment expenditures on fixed
assets under above projects amounted to RMB253 million, creating
168 jobs locally, increasing local GDP by RMB182 million and
tax revenue by RMB20.9 million.
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In addition, the Group actively supports the philanthropic cause.
We have integrated industrial resources and work with external
platforms to build a free and open online platform for academic
exchange and professional training with a number of thematic
modules developed so far, including the “Beijing Hospital
Neurology Department Salon”, which aims to provide front-line
doctors with professional training on medical knowledge and
skills, “Continuing Medical Education”, a state-level continuing
medical education project aimed to provide clinical neurological
doctors with opportunities for continuing education through
expert lectures, and “Beijing Neurological Clinicopathology
Seminar”, which has become a renowned academic event in the
neurological science community of China. Besides, subsidiaries
under the Group also engage in a variety of volunteering activities.
In 2017, Changchun Xiangtong embarked on a Care for Sanitation
Workers campaign to set up rest areas with hot water and other
amenities for sanitation workers, while calling for employees to
help them with cleaning works in the neighborhood. A sustainable
support system has also been developed for donation of materials to

sanitation workers, including gloves and clothes.
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ESG aspect, general disclosure and Key Performance Indicator (“KPI”)

ASBREIRRRER — s

A3:The Environment General disclosure

and Natural

Resources

& Society
B1 {Ef
B1: Employment

B2 fi# B4 4
B2: Health and
Safety

B3 % & L

KPI A3.1

KPI A3.1

— MR

General disclosure

KPIBI.1
KPIBI1.1

KPI B1.2
KPIB1.2

— s

General disclosure

KPI B2.1
KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2
KPIB2.2

KPI B2.3

KPIB2.3

— MR

B3: Development and General disclosure

Training

KPI B3.1
KPIB3.1

KPI B3.2
KPIB3.2

it S5 O Y S R KR R K B R R
HARERNTH

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

PR~ IR MR - SEBCAL R R 23 1 8 B AR
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

R ~ AR B AR T St ) 73 1 M L R ML R
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

PR T B R T B 1 AR 2

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

W THHEK TR H

Lost days due to work injury.

0 AT B A (1 8 e P B e i o DA O R AT R
Bk
Description of occupational health and safety measures

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

SEPER K A B 8 20 19 3 1 B 0 1

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

AL B R BB > 554 18 B 52U G- H R
The average training hours completed per employee by

gender and employee category.
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B4 &5 TH#EH]
B4: Labor

standards

BS fitAESEH
B5: Supply Chain

Management

BG 7 fh EAT
B6: Product
Responsibility

— s

General disclosure

KPI B4.1
KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2
KPI B4.2

— s

General disclosure
KPI B5.1
KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.2

— e

General disclosure

KPI BG.1

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2
KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3
KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

KPI B6.5

A A R 1 G L S B T R 2 T
Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
SHLAE % B ML DU BR A7 Bl 95 0L P SR 4 R
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

12 40 ) 7 ) £ B

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

AT T A HE AL > o LT A BRI 9 R
THRE ~ DARA BRI AT R BTk

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and

monitored.

O 5 25 0K o 0 R % 5 L 2L o T e W £
A

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

B A E i B MBS I SR B L e Oy i

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

it LA o R R TR B EE AT R 1L 0

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

U A e R L LR X

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

ST B R B R RLRRBOR > DR BT R B
ik

Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
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3.3 s
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3.2 Customer service
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3.2 Customer service
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BT A5 — s
B7: Anti- General disclosure
corruption
KPIB7.1
KPIB7.1
KPI B7.2
KPIB7.2
BS L8 5 & — M
B8: Community  General disclosure
Investment
KPI BS.1
KPIBS8.1
KPI BS.2
KPI BS.2

T RE 90 7y S 3 A L 402 o 9 45 0 2095 s
ESGRIE  EP TR

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

3 SR s e R R L AR BT R B i
Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and

monitored.

B R
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,

environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,

sport).
TE S Y )R

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus

area.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the Chinese government took further steps to reform the
country’s healthcare services, medical insurance and pharmaceuticals
(=Bt B), through the implementation of a raft of initiatives such as
the Two-invoice System, regulation on drug prescription, mandatory
bioequivalent tests, and tightening control of hospital expenditure. The
Group's sales performance was negatively impacted. Meanwhile, policies
such as Marketing Authorization Holder (MAH), improvement of the
evaluation and approval system and encouragement of drug innovation
are expected to enhance the structure and standard of the country’s R&D
system. The changes have presented challenges and brought about a wave
of industry consolidation, while creating supply-and-demand imbalances

and immense growth potentials for quality corporations.

In view of that, the Group focused on building a stronger operational
foundation for sustainable development in the year 2017. The Group
implemented a series of internal adjustments with the aim to “strengthen
R&D capabilities, optimize product resources and accelerate market
expansion”. With these efforts, the Group mitigated policy impacts and
strengthened its fundamentals, dedicated to transforming the challenges

into opportunities.

Strengthen R&D capabilities

Established clear innovative drug pipeline

The Group increased its investment in R&D and allocated more resources
in therapeutic areas of major unmet clinical needs, such as oncology,
immuno-oncology, diabetes and non-alcoholic steatohepatitis (“NASH").
By doing so, the Group successfully accelerated the progress of multiple
innovative drug projects and established a clear R&D pipeline. Two of
its major projects, Birociclib and Janagliflozin, are expected to enter
Phase III clinical trial in the second half of 2019 and submit New Drug
Application (“NDA”) in 2021. In addition, there is one ongoing insulin

analogue project currently in IND stage.
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In addition, the Group established the United States (“U.S.”) Innovative
Drug Research and Development Centre (“U.S. R&D Centre”) in the
San Francisco Bay Area, which is an important milestone for entering
the high-end biologic pharmaceutical field. It will help promote
internationalization of the Group’s innovative drugs and accelerate their
marketization in China, through simultaneous applications to U.S. Food
and Drug Administration (“U.S. FDA”) and the China Food and Drug
Administration (‘CFDA”).

Sound generic drug development

The Group pushed forward development of key projects after assessing
their competitive landscape and clinical demand. A number of new
products are scheduled to be launched in the coming few years. A few oral
solid dosage products were selected to conduct bioequivalence test and
have achieved sound progress, targeting to become the first or among the

first two products to pass the test.

Optimize product resources

3.

Cooperation with international pharmaceutical companies for

better product portfolio

The Group continued its efforts in international collaboration and
established a joint venture with Austria-based pharmaceutical company
Croma-Pharma GmbH (“Croma Pharma”), and thus extended into
China’s aesthetic medicine market which has been growing at a rate of
over 20% annually. The joint venture’s first product Princess® VOLUME
dermal filler received CFDA approval and has commenced sales. The
Group has begun clinical trials for other aesthetic medicine products.

Further product diversification is expected in the near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Continued to seek M&A opportunities amid industry consolidation

The Group acquired 100% equity interest in Ambest Pharmaceutical
(China) Co. Led, (SAABEE () AT FRZ2 7] ) (‘Ambest Pharmaceutical
(China)”) at RMB1.1 billion (the “Share Aquisition”). The Group
currently holds drug production approvals of Monoammonium
Glycyrrhizinate and Cysteine and Sodium Chloride Injection (H [ B
$c Y It = % F AL B ) with the brand name “Huineng ([l 8E)”,
and Floium Ginkgo Extract and Tertram Ethypyrazine Sodium Chloride
Injection (5 5 S AL TE 5 ) with “Mainuokang (B R) as che
brand name. Both products have been launched in most provinces and
municipalities in China and their sales have shortly reached considerable

scale.

Strengthened evidence-based research to prolong product life span

The Group conducted evidence-based research to reinforce the clinical
efficacy, safety and indications of its major products (such as Kelinao,
Oudimei, Roxatidine, Yuanzhijiu etc.), of which the results have
been published. The Group promoted inclusion of its major products
in official clinical guidelines, expert consensus, and interpretation of
clinical pathways, successfully listed all major products in county level
interpretation of clinical pathways and interpretation of clinical pathway
and therapeutic drugs. The Group has also started the re-evaluation

research of its exclusive and major products, including Kelinao.
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Tapping unexplored markets

6.

Accelerated expansion in lower-end markets

In view of the government’s promotion of a hierarchical healthcare
system to direct resources to primary healthcare institutions, the Group
concentrated its marketing efforts on the expansion in lower-end markets
while consolidating its position in high-end markets. The Group focused
on small- and medium-sized hospitals in lower-tier cities and community-

level healthcare institutions.

According to data from IMS Health Incorporated (“IMS”) for the fourth
quarter of 2017, Sihuan Pharmaceutical ranked sixth in the county
market development with its purchase amount reaching RMB3.2 billion,
with a year-on-year growth of 3.6%, presenting higher growth than other

domestic companies.

Strengthened academic promotions to enhance marketing
capabilities

The Group continued to step up its national academic promotions,
resulting in improved market recognition and coverage. Its growth stage
products achieved satisfactory growth, attributable to expansion into
extended markets through winning tenders and being listed in more
provincial reimbursement drug list (‘RDL”). Tender price of major
products such as Oudimei, Kelinao and Yuanzhijiu remained stable. The
Group has raised the expertise of the sales team by providing systematic
trainings to its salespersons and distributors. The Group also further
unlock potential of its products by market segmentation, i.e. assigning

specific strategies and targets for products in different stages.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Sales Performance

With the aforementioned strategies, along with the Group’s solid foundation in
the cardio-cerebral vascular (“CCV”) prescription drug and hospital market in
China, Sihuan Pharmaceutical combated the unfavorable policies and minimized

their impacts.

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB2,745.8 million in 2017,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.8%. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB1,448.9 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
15.2%. Net profit margin was 53.9%.

According to data from IMS, the Group remained the largest CCV drug
manufacturer in China's prescription drug market with a market share of 10.6%
in terms of hospital purchases. Moreover, the Group was the sixth largest
pharmaceutical company in China’s entire hospital market with a market share
of 1.8%

CCV products

During 2017, revenue contributed by CCV drugs decreased 14.1% year-on-year
to RMB2,582.9 million, accounting for 94.1% of the Group’s total revenue,
caused by tightening control of hospital budget.

Revenue of Mainuokang, a growth stage product, surged to RMB65.8 million,
accounting for 2.4% of the Group's total revenue. The product has been
included in 11 provincial RDLs as compared to 9 last year, and has won tenders
in a total of 18 provinces. Oudimei’s revenue reduced by 15.9% year-on-
year to RMBG686.9 million, accounting for 25% of the Group’s total revenue.
Yuanzhijiu's revenue dropped 5.6% to RMB463.9 million, accounting for
16.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

Combined revenue of Kelinao and Anjieli (Cinepazide Maleate) was RMB390.0
million, accounting for 14.2% of the Group’s total revenue. Bejing Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Sihuan”) won the lawsuit against Qilu
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Qilu Pharma”) regarding the infringement
of patents of Cinepazide Maleate, which have been exclusive products of
Beijing Sihuan before other companies, such as Qilu Pharma, conducted
their manufacturing and sales. The favorable decision towards the Group
demonstrated the validity of the patents, and will help to rebuild the exclusivity
of Kelinao and Anjieli, and therefore enhance the advantages in the process of

tendering.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

T 7 S R - Sales of key CCV products:

BETH=1T—H

IRAE BB IF] b 8 4 2

Revenue for the year )

ended 31 December Change in
Bl 44 ZE-AE R4 sales
Product Name 2016 2017  year-on-year

(A&#HTL) (ARETT)
(RMB’000)  (RMB’000)

Wi % VA R 0, (R LR T 5 V) 817,239 686,909 -15.9%
Oudimei/Aofutai/Weitong/Jielixin (Cerebroside-kinin injection)
W2/ A5 (il s T R R 1 A T ) 491,600 463,879 -5.6%
Yuanzhijiu/Xingwei (Troxerutin and cerebroproptein hydrolysate injection)
SEARIER R A (F AR RRRE IR AR R ) 494,624 389,969 -21.2%
Kelinao/Anjieli (Cinepazide maleate injection)
GRS 4 HEBE (RIS AR LTS 247 341 216,460 -12.5%
Yimaining/Yikangning (Alprostadil lipid emulsion injection)
JRIR (FF2)1 5 W 51 222,414 216,549 -2.6%
Wei'Ao (Salviae miltiorrhizae and ligustrazine hydrochloride injection)
YR/ P08 (S0 L 8 o A 60 i S 0 ) 189,677 151,400 -20.2%
Aogan/Xiangtong (Monosialotetrade osylganglioside sodium injection)
2 (W7 =4k Ban T 4HR) 147,644 126,487 -14.3%
Yeduojia (Compound trivitamin B for injection (II))
Hh 2 OB 2 1K ) ) 124,000 78,909 -36.4%
Qu’ Ao (Cerebroprotein hydrolysate)
JIIEE CHE AT P SRR )1 5 0% ) 66,770 43,176 -35.3%
Chuanqing (Ligustrazine hydrochloride for injection)
AR R (R %5 R AL R ) — 65,774 —

Mainuokang (Floium ginkgo extract and tertram

ethypyrazine sodium chloride injection)
18 A 2 R T 3,291 4,233 28.6%

Salivae miltiorrhizae liguspyragine hydrochloride and glucose injection

FFS N VR S0 fh — % — L R B — N The Group was engaged in the sales of the Salviae miltiorrhizae and ligustrazine hydrochloride
EEEEHE IR E—LFEF—AEHKUEA S injection in both 2016 and 2017. As Jilin Sichang was consolidated into the Group since November
ANEEAGHHE > HHEMNE-Z2—LF—ZF 1A 2017, Jilin Sichang’s product revenue from January to October 2017 was approximately RMB40.1
ERRAHANRE 01 HET —F—ANEHKM million and its annual revenue of RMB11.1 million in 2016 was not reflected in the Group's
RBAFIAL R 111 H TR A48 A Dk consolidated revenue. Taking into account of Jilin Sichang’s annual revenue in 2016 and 2017, the
A o HEEHEMRNE - BE—XNFE L - F—LELF annual revenue from this product was approximately RMB233.6 million and RMB256.7 million in
A > ARG R B —NERAL B ANR¥ 2336 2016 and 2017 respectively, representing an increase of 9.9%.

T SR LERFRAK AR 2567 HET >

$9.9% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Non-CCV products

During 2017, revenue from non-CCV drugs decreased by 9.3% year-on-year to
RMB162.9 million, accounting for 5.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

Roxatidine’s revenue grew 64% year-on-year to RMB35.3 million. The number
of provincial RDLs which the product is included in increased by 3 to 5 and
it has won tender in 23 provinces in total. It is expected to contribute more

revenue along with RDL inclusion in more provinces.

Huineng's revenue grew 139.5% year-on-year to RMB19.3 million. The
number of provincial RDLs which the product is included in increased by 2 to
11. It has won tender in 6 more provinces, making it 17 in total. The product
is expected to contribute more revenue along with RDL inclusion in more

provinces.

The Group's growth stage products are expected to grow along with more
provincial tender wins and increased hospital coverage, thus making more

significant contribution to the Group’s overall performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FEIR ORI E S A S E L Sales of key Non-CCV products:
KETZA=+—HIL
R RA IF] b 8 4 2
Revenue for the year W)
ended 31 December Changes
A I 44 TER-ANE SR in sales
Product Name 2016 2017  year-on-year

(ARWTFL) (AR#TT)
(RMB’000) ~ (RMB’000)

(BT RS IED 28,417 28,079 -12%
Ren’ Ao (Oxcarbazepine)

BUBT 21,511 35,269 64.0%
Roxatidine

SR ER 19,808 17,534 -11.5%
Clindamycin

In] i (H 1R B DG R AL S SR 8,054 19,289 139.5%

Huineng (Monoammonium glycyrrhizinate and

cysteine and sodium chloride injection)
Je. T HEE 280 422 50.6%
Nilestriol
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Management Discussion and Analysis

r% R&D

R A AN RO R AEE > KK The CFDA has devised a Green Channel Fast Track for drugs complying with
HIELT %5 S A T A R IR TR RO bR T R certain standards, allowing shortened evaluation timeframe and therefore
o AEECR@R IR B EER > BT accelerated launching of the drugs. The Group has established a clear innovative
T ELA R B K 5 SR I IR TSR (1 PR, drug pipeline with focuses on therapeutic areas with substantial clinical demand,
FENEIRE ~ WP BRI ML 28) - LA such as oncology/immuno-oncology, diabetes and NASH, especially drugs with
TR B 1) S 9) R ORE S U PR > AR & new therapeutic targets and immuno-oncology drugs, among which the Group
BR KO s THE B BT E > I has been investing more of its efforts and resources in eight key Category I new
T BIFAR A o drugs, which have achieved positive results.

AR 4 Innovative Drugs

Vi - WIRHT | R i kB

" i Registrati 2 Zo phy =k Clinical trials
ne; peutic egistration = —
: g o Project Pre-clinical IND —H =
area classification trials application Phase I | Phase II | Phase III

Bl mme | LUBAGE | Mg
B Diabetes Category 1.1 | Janagliflozin
% |, Wi LUSEE | IR
;n‘_ Oncology Category 1.1 Birociclib
S 3 RS LIgIAIEE | AR
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Birociclib was granted CFDA approval for Phase I-IIT clinical trials, with
indications in breast cancer and malignant brain tumor. To date, there is no
drug in the same class launched in China. Phase III clinical trial is scheduled to

commence in the second half of 2019.

Janagliflozin is an innovative anti-diabetic drug classified in the SGLT-2
inhibitor category, which is one of the most popular new targets for treating
Type 2 diabetes globally. Phase III clinical trial is scheduled to commence in
the second half of 2019.

Benapenem is a drug in the carbapenem family, a class of broad spectrum
B -lactam antibiotics which are widely used to treat multiple drug resistance
(“MDR”") in hospitals. Its efficacy is significantly higher than similar drugs.

Phase II clinical trial is about to commence.

Pipeline Internationalization

The Group established its U.S. R&D Centre in the San Francisco Bay Area in
the U.S., strategically positioned as a part of the innovative drug R&D system.
The U.S. R&D Centre leads the frontier of the Group to the field of biological
drug, especially first-in-class immuno-oncology drugs. The Group targets to
promote internationalization of its innovative drugs and to accelerate their

marketization, through simultaneous applications to U.S. FDA and the CFDA.

On 3 September 2017, the Group entered into a series of agreements (the
“Agreements”) with PharmaDax Inc (“PharmaDax”) to invest in PharmaDax
(FoShan) Co., Ltd (“PharmaDax Foshan”), a subsidiary of PharmaDax,
in phases. Through the strategic collaboration with PharmaDax, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical can inject products that fit the European Union (‘EU”) and the
U.S. markets developed by its generic drug R&D center into the production
line of PharmaDax Foshan, and submit applications to the EU and the U.S.
with the aim to further promote global development of its drug preparations,
and embrace global markets. This collaboration not only gives the Group the
first-mover advantages in China’s generic drug market that will speed up the
marketing of its products in China, but is also a key step in entering global

market and will promote its international development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at the end of 2017, the innovative drug R&D platform has submitted
applications for over 600 domestic patents, 39 PCT international patents,
1 Paris Convention patent (consisting of six countries) and 2 U.S. patents
submitted individually. To date, the Group has been granted 158 domestic
patents and 52 overseas patents. In 2017, the Group received 5 national,

provincial and municipal R&D awards for its innovative drug R&D.

Generic Drugs

The Group focuses in major therapeutic areas, especially drugs with substantial
clinical demand such as oncology and diabetes. The Group’s generic drug R&D
team has initiated projects of children’s medicine and special formulations,

which are encouraged by national policies.

The Group’s generic drug R&D has achieved encouraging progress during the Year.
There are 28 Category 3 drug projects (7 under development, 21 granted clinical
trial approvals) and 39 Category 4 drug projects. The 3 key projects (Bolutinum
toxin (N EER ), Ambroxol (ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ'), and Hyaluronic acid (BRI )) are in Phase
IIT clinical trial and will be launched to market in the coming few years. To date,
the Group has submitted applications for production approvals for 15 generic drugs.
During the year of 2017, the Group received 2 provincial and municipal R&D
awards for its generic drug R&D.

The Group selected a few oral solid form drugs for bioequivalence tests.
Metformin hydrochloride tablet (R — H TR ) was the first in the industry
to pass bioequivalent test and to complete submission. Azithromycin capsule
(BT 27 1 K B %) and Oxcarbazepine tablet (B RV R are expected to
become the first and first two products in the industry, respectively, to pass

bioequivalent test.

The Group has recorded sound progress in the development of biological drugs

during the Year, expecting clinical trial approval in the near future.
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R&D Strategies
The CFDA has devised a Green Channel Fast Track for drugs complying with

certain standards, allowing shortened evaluation timeframe and therefore
accelerated launching of the drugs. In accordance with principles of “Market
oriented, project based and differentiated products”, the Group adopted a new
system to bring innovative products to market in an efficient and cost-effective

manner.

1. Market oriented approach: The Group initiated projects based on
thorough studies on market composition, development potential, market

demand, regulatory system and competitive landscape.

2. Selective screening system: The Group set up individual unit for
each therapeutic area, such as oncology/immuno-oncology, diabetes and
NASH to monitor global R&D trends, establish screening system and to

integrate comprehensive information of each specific therapeutic area.

3. Set up modified form drug project unit: The Group comprehensively
studied the biochemical characteristics, pharmacology and drug action of
selected blockbuster drugs, and developed a modified form that is more
applicable in clinical medicine based on the deficiency and drawback of

the original form.

4. Focus on products with high technical barrier: The Group will focus

on products with longer life span.

5. Resource integration: The Group integrated internal and external
resources to expedite product launch. Leveraging collaboration
with PharmaDax Foshan, the Group plans to accelerate product
commercialization in China through priority evaluation channel while

capturing both the EU and the U.S. markets.

6. Building the A-team: The Group continued to recruit high calibre

talents and strengthen internal training.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The government’s continued push to promote healthcare sector reform
will keep the industry under pressure. While the Group sees challenges in
the industry’s development in the short term, the Group believes that the
higher visibility and further industry consolidation will put the industry

on the path of healthy growth.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical aims to outpace the market with an optimized
product portfolio and strengthened marketing capabilities. In the future,
the Group will be investing significant resources into developing a
sustainable pipeline of innovative and generic products, through in-house
R&D, mergers and acquisitions and international cooperation. In terms of
marketing, the Group will continue to increase penetration in lower-end
markets for its mature products, and boost market coverage of its growth

stage products by tender wins and inclusion in more provincial RDLs.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the Year, the Group continued to strengthen its CCV drug business
while promoting sales of its products of other therapeutic areas. Total
revenue decreased by 13.8% or approximately RMB439.9 million from
RMB3,185.7 million for 2016 to RMB2,745.8 million for the Year,
in which sales of CCV drugs amounted to approximately RMB2,582.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB423.1 million
when compared with 2016, accounting for approximately 94.1% of the

Group's total revenue.

Revenue contributed by non-CCV drugs decreased by approximately 9.3%
from RMB179.7 million for 2016 to RMB162.9 million for the Year,

accounting for approximately 5.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB759.0 million, accounting for approximately 27.6% of the total

revenue.
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Gross profit

Gross profit was RMB1,986.9 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
RMB202.0 million when compared with RMB2,188.9 million for 2016. Gross
profit margin increased from 68.7% for 2016 to 72.4% for the Year, which
was mainly due to streamlined production processes and effective cost control
measures resulted from systematic management in the Group’s production

units.

Other net gains

Other net gains decreased by RMB172.4 million from RMB486.3 million for
2016 to RMB313.9 million for the Year. The decrease was mainly due to a

reduction in government grants and exchange gains as compared with last year.

Distribution costs

Distribution costs for the Year increased by RMB81.9 million to RMB227.6
million over last year due to significant increase in national academic promotion
activities, which were conducted in order to strengthen brand awareness of the

Group's products.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 16.4% from RMB540.5 million for 2016
to RMB629.0 million for the Year, in which R&D cost increased by 50.0%
from RMB162.9 million (including labor cost) for 2016 to RMB244.4 million
(including labor cost) for the Year. This was mainly due to larger investment in

R&D as compared to last year.

Other Expenses
Other expenses decreased from RMB29.0 million for 2016 to RMB18.2 million

for the Year. The decrease was mainly due to the impairment of certain products

under development in last year.

Profit before income tax

Due to the aforesaid, the Group's profit before income tax decreased by 19.7%
from RMB2,152.6 million for 2016 to RMB1,729.1 million for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income tax expenses

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by 47.1% from RMB472.7 million
for 2016 to RMB250.2 million for the Year.

Profit for the year

Due to the aforesaid, the Group’s net profit decreased by 12.0% from
RMB1,679.8 million for 2016 to RMB1,478.9 million for the Year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 15.2% from
RMB1,708.2 million for 2016 to RMB1,448.9 million for the Year.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests increased from losses of RMB28.4 million for 2016 to
gains of RMB30.0 million for the Year.

Liquidity and financial resources
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMBS831.9 million (as at 31 December 2016: RMB2,407.1 million) and
available-for-sale financial assets amounted to RMB2,967.4 million (as at 31
December 2016: RMB1,710.0 million).

MEBEEZREEERA
2017 F E &

o &l

69



W B w43 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

REE— WA 2 R G AT BRITIRF K&
WM o 7 SE [0 n] BE 1 A8 A B4 P AR S 4%
o DB R I o R AR
A F B T RATHEA RT L W E o AN B4
EATIE o AR > RIFARIGE - A%EMH
WEAFABRERSRER N 2,9445 F 8
G o AR AR RS G W e e AT W B L 4R
B By A A SR AT RS R
dh o SN AR R R o AT A T
B SR PR R E AR E SR E
T~ U R A SR AT R T 2 R R S T ZE D I
SATIER G IH LA - HEAE AR 2,944.5
HEIC AR 20 HE LB SILAA
RW29674H BN ALEBRE —F—LF
TA=T - HIE S G ARy T
HESMEE - MAXNEAN > g fEER
WEAGRHE R NRE 28325 HET -

BR ™ SCRT IR & A A% A A 4 £ LR
FPEEK o BRI - JLRE A ML R (RO 13 AR DA
ASE A N CHE AN G0 T AR AR 19%

AEER -F—LET A=+ HARHMH

The Group generally deposits its excess cash in interest-bearing bank accounts
and current accounts. The Group may use extra cash for short-term investments
in order to obtain better returns. Therefore, members of the Group entered into
agreements with certain banking institutions to invest extra cash. According
to such agreements, during the Year, the total amount of investment of
members of the Group amounted to RMB2,944.5 million. The investments
made by the Group according to these agreements were categorized as short-
term investments, which mainly consisted of financial planning products
purchased from certain state-owned banks. For the said financial planning
products, the issuing banks of such financial planning products may invest the
Group's funds at their discretion into financial instruments such as treasury
bonds, discounted bank acceptances, commercial acceptance bills and bank
deposits. The investment principal of RMB2,944.5 million plus interest of
approximately RMB22.9 million in aggregate amounted to approximately
RMB2,967.4 million, which was recognized as available-for-sale financial assets
in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31 December 2017. As at
the date of this announcement, total amount of sold/repaid investment principal
amounted to RMB2,832.5 million.

Save as disclosed below, the Group did not have other liabilities and bank loans,
as a result of which, its gearing ratio (net debt to equity attributable to owners

of the Group plus net debt) is less than 1%.

The Group has sufficient cash as at 31 December 2017. The Directors are of the

& o EHRR A > A B WAL K 5 A opinion that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.
B o
R TR
+ZA=Zt—H +ZHAZ=Z+—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ANBRH T ARHET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ha kBG5S EY Cash and cash equivalent 831,859 2,407,073
W Less: Borrowings — (8,280)
831,859 2,398,793

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade receivables consist of credit sales of its products to be paid
by its distributors. Other receivables of the Group consist of other receivables,
notes receivable, amount due from associates, joint venture and other related
parties and prepayments to suppliers. The Group's trade and other receivables
were RMB747.1 million as at 31 December 2017, representing a decrease
of RMB130.2 million when compared with trade and other receivables of
RMB877.3 million as at 31 December 2016, mainly due to a decrease of notes

receivable for the year.

Inventory

Inventory as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB228.0 million (as at 31
December 2016: RMB200.7 million). Inventory turnover days were 102 days
for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2016: 78 days). The Group had no

inventory impairments during the Year.

Property, plant and equipment

Our property, plant and equipment consist of buildings, production and
electronic equipment, office equipment, motor vehicles and construction in
progress. As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB2,453.6 million, representing an increase of
RMB349.3 million, or approximately 16.6%, when compared with the net book
value of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2016. The increase
was mainly attributable to the expansion or construction of existing and new

production facilities, and the purchase of equipment.

Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2017, the net carrying amount of goodwill was RMB2,843.9 million
(as at 31 December 2016: RMB2,247.7 million).
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Intangible assets

The Group’s intangible assets mainly consist of customer relationships,
deferred development costs, product development in progress, trademark and
software. The deferred development costs and product development in progress
mainly represented the acquisition of certain pharmaceutical R&D projects
from external research institutions and self-developed R&D projects. As at 31
December 2017, net intangible assets amounted to RMB1,338.0 million (as at
31 December 2016: RMB579.0 million).

Trade and other payables

The Group’s trade and other payables primarily consist of trade payables,
advances from customers, cost of construction and purchase of equipment
payables, deposit payables, accrued reimbursement to distributors, other
payables, accrued expenses and payables to employee remuneration. As at 31
December 2017, trade and other payables amounted to RMB1,804.8 million,
representing an increase of RMB977.5 million when compared with the trade
and other payables as at 31 December 2016, mainly due to the increase in
payables for acquisition and other payables as a result of implementation of

Two-invoice System.

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 December 2016: nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 31 December 2017, apart from the contingent liabilities disclosed, the
Group has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments
to provide guarantees for any payment liabilities of any third parties. The Group
did not have any variable interests in any unconsolidated entities that provide
financing or liquidity, create market risk or offer credit support to us or engage

in the provision of leasing, hedging or R&D services to the Group.
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Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total capital commitment of
RMB222.0 million, mainly set aside for the acquisition of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, available-for-

sale financial assets and other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain PRC reputable
financial institutions and high-quality international financial institutions
outside the Mainland China. All those irrevocable bank bills, classified as notes
receivable, are issued by the banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There
was no recent history of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation

to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk and has policies in place to ensure that certain cash advance has
been received upon the agreement of the related sales orders with customers.
For those with credit period granted, the credit quality of the counterparties
is assessed by taking into account their financial position, credit history and
other factors. It also undertakes certain monitoring procedures to ensure that
proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group regularly
performs ageing analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the recoverability
of groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit risk based on historical data

and cash collection history.

Available-for-sale financial assets are the bank financial products issued by
certain PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no recent history of
default and the executive directors of the board of the Company are of the

opinion that the credit risk related to the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed
by taking into account their financial position, relationship with the Group,
credit history and other factors. Management will also regularly review the
recoverability of these other receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The executive directors of the board of the Company are of the

opinion that the default by counterparties is low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.
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Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is RMB. All of the
revenues of the Group are derived from operations in the PRC. The financial
instruments of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. The main foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities of the Group were certain cash and
cash equivalents, which were denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”),
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”), Great Britain Pound (“GBP”) and Euro (‘EUR”).
In the opinion of the executive directors of the board of the Company, the

Group does not have significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Treasury Policies

The Group finances its ordinary operations with internally generated resources.

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure primarily consists of purchase of property,
plant and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. For the Year, the
Group's capital expenditure amounted to RMB487.1 million, of which expense
on property, plant and equipment, acquisition of land use rights and purchase
or in-house development of intangible assets amounted to RMB406.3 million,
RMB58.6 million and RMB22.2 million.

For the Year, the Group’s investment in capital expenditure for R&D was
RMB70.4 million, of which RMB51.6 million was spent on property, plant
and equipment. The remaining RMB18.8 million was for purchasing and self-

developed intangible assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material acquisition and disposal
On 22 March 2017, Sun Moral International (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity acquisition agreement
with Ambest Pharmaceutical Company Limited (54 1 ¢ 3£ 52 B A [R 2
H) to acquire the 100% equity interest held by it in Ambest Pharmaceutical
(China), for a consideration of RMB1,100 million. Upon completion of the
Share Acquisition, Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) has become a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group.

Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) is engaged in the manufacturing of large
volume injections, and research, technology transfer and technology services of
pharmaceutical products. The drug production approvals it currently holds include
Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate and Cysteine and Sodium Chloride Injection (H
F R B8 e R R AL B 5FIR), with the brand name “Huineng” ([T RE),
and Floium Ginkgo Extract and Tertram Ethypyrazine Sodium Chloride Injection
(55 EAL B8 T 510 with “Mainuokang (7 )" as the brand name. Other
than commitment to sales, research and development, the Group has been constantly
looking for opportunities to acquire companies owning exclusive products with large
market potential, especially CCV products, in hope of further improving its market
share and competitiveness. Ambest Pharmaceutical (China), the acquired target
company, meets such requirements of the Group. Please refer to the Company's

announcement dated 22 March 2017 for details.

On 3 September 2017, Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreements with PharmaDax.
According to the Agreements, the Group will invest in PharmaDax Foshan,
a subsidiary of the PharmaDax, in phases. In the first phase, the Group will
subscribe for 19.99% equity interests in, and corporate bonds issued by,
PharmaDax Foshan at the consideration of RMB200 million. In the second
phase, the Group will convert the aforementioned corporate bonds into equity
interest in PharmaDax Foshan (the “Conversion”) upon satisfaction of certain
conditions stipulated in the Agreements. Furthermore, the Group shall
make an additional investment of up to RMB200 million (the “Additional
Investment”) upon satisfaction of certain conditions stipulated in the
Agreements. The Group will hold 51% equity interest in PharmaDax Foshan

upon completion of the Conversion and the Additional Investment.
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Through the strategic collaboration with PharmaDax, Sihuan Pharmaceutical
can inject products that fits the EU and the US markets developed by its
generic drug (research R&D and development) center into the production line of
PharmaDax Foshan, and submit applications to the EU and the US with the aim
to further promote global development of its drug preparations, and embrace
global markets. This collaboration not only gives the Group the first-mover
advantages in China’s generic drug market that will speed up the marketing
of its products in China, but is also a key step to entering international market
and will promote its international development. Please refer to the Company's

announcement dated 4 September 2017 for details.

During the Year, the Group entered into an equity disposal agreement with
Beijing Gaobo Hospital Management Co., Ltd., and disposed of its entire equity
interest of 95% in Beijing Boren Hospital at the consideration of RMB140

million.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2017, none of the Group's assets was pledged.

Human Resources and Remuneration of Employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the success of the Group in a
competitive environment. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to all employees. The Group reviews its own human resources and
remuneration policy regularly, to encourage employee to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the long-term growth of

the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 3,445 employees. For the Year, total
salary and related costs of the Group was approximately RMB375.3 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB316.2 million).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Che Fengsheng, aged 56, is our executive Director and chairman of the
Company (the “Chairman”) and was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006.
He is a co-founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the Group and is instrumental
to the Group’s growth and business expansion since its establishment in 2001.
Prior to the Group’s establishment, Dr. Che had more than 8 years of experience
as a medical doctor/neurologist and 20 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of pharmaceutical products and the management of pharmaceutical
companies. From 1997 to 2001, Dr. Che was general manager of Hainan Kang
Tong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd where he was in charge of the company’s overall
management. From 1995 to 1997, Dr. Che was the assistant general manager
and vice manager (marketing) of Shenzhen City New Special Pharmaceutical
Products Co., Ltd. where he was responsible for the marketing and overall
management of the company’s business. Between 1993 and 1995, Dr. Che was
the product promotions manager of Shenzhen City Healthcare Pharmaceutical
Company and East China Regional manager, in charge of sales and marketing.
From 1991 to 1993, Dr. Che held the position of chief neurologist and lecturer
in First Military Medical University, Zhu Jiang Hospital, Guangzhou City,
PRC. Dr. Che was a neurologist and an assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military
Medical University in Xi'an City, PRC from 1990 to 1991 and at the Fourth
Military Medical University, Xi Jing Hospital in Xi'an City, PRC from 1984
to 1987 respectively. Dr. Che was the vice-chairman of several committees and
associations including, China Political Science Training Centre, China Medical
Economics Magazine Board and the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association. Dr. Che
is also a deputy supervisor of the Hainan Food and Drug Working Committee
in the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association as well as a specially appointed
research member of the China Enterprise Reform and Development Research
Institute. In 2006, he was named as one of the Top 10 New and Enterprising
Businessmen in Hainan Province by the Hainan Province Commerce
Association, the Hainan Industry & Economics Association and the Evaluation
Committee of Top 10 Leading Businessmen and Top 10 New and Enterprising
Businessmen in Industry and Commerce in Hainan. He was vice chairman of the
Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber of the All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce from 2010 to 2011. He won the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur Award
for Life Science Industry of China in 2012. He was awarded the National Labour
Day Medal in 2014. He was appointed director for the Fourth Session of the
Board of the Society of Biotechnology in Beijing in 2014. He was recognized as
the National Labour Model in 2015. Dr. Che received his Bachelor of Medicine
(Aviation) and Master of Medicine (Neurology) from the Fourth Military
Medical University, Xi'an City, PRC, in 1984 and 1990 respectively. He also
received an Executive Master of Business Administration from China Europe

International Business School in 1999.
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Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Dr. Guo Weicheng, aged 54, is our executive Director, deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed to our Board on 18
May 2006 and is a co-founder of our Group. Dr. Guo is responsible for the
overall operations of our Group, sales and marketing and our R&D activities,
with a focus on strategic planning, particularly in relation to mergers and
acquisitions and product collaborations. He has also become responsible for
Shenzhen Sihuan’s Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. overall operations after it was
acquired in 2007. Dr. Guo is instrumental to our Group’s growth and business
expansion since our establishment in 2001. Prior to our establishment, Dr. Guo
had more than 4 years of experience as a general surgeon and more than 20 years
of experience in the sales and marketing of pharmaceutical products. From 1992
t0 1993, Dr. Guo held the position of chief surgeon in Guangzhou Military 177
Hospital. Dr. Guo was a surgeon and assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military
Medical University, Tang Du Hospital, Xi'an City, PRC from 1986 to 1989.
Dr. Guo received his Bachelor of Medicine and Master of Medicine (General
Surgery) from the Fourth Military Medical University, PRC in 1986 and 1992,

respectively.

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, aged 44, is our executive Director, chief financial officer
and one of the joint company secretaries and was appointed to the Board on
8 December 2017. Mr. Choi joined our Group in 2006 and is responsible for
overseeing and managing the accounting and finance functions of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Choi gained his finance and accounting
experience at a company listed on the main board of Bursa Malaysia and at
Deloitte and Touche. Mr. Choi received a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
from Nelson Polytechnic (now known as Nelson Marlborough Institute of
Technology), New Zealand in 1997. He is a member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants (UK) and also a member of the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. Currently, Mr. Choi is a director
of Sun Moral International (HK) Limited, an investment holding company
established in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since
2017. Mr. Choi is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
since 2014. Mr. Choi did not hold any directorship in any listed public

companies during the past three years.
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Dr. Zhang Jionglong, aged 56, is the head of the Group’s investment
department. He is in charge of the Group’s investment and mergers and
acquisitions. He joined the Group in 2005 and was first appointed to the Board
as a non-executive Director on 18 May 2006 until 8 December 2017. Dr. Zhang
has more than 10 years of experience as a medical doctor. From 1983 to 1992,
Dr. Zhang worked as a medical doctor in Shenzhen City People’s Hospital, one
of the largest hospitals in Shenzhen City, PRC. Dr. Zhang obtained a Graduate
Certificate in Medical Treatment from Shantou Medical College, PRC (illl 5
o EEH BT ) (now known as Shantou University Medical College (IIIFHK
BLELEL ) in 1983, In 1992, Dr. Zhang was conferred the professional title
of Chief Physician by the Shenzhen City Title Conferment Reform Leadership

Group (VRIITHE A8 i 4 A8/ DAL,

Ms. Chen Yan Ling, aged 40, is the person in charge of the secretariat of the
Group's Board of Directors. Her main responsibilities are to manage all matters
relating to the board of directors. She joined the Group in March 2006 and has
served in the Group for 12 years. Joined the Group since 2006, she has been
working as an assistant to the Chairman of the Group assisting in managing
the board secretariat and Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. She is in
charge of the listing, daily management and investor relationship of the Group,
etc. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as an English translation officer at
the information centre of Guangzhou Tourism Bureau in 2001. In 2002, she
worked as an assistant to general manager at Yip’s Ink & Chemicals (Zhongshan)
Company Led. (ZERH A (H71l) AR 7]) and was in charge of the daily
management of the general manager’s office as well as planning and promotion.
In 2004, she worked as an assistant to the president of Guangzhou Culturecom
Company Led. (J& I 3C AL B 15 A BR 2 7)) and was in charge of the daily
management of the president’s office, planning and budgeting, media resources

integration and development, maintenance, etc.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kim Jin Ha, aged 51, is our non-executive Director and was appointed
to the Board on 8 December 2017. He is currently serving as a director of
3NOD Digital Group Co., Ltd. (KOSDAQ: 900010), a company listed on the
Korea Securities Dealers Automated Quotations of the Korea Exchange. Mr.
Kim founded Lindeman Asia Investment Corporation (“Lindeman”) in 2001, a
leading private equity fund in Korea which specializes in investing in Korean-
Chinese companies. Mr. Kim has been serving as Lindeman’s chief executive
officer since 2001. Prior to founding Lindeman, Mr. Kim was the head of the
China division with Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd (KRX: 003470) (formerly
known as Tong Yang Securities Inc.), a company listed on Korea Exchange,
from 1994 to 2001. Mr. Kim obtained his Bachelor and Master of Arts degrees
in Chinese Language and Literature from Seoul National University in 1990
and 1992, respectively, and was awarded an MBA degree by China Europe
International Business School (CEIBS) in 1999. Mr. Kim is currently a non-

executive director of Cogobuy Group (stock code: 400).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Patrick Sun, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director and
was appointed to our Board on 7 October 2010. Mr. Sun is currently an
independent non-executive director of Trinity Limited (stock code: 891), China
NT Pharma Group Company Limited (stock code: 1011), China Railway
Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (stock code: 3969) and Kunlun
Energy Company Limited (stock code: 135) (all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Sun is currently also an independent non-executive director
of CRRC Corporation Limited (stock code: SH601766 and HK1766) and
China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (Stock code: SH601186
and HK1186), both of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
the Stock Exchange. He is currently a vice chairman of the Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies and was formerly its chairman from 2013 to 2015 and
Honorary Chief Executive Officer from December 2002 to September 2004.
He was a member of the Takeovers & Mergers Panel and the Takeovers Appeal
Committee of the Securities and Futures Exchange, Deputy Convenor/Chairman
of the Listing Committee and a member of the Council of the Stock Exchange.
He was previously the Senior Country Officer and Head of Investment Banking
for Hong Kong of JPMorgan Chase, group executive director and Head of
Investment Banking for Greater China at Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited.
He also previously served as an executive director and chief executive officer
of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821), executive director
of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (stock code: 188) (all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange), group executive director and co-head of
Investment Banking of Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited. He was formerly
an independent non-executive director of The Link Management Limited
(as manager of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust, stock code: 823). He
was an independent non-executive director and non-exeutive chairman of
Solomon Systech (International) Limited (stock code: 2878) (listed on the Stock
Exchange). He also previously served as an independent non-executive director
of China CNR Corporation Limited (previously listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the Stock Exchange), China Railway Group Limited (stock code:
SH601390 and HK390) (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Stock
Exchange), Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1387)
(listed on the Stock Exchange), and Everbright Pramerica Fund Management
Co., Led. Mr. Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, United States with a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics in
1981. Mr. Sun is a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants,
United Kingdom, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 66, is our independent non-executive Director
and was appointed to our Board on 4 September 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tsang was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong
Kong and China. He has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing
support for initial public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang is
currently an independent non-executive director of a number of companies,
including China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited (stock code:
HK133); TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: HK2283); China
Animation Characters Company Limited (stock code: HK1566) and Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: HK231). Mr. Tsang was
an independent director of Agria Corporation (formerly listed on the New
York Stock Exchange) from August 2011 to October 2017, a ditector of PGG
Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange)
from December 2014 to October 2017, and an independent non-executive
director of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code: HK2078) from
January 2013 to January 2016. Mr. Tsang received a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of

the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.
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Mr. Zhu Xun, aged 60, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 20 February 2014. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhu has more than 21 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Zhu has been a non-executive director of Cathay International Pharmaceutical
Limited (a company listed on the London stock exchange, LSE: CTI.L) since
August 2011. He has also served as a senior consultant of the Pharmaceutical
Research Institute of the Founder Group* (77 1F % B % 4& W %t Bt) since
May 2011 and a consultant of Crown Bioscience since November 2013. He is
currently a member of the National New Drugs Advisory Committee* (B %
HEERETIZE B ), the expert review group of the Life Science Division of the
National Natural Science Foundation of China (! XARMBEREEZ
B4 BB H K FE % 4), the expert advisory group in Biotechnology
of the National Development and Reform Commission (5 %% %§ Ji 1 0t 1 %
B el R G4, the review group of the Innovation Fund for
SMEs of the Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC ( *' B} 4 i
AR /MEERI T HE4 ) and the editorial committee of the Chinese Journal of
Cancer Biotherapy ("' 98 4 )R AE RS ). He is also the deputy director
of the enzyme and fermentation engineering committee of the China Medicinal
Biotech Association (1" B ¥ & & ¥ 4 filf 17 ). Mr. Zhu was the special
assistant to the mayor of Changchun Municipal People’s Government, PRC
from August 2003 to July 2007. Mr. Zhu was awarded a doctorate degree in
medicine from Norman Bethune University of Medical Science ( Hk BERL K
) in April 1989.

* For identification purpose only £ 2# /7]
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, aged 44, is our executive director, chief financial
officer and one of the joint company secretaries. Mr. Choi joined our Group
in 2006 and is responsible for overseeing and managing the accounting and
finance functions of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Choi gained
his finance and accounting experience at a company listed on the main board
of Bursa Malaysia (formerly known as Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange) and at
Deloitte and Touche. Mr. Choi received a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
from Nelson Polytechnic (now known as Nelson Marlborough Institute of
Technology), New Zealand in 1997. He is a member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants (UK) and also a member of the Institute of

Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.

Dr. Shih Chengkon, aged 62, is the general manager of Shandong Xuanzhu.
He joined our Group in 2011. He has more than 26 years of experience
in innovation drug R&D and management in various therapeutic areas.
Before he studied abroad in the U.S.A., Dr. Shih received his B.S. degree in
Biochemistry from National Taiwan University in 1979. He received a Ph.D. in
Molecular Genetics and Oncology from the Rockefeller University in 1985 and
accomplished his postdoctoral program in Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer
Center in 1988. Between 1988 and 2010, he was a senior principal scientific
officer and project team leader at Boehringer Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,

and responsible for project management and innovation drug research.
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Dr. Yuntao Song, aged 54, is currently the executive director and chief
scientific officer at Shandong Xuanzhu. He joined our Group in 2015. Dr. Song
has more than 25 years of experience in pharmaceutical R&D and management
in various therapeutic areas. He received his B.S. Degree of Organic Chemistry
from Shandong University in 1986, and a Ph.D. in Organic Chemistry from
University of Wisconsin-Madison in 1992. From 1992 to 2007, he worked at
Parke-Davis/Warner Lambert/Pfizer where he rose through the racks to become
Associate Research Fellow. From 2007 to the end of 2008, he co-founded
Beijing AoTeKangSen Co. Ltd. in Yizhuang, Beijing and acted as its general
manager. In early 2009, he joined Sihuan as chief scientist officer of the Group
and chief operating officer and chief scientific officer of Shangdong Xuanzhu.
In 2013, Dr. Song co-founded CS Therapeutics Inc., in the U.S.A. engaging in
discovery of novel therapeutics where he was the general manager. In 2015, after
the acquisition of CS Therapeutics Inc., by the Group, Dr. Song rejoined the
Group.

Dr. Huo Caixia, aged 48, is the general manager of Beijing Ao He Research
Institute Co., Ltd. Dr. Huo joined our Group in 2004 and is responsible for
the registrations of pharmaceutical products and assists in overseeing the R&D
functions of our Group. Between 2002 and 2004, she was an assistant researcher
at the Chemistry Research Institution of the Chinese Academy of Sciences. Dr.
Huo received a Bachelor of Science (Pharmacy) from Inner Mongolia Medical
College in 1993, a Master of Science (Pharmaceutical Chemistry) from Inner
Mongolia Medical College in 1998 and a Doctor of Science (Pharmaceutical
Chemistry) from Peking University in 2002.
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Mr. Xu Bo, aged 42, is appointed as our commercial general manager and chief
marketing & sales officer of the Group. Xu Bo joined our Group in early 2016.
He has more than 20 years of experience in sales, marketing, market access
strategy management in positions with internationally renowned joint venture
companies, such as GSK, Sanofi, Pfizer and Novartis. Xu Bo received his
Bachelor Degree of Pharmaceutical Chemistry from ShenYang Pharmaceutical
University in 1998. He has continued his study in BIMBA and IMD in the past

years.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, is our executive Director, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary. Please refer to this section headed “Senior Management” for

his biography.

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, is our joint company secretary. Ms. Mok was appointed
in December 2013. Ms. Mok is a director of TMF Hong Kong Limited and has
over 23 years of professional and in-house experience in company secretarial
field. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the

United Kingdom.
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Corporate Governance Report

Good corporate governance is favorable for the improvement of the overall
performance, transparency and accountability of the Company and is crucial
to the modern corporate administration. The Board, in the interests of the
Shareholders, devotes considerable efforts to maintaining and ensuring a high

standard of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. Save for Dr. Che Fengsheng who
is the Chairman and executive Director of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material relationship among the members of the Board.
The biographical information of the members of the Board are set out on pages
77 to 86 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management”.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Group’s strategic
development, determination of the Group's objectives, business strategies
and policies, and the supervision and control of the operation and financial
performance in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives. Our management
team, which possesses extensive operating experience and industry knowledge,
has been delegated by the Board with the authority and responsibility for the
day-to-day management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees, namely, the
audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk
management committee. Further details of these Board committees are set out

below.
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The Board convened five Board meetings during the Reporting Period. All Directors
were sent a meeting notice, at least 14 days prior to such meeting, with the Board
meeting agenda. The views of independent non-executive Directors were actively
solicited by the Company during Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and
Board committees meetings are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective
meetings. All Directors are provided with Board papers and related statistics on a
timely manner, which enabled the Board to make informed decisions on matters
proposed. In addition, all Board members have regularly reviewed the business
documents and information related to the Group.

All Directors are entitled to access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries. The joint company sectetaries of the Company are Mr. Choi
Yiau Chong, who is also the chief financial officer of the Company, and Ms.
Mok Ming Wai. Ms. Mok is a director of TMF Hong Kong Limited, a corporate
secretarial and accounting services provider in Hong Kong. The primary
corporate contact person of Ms. Mok at the Company is Mr. Choi Yiau Chong.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. Choi and Ms.
Mok, has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Year.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings, during the Reporting

Period, is stated below:

AN BT 2
HHEEREY
Attendance/

No. of Board
meetings held

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman) 55
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO) 5/5
Mr. Meng Xianhui (Deputy General Manager) 55

(resigned on 8 December 2017)
Mzr. Choi Yiau Chong (CFO)
(appointed on 8 December 2017)

N I NJA

Dr. Guo Feng (appointed on 8 December 2017 and AN T NJA
resigned on 20 April 2018)

Dr. Zhang Jionglong (CIO) AN NJA
(appointed on 20 April 2018)

Ms. Chen Yan Ling (appointed on 20 April 2018) AN I N/A

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Zhang Jionglong (resigned on 8 December 2017) 5/5

Mr. Homer Sun (resigned on 20 April 2018) 3/5

Mr. Kim Jin Ha (appointed on 8 December 2017) ANE I N/A

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Sun 5/5

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 55

Mr. Zhu Xun 55
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance

coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

With regards to the code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments as well as their identity and the time involved in such
commitments, the Directors has agreed to disclose their commitments to the

Company in a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has currently appointed one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the three independent non-
executive Directors holds appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules. One-third of the members of the Board are independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Patrick Sun, being an independent non-executive
Director has renewed their respective letters of appointment with the Company
on 27 October 2017 for a term of one year commencing from 8 December
2017. Mr. Kim Jin Ha, being a non-executive Director, has renewed the letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing from
8 December 2017. Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun, being the
independent non-executive Directors, have renewed their letters of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year commencing from 4 September
2017 and 20 February 2018 respectively. The non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or re-
election in accordance with the Company's bye-laws. Each independent non-
executive Director has submitted to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are independent and

meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The bye-laws of the Company provide that all the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if the number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation and being eligible, can offer themselves for
re-election. In addition, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his appointment

and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the

Shareholders at the respective general meetings.

Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong were retired and re-elected as
Directors at the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2018. Each of Mr. Choi
Yiau Chong, Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Ms. Chen Yan Ling were re-elected the

executive Directors. Mr. Kim Jin Ha was re-elected a non-executive Director.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before
the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which
such Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him
and the Company) provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for
the purpose of removing a Director shall contain a statement of the intention
to do so and be served on such Director 14 days before the meeting and, at
such meeting, such Director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his

removal.

As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been put in place to
ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this respect provides
sufficient protection for the interests of Shareholders to a standard commensurate

with the provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
year of 2017, the Directors are committed to complying with the code provision
A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in

continuous professional development and provided a record of training they

A

received.
B R > Bl
AR ~ Mt SRS
HERERRE BRI ER
B €7 Reading materials
ok & LA like newspaper,

workshop related to

Attending seminar,

conference and

director’s duties

journals and
updates relevant

to corporate

Name of Director governance
HiT#E S Executive Directors
HUGTHE A Dr. Che Fengsheng V N
HRAfE B Dr. Guo Weicheng V V
mEERE Mr. Meng Xianhui V V
(A =F—tHE+ZANHBHE)  (resigned on 8 December 2017)
LAy 3 Mz. Choi Yiau Chong N \
(A=F—LF T+ HNHEZE) (appointed on 8 December 2017)
FRUETE 4 Dr. Guo Feng V N
(R ZF—LFE+ZA/NHEZIE  (appointed on 8 December 2017 and
Wit = F— /\FMH =+ HEHT)  resigned on 20 April 2018)
SR BB A Dr. Zhang Jionglong \ \
(A Z=F—/\FWH —+ H#ZAE) (appointed on 20 April 2018)
Bratery 2t Ms. Chen Yan Ling N N

(A= ZF— /NFUH —+ HERL)

(appointed on 20 April 2018)

FHTER Non-Executive Directors

R HE R R Dr. Zhang Jionglong V \
(AZF—CHET+ZHANHBHE)  (resigned on 8 December 2017)

Bl Mr. Homer Sun V \
(RZF—/EWAZ 1 HEHE)  (resigned on 20 April 2018)

BRI M. Kim Jin Ha N N
(A=F—LCF T+ HNHEZE) (appointed on 8 December 2017)

B AT E S Independent Non-Executive Directors

FIE S Mer. Patrick Sun V N
B Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong N N
RISt M. Zhu Xun v \
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board to
provide an independent view on the effectiveness of the financial reporting
procedures, internal control and risk management system of the Group, to
oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as required by the Board. The Audit Committee currently comprises
one non-executive Director (Mr. Kim Jin Ha) and three independent
non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu
Xun), and is chaired by Mr. Patrick Sun who has a professional qualification in

accountancy.

During the Reporting Period, three meetings were held by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group's financial reporting
matters, reviewed the internal control system in relation to finance and
accounting and submitted improvement proposals to the Board. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with the provisions set out in

the relevant sections of the Code.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the interim results for
the period ended 30 June 2017. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the auditor’s remuneration for 2018 and recommended
the Board to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Company'’s auditor for the year of
2018, which is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2018 AGM.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members at the meetings held

during the Reporting Period was as follows:

iV = F)
Z I
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of meetings held

Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman) 3/3
Dr. Zhang Jionglong (resigned on 8 December 2017) 2/2
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 3/3
Mr. Zhu Xun 3/3
Mr. Kim Jin Ha (appointed on 8 December 2017) 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among others, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, to assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to make recommendations to the
Board on matters relating to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises one executive Director (Dr. Guo Weicheng) and
three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun) and is chaired by Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the provisions
set out in the relevant sections of the Code. During the Reporting Period, the
Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in accordance
with the requirements as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the Board
comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured
check and balance and safeguarded the interests of Shareholders as well as the

public.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
setting out the approach to diversify members of the Board. The Company
believes that a diversified perspective can be achieved through implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy. The following measurable objectives were
adopted: Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria, merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board having due

regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the Reporting Period, three meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, considered the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors and assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee, had also, taking into consideration the
skills, experience and knowledge, the relevant requirements of the Company and
the structure and composition of the Board, identified, reviewed and nominated,
with diligence and care, candidates who are suitable as Board members of the
Company before making final recommendations to the Board for their final

appointment.
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The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members at the meetings

held during the Reporting Period was as follows:

YN V& R
ZEHRIH
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of meetings held

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) 3/3
Dr. Guo Weicheng 3/3
Mr. Patrick Sun 3/3
Mr. Zhu Xun 3/3

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular

basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things,
to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management and to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and
experience, and to prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises one executive Director (Dr. Che Fengsheng) and three
independent non-executive Directors, (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
and Mr. Zhu Xun) and is chaired by Mr. Zhu Xun. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are consistent with the provisions set out in the

relevant sections of the Code.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance
of executive Directors, reviewed the remuneration policy, reviewed and
approved the proposed 2018 directors’ fees for executive Directors and made

recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fees for non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period, four meetings were held by the Remuneration
Committee, during which the resolutions regarding the remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management of the Company in 2018 and the
remuneration policy for the executive Directors and senior management for

2018 were discussed and recommended to the Board for consideration.
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The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members at the

meetings held during the Reporting Period was as follows:

YN O R
ZEHRIH
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of meetings held

Mr. Zhu Xun (Chairman) 4/4
Dr. Che Fengsheng 4/4
Mr. Patrick Sun 4/4
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 4/4

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 25 to the Financial
Statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the
annual remuneration of members of the senior management by band for the

Year is set out below:

N
Number of

Remuneration band (HKD) individual

Nil - 1,000,000
1,000,001 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 3,000,000

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
On 13 December 2015, the Board approved and established the risk

management committee of the Company (the “Risk Management Committee”)
with written terms of reference. The primary duties of the Risk Management
Committee are, among others, to review the Company’s risk management,
internal control system and ESG strategies, policies, guidelines and procedures
and to review the effectiveness of the work on risk management, internal control
systems and ESG. The Risk Management Committee consists of two executive
Directors (Dr. Guo Weicheng and Mr. Choi Yiau Chong) and two independent
non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong), and is
chaired by Mr. Choi Yiau Chong.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Managment Committee reviewed and assessed the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company, and made
suggestions to the Board. The Risk Management Committee had also reviewed
and assessed the ESG strategies, policies, guidelines and procedures, and

expressed their opinions to the Board.
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The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee members at the

meetings held during the Reporting Period was as follows:

YN V& R
ZEHRIH
Attendance/

Name of Directors No. of meetings held

Mzr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman) 0/0
(appointed on 8 December 2017)

Mr. Meng Xianhui (Chairman) 1/1
(resigned on 8 December 2017)

Dr. Guo Weicheng 1/1
Mr. Patrick Sun 171
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 1/1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Reporting Period. To comply with code provision A.6.4 of the
Code, the Group has also established and adopted the Model Code as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees to regulate the
dealings in the securities of the Group by certain employees of the Group who

are deemed to be likely in possession of the inside information of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirmed that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017. A statement on reporting
responsibility with respect to the external auditor of the Company is set out on

pages 128 to 268 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective internal
control system is maintained within the Group. The Group has adopted
internal control procedures and policies to safeguard the assets, to ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records, to carry out reliable financial reporting,
and to guarantee compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
internal audit team of the Company (the “Internal Audit Team”) conducts
independent auditing work under the guidance of the Audit Committee of the
Board and the Chairman of the Board. It is composed of officers who possess
professional ethics, professional capabilities, auditing experience and appropriate
communication abilities. It conducts regular financial and operational reviews
on the Group and reports its findings and supervisory weaknesses, if any, to the
Audit Committee. It performs evaluation and supervisory inspection on the
legal compliance, soundness and effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Company. The annual work plan is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Team monitors follow-up actions agreed
based on recommendations of the Audit Committee. In addition, the Audit
Committee will assist the Board to conduct annual review on the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group, and has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group for the Year, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting functions, their training programs and budget, which are

considered effective and adequate.

In 2017, the Board has appointed a professional third party company to provide
professional advice and services on risk management, internal control system
and ESG to the Group.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system and
realized organic integration with the internal control system. The Group has
adopted a three-step method (as shown in the diagram below) comprising
identification of risks, assessment of risks and response to risks as the guiding
measures for comprehensive risk management. A list of risks is compiled
through identification of risks with respect to the operating conditions of
the Company. Reasonable judgment on the possibility of occurrence and the
effects of various types of risks is attained through assessment of risks. By
combining qualitative and quantitative analysis to find out the causes of risks,
recommendations of multi-dimensional and effective responsive strategies
are made from seven aspects, including operation strategy, system process,
structural functions, technical tools, skills of staff, allocation of resources and
performance appraisal, and a written report is prepared for submission to the
management and the Board. Finally, fruitful results of risk management will
be realized through effective implementation of the internal control system.
And through the process of establishing this risk system, the Group has formed
a regular mechanism for daily monitoring and regular assessment of risks to
realize continuing supervision on essential risk factors in the daily operational

management activities.
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BE HEREABEGERRE Screening process for ESG issues
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In addition to internal implementation of risk management and conducting
regular review on internal control, the Group will engage external auditors
annually to perform statutory audits as well as to examine the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain key risk management and internal control aspects. Under
appropriate circumstances, the Group will adopt the relevant recommendations

of the external auditors to enhance risk management and internal control.

Moreover, to regulate operations of the Group and to ensure that all businesses
of the Group comply with relevant laws and regulations, the Group’s former
Surveillance Department has been restructured into the compliance department
in 2015 and is responsible for the establishment, inspection and reporting of
all compliance-related work of the Group. A compliance risk management
organizational structure has been established within the Group since then to
conduct regular reviews on the compliance of conducts of the Group’s internal
staff, customers, suppliers and cooperative partners, provide training and
education on observing discipline and laws and complying with anti-corruption

rules, and sign letters of undertakings on compliance with employees annually.
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The Group has formulated the Information Disclosure Management Measures,
and has complied with applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules, to
disclose information truthfully, timely, accurately, legally and completely in
accordance with the information processing and release procedures to perform
the obligations of disclosure, and to ensure that such information has been
kept confidential prior to the proper approval of its disclosure to protect
the legitimate interests of the Company’s shareholders, creditors and other
stakeholders.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Group had made remarkable improvements in investor relationship
in 2017. The Group has participated in a number of institutional investor
conferences and regularly communicated with many investors through various
means. The Group has also set to provide the highest standard and financial
transparency through publication of annual and interim reports, results
announcements, other announcements and circulars through the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Company held an annual general meeting on 16 June
2017 (the “2017 AGM”) and a special general meeting on 24 October 2017 (the
“2017 SGM”). All Directors of the Company, namely Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr.
Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Mr. Homer Sun, Mr.
Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun, attended the meetings.
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The attendance records of the Directors at the 2017 AGM and SGM are set out

below:

A\ AT
Z I
Attendance/

No. of meetings held

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng 2/2
Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
Mr. Meng Xianhui (resigned on 8 December 2017) 2/2
Mz. Choi Yiau Chong (appointed on 8 December 2017) R N/A
Dr. Guo Feng (appointed on 8 December 2017 and A N/A
resigned on 20 April 2018)

Dr. Zhang Jionglong (appointed on 20 April 2018) AN I NVA
Ms. Chen Yan Ling (appointed on 20 April 2018) AN N/A
Non-executive Directors

Dr. Zhang Jionglong (resigned on 8 December 2017) 2/2
Mr. Homer Sun (resigned on 20 April 2018) 2/2
M. Kim Jin Ha (appointed on 8 December 2017) i A N/A
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2
Mr. Zhu Xun 2/2

During the period from 1 January 2017 to the date of this annual report, there
has not been any change in the Company’'s memorandum of association and

bye-laws.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”), the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Act”) and applicable
legislation and regulation. Shareholders who have enquires about the following
procedures or have enquires to put to the Board may write to the joint company
secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) at Room 4905, Office
Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

A. Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as a

Director

(1)  Pursuant to Bye-laws 56 and 57, the Company holds an annual
general meeting (“AGM”) every year, and may hold a general

meeting known as a special general meeting whenever necessary.

(2)  Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, Shareholder(s) holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request for notice of
any resolution intended to be moved at an AGM or a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting to be given to the Shareholders entitled

to receive notice of the AGM or general meeting.

(3) The written request/statements must be signed by the
Shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, P.O.Box, HM1022,
Hamilton, HM DX, Bermuda with a copy to its principal office
in Hong Kong at Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than six (6) weeks before the AGM in
the case of a requisition for notice of a resolution and not less than
one (1) week before the general meeting in the case of any other

requisition.
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Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM and give
notice of the resolution; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by
the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company's expenses
for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will not

be circulated for the general meeting.

B.  Procedures for a Shareholder to propose a person for election

as a Director

@™

@

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of
Director(s), wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder
himself/herself) for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she
must deposit a written notice at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, P.O. Box, HM1022, Hamilton,
HM DX, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Room
4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that
proposal, the written notice must state the full name of the person
proposed for election as a director, his/her biographical details as
required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by
the Shareholder concerned and accompanied by a notice signed by

that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.
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The minimum length of the period, during which such written
notice(s) may be given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of

such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior
to that general meeting, the Company will need to consider
adjournment of the general meeting in order to (i) assess
the suitability of the proposed candidate; and (ii) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation
to the proposal to the Shareholders at least fourteen (14) clear
days and not less than ten (10) business days prior to the general

meeting.

C. Procedures for Shareholders to convene special general
meeting (“SGM”)

@

@

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, P.O. Box,
HM1022, Hamilton, HM DX, Bermuda and with a copy to its
principal office at Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months

after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general
meeting, be signed by the requisitionists and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those

requisitionists.
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If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be

convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionists at a SGM

varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

i at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company, which
cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical amendment

to correct a patent error; and

ii.  at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Act.

In accordance with the provision of section 74(3) of the Act, if
the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the

expiration of three (3) months from the said date.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall
be retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due
from the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect

of their services to such directors as were in default.
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D. Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details

are as follows:

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Room 4905, Office Tower,

Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Rd.,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (86) 755 8860 9726

Fax: (852) 3101 0362

Email: ir@sihuanpharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Audit Committee is

authorised by the Board to perform the corporate governance duties as below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual to corporate governance matters (if any) applicable to Directors

and employees of the Company; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related

rules and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the auditor of the Group provided audit services for the Group.

The service fees for audit services in 2017 amounted to RMBS5.5 million.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING
Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui, Dr. Zhang

Jionglong and Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (collectively, the “Convenantors”
and each a “Convenantor”) had provided an annual declaration in respect of
their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-competition undertaking
(as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 15 October 2010). Pursuant to
the deed of non-competition, each of the Convenantors has, among other things,
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the Company that at any time
during the relevant period, each of the Convenantors shall, and shall procure

that its associates (other than members of our Group):

(i) not, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in, participate in, ot attempt
to participate in or render any services to or provide any financial support
to or otherwise be involved in, whether on its own account or with each
other or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company,
any business which is the same as, similar to or in competition with the

business of the Group; and

(i)  not take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may interfere

with or disrupt the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by

the Convenantors with the deed of non-competition undertaking.
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Report of Directors

The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 11 to 12 of this Annual Report. Description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 11 to 12. Also, the financial risk management analysis of
the Group can be found in Note 3 to the Financial Statements. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 are provided in Note 37 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Group Financial
Summary on page 10 of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions on the
Group's risk management, internal control, ESG, relationships with its key
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement,
the Corporate Governance Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 11 to 12,
pages 87 to 106 and pages 107 to 127 respectively and in the Group's corporate

website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company has long considered environmental protection as one of its
key priorities. During its business operation, the Company has used its
resources prudently, employed reusable and eco-friendly materials to fulfil
its commitment to protect the environment. With reference to the Stock
Exchange’s Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, the
Company has implemented measures to update its internal control system and
strengthen the regulation and control of environmental protection initiatives.
The Group is supportive of environmental protection, committed to comply
with environmental protection regulations and dedicated to heighten the
environmental awareness of its employees. Meanwhile, it also adheres to the
principle of recycling and reducing and carries forward various initiatives to
green the office, including replacing paper approval by electronic approval,
printing and copying double-sided, setting up recycling bins, advocating the
use of recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by switching off idling
lights and electronic appliances. The Company also encourages its Shareholders
to receive electronic communications through the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to save paper.
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The Group will review its environmental protection activities from time to
time and consider the further implementation of measures and practices on
environmental protection in the Group's business operations, thereby enhancing

environmental sustainability.

Details of implementation and performance of the environmental protection
activities are set out in the Environment, Social and Governance Report on

pages 13 to 54 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, income and segment information for the

Year is set out in Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 139 to 140 of this

annual report.

An interim cash dividend of RMB1.8 cents per ordinary share, totaling
RMB170,479,000 was paid during 2017.

The Board proposed to distribute a final cash dividend of RMB1.3 cents per
ordinary share to Shareholders. Such proposal is subject to the consideration and
approval of Shareholders at the 2018 AGM.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group’s results and assets and liabilities for the last five

financial years is set out on page 10 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the Year are set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at
31 December 2017 are set out in Notes 11, 12, 32, 33 and 34 to the Financial

Statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
together with the reasons for such movements are set out in Note 18 to the

Financial Statements.
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SHARES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the shares and reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and also in Notes 18 and 19 to the Financial Statements. As at the end
of the reporting period, the reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
amounted to RMB6,719,232,000 (2016: RMB6,340,925,000). The Company
had not issued any shares during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting held on 24 October 2017 (“Share Option Scheme
Adoption Date”), which will be valid for ten (10) years from the Share Option
Scheme Adoption Date.

PURPOSE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons (as
set out in paragraph (b) below) (i) to optimise their future contributions to
our Group; (ii) to reward them for their past contributions; and (iii) to attract,
retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the

performance, growth and success of our Group.

(a)  Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member
of our Group, any executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any
member of our Group (an “Employee”), any proposed Employee, any full-
time or part-time Employee, or a person for the time being seconded to
work full-time or part-time for any member of our Group (an “Executive”),
a consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor,
agent or representative of any member of our Group, a person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group, or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any of
the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and each an “Eligible

Person”).

MEBEEZREEERA
2017 F E &

o &l

109



110

=R

Report of Directors

(b)

A Bt

G)  EEH AT A e e AR
HE T B 1o AT A 5 B A A (TR R
N D) A B2 T R B A
BHE -

(i) EFHFRERIRAE TS E AL
ARG - R R HCR A
ER  EE %5 N LA (T I
B HE B T A R E o

i) AR > BRFEEESARE
AL A AL T 5 € B B A
NN 352 ) T R B B AT Ao
FE IR RE - B [ e s AR R
FBERE R 3 5% i B A

(v) AEMALIOREAHmER R
P g AR (AR R A B R
B MR B BEA T R AR BT AR
b R AR BR A 1 A HE S )
A HER TS EORI0A B G R B CSF
% DR R/ E E A A
[NV YE VSrIN 8 .3 1
NE S SRR & B - B
JTATE SEL S FRCHEE ( D HLA ) ok i ol il
FBCRE s ) R FUE AT B Y T o

R AR 95 08 SR HE 5 30 ( B AR AR 2 WA Aoy L
R B AR I IRRE L ) WY AR I
11 AT A i R 88 AT (00O 3 BT 1 TR A
BH - A AT RUE IR PR AR
H O B 3547 0 19 109% (T 51142 HE L
BR1) > A m A A 5B s A
85I i IR o e SR o 0 s
EBR M AT AR R S ) (AR
AR AT AT A T PR AR e R
FEE) T RERL A BT I PR RE AT % T A T
WA B H o Je o A A5 A IR R
K& B MEFE R LRz H e 37 It
B 10% -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

(b)

Determination of eligibility

(i)  The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant to any
Eligible Person (a “Grantee”) an option to subscribe for Shares

under the Share Option Scheme.

(i)  The basis of eligibility of any Eligible Person to the grant of any
option shall be determined by our Directors from time to time on
the basis of their contributions to the development, growth and

success of our Group.

(iii)  For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by our
Company for the subscription of Shares to any person who falls
within the definition of Eligible Persons shall not, by itself, unless
our Directors otherwise determine, be construed as a grant of

options under the Share Option Scheme.

(iv)  An Eligible Person or a Grantee shall provide the Board such
information and supporting evidence as the Board may in its
absolute discretion request from time to time (including before
the offer of a grant of option, at the time of acceptance of a grant
of option and at the time of exercise of an option) for the purpose
of assessing and/or determining his eligibility or continuing
eligibility as an Eligible Person and/or a Grantee or that of his
close associates or for purposes in connection with the terms of an
option (and the exercise thereof) or the Share Option Scheme and

the administration thereof.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under
any other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Share Option
Scheme Adoption Date (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), provided that our
Company may at any time as our Board may think fit seek approval from
the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit, except that the
maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under any
other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders

in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
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The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of our

Company) shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under
the Share Option Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme is passed at the SGM would be 947,108,220
Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number of Shares in

issue.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any one Eligible Person (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Where any further grant of options to
such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and which may be granted to such
Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 9,471,082 Shares (1% of the Shares in
issue), such further grant shall be separately approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates or close

associates (as the case may be) abstaining from voting.

Grant of options

On and subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, our
Board shall be entitled at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing
on the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date to offer the grant of any option to
any Eligible Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select, and on
acceptance of the offer, grant such part of the option as accepted to the Eligible

Person.
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Subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its
absolute discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any condition,
restriction or limitation in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in
the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit (to be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the option), including but without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing continuing eligibility criteria, conditions,
restrictions or limitations relating to the achievement of performance, operating
or financial targets by our Company and/or the Grantee, the satisfactory
performance or maintenance by the Grantee of certain conditions or obligations
or the time or period when the right to exercise the option in respect of all
or some of the Shares to which the option relates shall vest, provided that the
period within which the Shares that the option relates shall vest on a date not

more than ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the option.

The rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may specify the
Eligible Persons to whom Share Options shall be granted, the number of Shares
subject to each Share Option and the date on which the Share Options shall
be granted. The Share Options may be exercised at any time during the Share
Option Period subject to certain conditions, restrictions or limitations imposed
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme. The basis for determining
the subscription price is also specified precisely in the rules of the Share Option
Scheme. There is no performance target specified in the Share Option Scheme.
The Directors consider that allowing the Board discretion to fix, among other
things, the minimum period for which a Share Option must be held before
it can be exercised, performance targets and the subscription price, upon the
grant of Share Options will better serve the purpose of the Share Option Scheme
as this will allow the Board to grant Share Options that cater to the specific
circumstances of the Grantee, taking into consideration the Grantee’s seniority,
experience, past work performance, field of expertise, etc., and thereby providing

appropriate motivation and incentive to the Grantee.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
Grantee together with a remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company within
the period specified in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option.
Once such acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted

and to have taken effect from the offer date.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part by the Grantee according to the
procedures for the exercise of options established by our Company from time to
time. Every exercise of an option must be accompanied by a remittance for the
full amount of the subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of

such option.
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The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price as
our Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of the grant of
the relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the
grant of the option) but the subscription price shall not be less than whichever

is the highest of:
(1) the nominal value of a Share;

(ii)  the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily

quotations sheet on the offer date; and

(iii)  the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days immediately

preceding the offer date.

The subscription price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with

reorganization of capital restructure.

Since the date of the adoption, no share option had been granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme and there are no outstanding

share options.

EMPLOYEE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management of the
Group (the “Employee Share Award Scheme”) has been adopted by certain
Shareholders (namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr. Che Fengsheng and
Dr. Guo Weicheng) on 25 October 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). Plenty Gold
Enterprises Limited, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors
(the “Settlors”) of a trust, has reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000 shares
of the Company (the “Plenty Gold Shares”) for the Employee Share Award
Scheme. On 25 January 2013, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. contributed an
additional 3,750,000 shares of the Company (together with the Plenty Gold
Shares, the “Reserve Shares”) to the Employee Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co
(a private trust company established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-
owned by Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited) has been appointed as the trustee
(the “Scheme Trustee”) to hold the Reserve Shares under the Employee Share
Award Scheme, and the Scheme Trustee will, upon receiving instructions from
the Remuneration Committee, award to selected management personnel and
employees of the Group (excluding Directors) (a “Grantee”) the rights to acquire
the Reserve Shares (“Awards”) at a price to be determined by the Remuneration

Committee.
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The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting of the existing shares of
the Company and no new shares will be issued by the Company pursuant to this
arrangement. The Reserve Shares will not be counted towards the public float
as Grantees of Awards will be selected management personnel of the Group
(excluding Directors) and the Settlors are connected persons. All related award
schemes (including this Employee Share Award Scheme) will not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee shall determine which employee will be granted the Awards, and
Awards may be granted at any time during a period of three years commencing
from the Adoption Date. Subject to satisfying certain terms and conditions for
exercise of the Awards, including certain vesting conditions and performance
targets (if any), a Grantee may exercise any portion of his or her Award accepted
by him/her at any time before the deadline for exercising the Award as stated in

the offer letter from the Scheme Trustee to such employee.

On 27 September 2013, 234 employees of the Group were granted Awards
entitling them to acquire an aggregate of 19,750,000 shares of the Company
from the Trustee Co at an exercise price of HKD3.19 per share. On 21 October
2013, 6 employees of the Group were granted Awards entitling them to acquire
an aggregate of 2,050,000 shares of the Company from the Trustee Co at an
exercise price of HKDO0.70 per share. Subject to certain vesting conditions and
the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), such Awards shall be
exercisable over a period of five years commencing from the date on which the

Awards were granted.

On 28 June 2016, 234 employees of the Group (the “Selected Participants”)
were granted new Awards (“New Awards”) entitling them to acquire an
aggregate of 31,448,172 ordinary shares of par value HKDO0.01 each of the
Company at an exercise price of HKD1.57 on the condition that the Selected
Participants will surrender the existing Awards. Subject to certain vesting
conditions and the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), the New
Awards shall be exerciseable over a period of five years commencing from the

date on which the New Awards are granted.

As of 31 December 2017, a total of 46 employees have exercised their Awards
involving 2,260,166 shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to its existing Shareholders.
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SR s A 4 )l By PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
OF THE COMPANY
T A AE B A W o O SC BT DL AR AR A During the Period, the Company repurchased 115,602,000 shares through the Stock

Fy281.8 1 H ¥ U (30 BR 4% T B S AT ) B Exchange at a total consideration, before expenses, of approximately HKD281.8 million.
115,602,000 B o JAAAFHE 1T > A B Oy Such shares have been cancelled as at the date of this report. Details of repurchase are as

CHEES o AR REEAT follows:
HHE R
e AR
gipil)e B o419V HHEE H#

Number of Highest Lowest

ordinary price paid price paid Equivalent
shares per share per share HKD to RMB
Q’:/ H Month/Year repurchased HKD HKD Million Million
| January 2017 48,874,000 2.24 2.15 107.9 96.5
e v S| February 2017 57,728,000 2.59 2.24 144.1 127.4
e v | April 2017 9,000,000 3.34 3.25 29.8 26.5

Mt Total 115,602,000 281.8 250.4
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2017, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers were 2.9% and 10.0% respectively of the Group’s sales for
the Year.

In 2017, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
and five largest suppliers were 20.3% and 49.4% respectively of the Group’s

purchases for the Year.

Neither the Directors or chief executive or any of their close associates or any
Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the

Group's five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related-party transactions of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in Note 34 to Financial Statements. None of
these transactions constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not conducted any
other connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined
under the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review

requirements under the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary shares at a price
of HKD4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed
below, the net proceeds raised from such international placing and public
offer, being approximately HKD6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB5,407.6 million), are used in accordance with the purposes disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 15 October 2010.
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As at 31 December 2017, approximately RMB5,407.6 million raised from the

global offering of the Company was used for the purposes and approximately in

the amounts set out below:

®  approximately RMB540.8 million was used for our product development

and research;

®  approximately RMB540.7 million was used for the development of our

existing products;

®  approximately RMB74.5 million was used for acquisition of products;

®  approximately RMB551.1 million was used for funding the construction

of our two new production facilities located in Beijing and Langfang;

®  approximately RMB300.3 million was used for funding the construction

of production facilities in Jilin Province and Liaoning Province;

®  approximately RMB3,351.8 million was used for mergers and acquisitions;

and

®  approximately RMB48.4 million was used for enhancement of our sales

and distribution efforts.

As at 31 December 2017, proceeds from the international placing and public

offer of the Company have been fully utilized.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year ended 31

December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO)

Mr. Meng Xianhui (Deputy General Manager)
(resigned on 8 December 2017)

Mzr. Choi Yian Chong (CFO)
(appointed on 8 December 2017)

Dr. Guo Feng (appointed on 8 December 2017 and
resigned on 20 April 2018)

Dr. Zhang Jionglong (CIO)
(appointed on 20 April 2018)

Ms. Chen Yan Ling (appointed on 20 April 2018)
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Non-executive Directors

Dr. Zhang Jionglong (resigned on 8 December 2017)
Mr. Homer Sun (resigned on 20 April 2018)
Mr. Kim Jin Ha (appointed on 8 December 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Sun
Mzr. Tsang Wah Kwong
Mr. Zhu Xun

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
under the Section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of

this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Tsang
Wah Kwong shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves

for re-election as Directors at the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong and Dr. Guo Feng were appointed by the Board as an
executive Director and Mr. Kim Jin Ha was appointed by the Board as a non-
executive Director on 8 December 2017. Dr. Guo Feng and Mr. Homer Sun
were resigned as an executive Director and a non-executive Director respectively
on 20 April 2017. On the same day, Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Ms. Chen Yan
Ling were appointed by the Board as the executive Directors. In accordance
with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Choi, Mr. Kim, Dr. Zhang and Ms.
Chen shall hold office until the Annual General Meeting, and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2018 Annual General

Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng being the executive Directors,
renewed their service contracts with the Company on 27 October 2016 for a
term of three years commencing from 28 October 2016, subject to termination
before expiry by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing
to the other. Each of Dr. Che and Dr. Guo will receive an annual salary (including
any director’s fees) of RMB10,000,000 and RMB6,000,000 respectively (such
annual salary is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration
Committee) and a discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee at their discretion, having regard to the performance
of the relevant executive Director.

Mzr. Choi has entered into service contracts with the Company on 26 March
2018 for a term of three years commencing from 26 March 2018, subject to
termination before expiry by either party giving not less than three months’
notice in writing to the other. Mr. Choi Yiau Chong will receive an annual
salary (including director’s fee) of HKD3,600,000.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Ms. Chen Yan Ling have not yet entered into any director
service agreement with the Company. No designated length of service have been
agreed between Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Ms. Chen Yan Ling and the Company. Dr.
Zhang Jionglong and Ms. Chen Yan Ling will hold office until the next general
meeting of the Company and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration of Dr.
Zhang Jionglong and Ms. Chen Yan Ling will be determined by the remuneration
committee under the Board with reference to his duties, responsibilities and
experience, and prevailing market conditions.

Such executive Director shall abstain from voting, and not be counted in the
quorum, in respect of any resolution of the Board approving the determination
of the salary, bonus and other benefits payable to him.

Mr. Homer Sun being the non-executive Director, renewed his letter of
appointment with the Company on 27 October 2017 for a term of one year
commencing from 18 August 2017 and Kim Jin Ha, being the non-executive
Director, renewed his letter of appointment with the Company on 8 December
2017, for a term of one year commencing from 28 October 2016 The non-
executive Directors will not receive any remuneration from the Company.

Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun, being the
independent non-executive Directors, renewed their respective letters of
appointment with the Company on 27 October 2017, 4 September 2017 and
20 February 2018 respectively for a term of one year, commencing from 28
October 2017, 4 September 2017 and 20 February 2018 respectively. The 2017
annual fees for Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun are
HKD350,000, HKD350,000 and RMB280,000 respectively.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors standing for re-
election at the 2018 AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than the statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

During the Year, no Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) are considered to have an interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group. Furthermore, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group'’s business in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
has been entered into between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries nor the

Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to Article 164 of the Company’s bye-laws, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate directors” and

officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code:
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() EFHRBA PR (i) Directors’ interests in Shares

B e A

FA

B 4 8 Approximate

HEUA W/ S Total Number percentage of

Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity of Shares Shareholding

TR R TR EER (M) 5,907,898,697 (Uf ) (Fi3k4) 62.38% (11 8)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 5,252,042,038 Ik (HF ) 8,779,659 (IR A) 0.09% (IRA)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 5,907,898,697 (L) (Note 4) 62.38% (L)
5,252,042,038 Shares (L) 8,779,659 (9) 0.09% (5)

ERE MR T A (5 2)
11,879,659 1B (47
8,779,659 Mt (R )
Settlor of a trust (Note 2)
11,879,659 Shares (L)
8,779,659 Shares (S)

e i
800,000 i (47
Interest of spouse

800,000 Shares (L)

HAbHER (FHk3)
925,757,000 & (JF 8 )
Other interest (Note 3)

925,757,000 Shares (L)

AR HafEa A 5,907,898,697 (Jf-47) (H3k 6) 62.38% (41 8)
Dr. Guo Weicheng 11,350,000 % (4F4) 5,907,898,697 (L) (Note 6) 62.38% (L)
Beneficial Owner

11,350,000 Shares (L)

I ERTA
318,386,000 & (4715 )
Settlor of a trust

318,386,000 Shares (L)

HARER (ML)
5,813,962,697 & (447
Other interest (Note 5)
5,813,962,697 Shares (L)

I|
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Limiced 737l 4 19 42 22 7 4,754,594,038
B B 497,448,000 I 53 v A R 4 =

A ¥ T B R & 5 RE(Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limiced ([ % §€ A 2
ADAEZENWMERTAZ— i
BRI ZRENA AIFFA 9 11,879,659 i
JBe o (A ) o A7 W 2 S i 8,779,659 ik
et R R

R F5 B B R 0155 317 Jes1s i > &
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MR R SRR R A A
HE i SR A o A HE 47 19 282,580,000 fi%
329,736,000 1% ~ 113,180,000/ K 200,261,000 1%
e AT RE AR o

1£5,907,898,697 M I 43 1 4 45 v+ BN
THEE A A 2 Pk R £ LA 2 A b
B i 282,580,000 FBE M 1 1 i A HE AT B
WAL R R A

HEPERE J5 S B IR 55317 J318 0k > 6
AR A R 0 el S TR A
HEIR AR o R R R B A AT
HEGR B R M HERR 119 5,264,721,697 Ik ~
235,800,000 % ~ 113,180,000 % &% 200,261,000
TR P B AT HE A
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Dr. Che Fengsheng is the beneficial owner of approximately 60% of the issued share
capital of Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”) as well as the entire
issued share capital of Network Victory Limited. As such, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the 4,754,594,038 shares and 497,448,000 shares held
by Plenty Gold and Network Victory Limited in the Company, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited (“Trustee Co”) is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the long position in 11,879,659 shares and the short

position in 8,779,659 shares held by Trustee Co.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interested in the 282,580,000 shares, 329,736,000 shares, 113,180,000 shares
and 200,261,000 shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,907,898,697 shares, Dr. Che Fengsheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 282,580,000 shares through

both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be
interested in the 5,264,721,697 shares, 235,800,000 shares, 113,180,000 shares
and 200,261,000 shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,907,898,697 shares, Dr. Guo Weicheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 235,800,000 shares through

both the nature of settlor of a trust and other interest.

The Letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such shares and the letter “S”

denotes the Director’s short position in such shares.



(i) 2B 3 RE I o A rh R RE £

R B ;1 44
Name of
Associated 322
Corporation Name of Director
Plenty Gold ST A

Dr. Che Fengsheng
Plenty Gold AL

Dr. Guo Weicheng

B ESCRTeERE AN > A TR K
% 2 I B A AR R SO AR AR B I (2
LRI S B R 5 XV i) 2 e~ B
1 B AR5 o B AR R 2 B B 12 X v R 6
7 B 8 5y MR A ) S A B 2 B A R
(CLIE AR A8 27 B B0 ) 2 A B R S 2 o
WA 2 B BOR ) SUCBRAE AR
I7 KRR 352 We/a A7 B2 B Rt 2 fE 4 o
PR > SRR BN RIZHR & A 2 ] OB AZ i 2
AR IR -

HEH BB By s 05 Z B

ARG A A AR AR - AT
N BB AL SOR BUAF T LR R R A
i 17 B A MR i HER 5 DA R AR
AR BE IR AEAT BT RE A o AN R] KPR
Oy A] ~ SLAT AR B 2 7 O 20 22 AT ] 2 B
B4 A% T AT R Al A R A S
A o

K

WEEF-LHFET A= HIREE . AL
LG A AT

JBe S 48 4 T

Wi £ SO 5 % 1R B B SE Rt BISL - AL R
A BE R Sl 06 5T S A AT % 440 8 1 G

=R

Report of Directors

(i) Directors’ interest in the shares of associated corporations

JREHERE A T 4 b
RESRYER Sy Approximate
Nature of Bty 8 H percentage of
Interest/Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
ot o 4,511,813 60.16%
Beneficial interest
g o 1,989,915 26.53%

Beneficial interest

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive and their associates
had any interests or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors,
chief executive or their respective spouse or children under 18 to acquire
beneficial interests by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during
the Year. The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were not
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has not made any
donations.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Employee Share Award Scheme as disclosed above, the Company
did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Company’s bye-laws, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty. Provided that such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to the Director.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the

Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the following Shareholders, other than the Directors

or chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5%
or more (including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company:

Harlb
JBe 3 4 MR, Sy JBe 3 4 3 Approximate
Name Nature of Interest/ Total Number percentage of
of Shareholder Capacity of Shares Shareholding
EEERE Z ek MHERR (LD 5,908,614,197 (WP ) (FFE 3) 62.39% (S )
Mr. Meng Xianhui Interest in a controlled 5,908,614,197 (L) (Note 3) 62.39% (L)

corporation (Note 1)
113,180,000 i (474 )
113,180,000 Shares (L)

HARER (B 5E 2)
5,908,614,197 I (4F )
Other interest (Note 2)
5,908,614,197 Shares (L)

124 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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[EF ¥4
JBe S 4 WER PR B 1y By 48 9 Approximate
Name Nature of Interest/ Total Number percentage of
of Shareholder Capacity of Shares Shareholding

SR HE A XAk AL (MR 4) 5,908,614,197 (47 55) (HH3E6) 62.39% (4 H)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong Interest in a controlled 5,908,614,197 (L) (Note 6) 62.39% (L)
corporation (Note 4)
198,940,000 B (4F )
198,940,000 Shares (L)

Tic {5 1 4
1,321,000 & (55 5)
Interest of spouse
1,321,000 Shares (L)

FoAth %5 (B 3E S)
5,906,793,197 I (4 5)
Other interest (Note 5)
5,906,793,197 Shares (L)

Plenty Gold (Fft5E7) A A 4,766,473,697 (U7 A7) (5t s) 50.33%
Plenty Gold (Note 7) 4,754,594,038 it (47 7) 4,766,473,697 (L) (Note 8)

Beneficial owner

4,754,594,038 Shares (L)

fERtMERT A

11,879,659 ik (47 &) 8,779,659 (IR A) (Hi&E8) 0.09%

8,779,659 It (IR ) 8,779,659 (S) (Note 8)

Settlor of a trust

11,879,659 Shares (L)

8,779,659 Shares (S)
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Mr. Meng Xianhui is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Smart Top
Overseas Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 113,180,000 Shares held by Smart

Top Overseas Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested
in the 5,264,721,697 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares and 200,261,000
Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang

Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,907,898,697 Shares, Mr. Meng Xianhui is interested in or
deemed to be interested in the long position in 113,180,000 Shares through both the nature

of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Keen Mate
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 198,940,000 Shares held by Keen Mate

Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be interested
in the 5,264,721,697 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares and 198,440,000
Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang

Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,907,898,697 Shares, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is interested in or
deemed to be interested in the long position in 198,440,000 Shares through both the nature

of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Plenty Gold directly holds 4,754,594,038 shares in the Company. It is also the sole
shareholder of Trustee Co which has interest in 11,879,659 (L) shares and short position
in 8,779,659 (S) shares in the Company. Accordingly, Plenty Gold is deemed to be have
interest in the 11,879,659 (L) shares and short position in the 8,779,659 (S) shares held by

Trustee Co.

The letter “L” denotes the Shareholder’s long position in such shares and the letter “S”

denotes the Shareholder’s short position in such shares.
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Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
recorded under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 87 to
106 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Base on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital were held by members of the public as at the date of this annual report as

required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in Note 37 to the

Financial Statements.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young was appointed again as the auditor at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 16 June 2017.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 were audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company

will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in the auditor of the

Company in the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

26 March 2018
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 137 to 268, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.
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Key audit matter
Impairment of goodwill

The Group had significant goodwill amounting to approximately
RMB2.8 billion as at 31 December 2017, arising from the
acquisition of subsidiaries. Goodwill was allocated to each of
the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, which
was expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Under IFRSs, the Group is required to at least annually perform
the impairment test for goodwill. The impairment test was based
on the recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs to which the
goodwill was allocated. The management performed the impairment
test based on the value in use calculation using discounted cash
flow projections. This matter was significant to our audit because
the impairment test process was complex and involved significant

judgements.

Please refer to Note 2.11 “Goodwill”, Note 4(b) “Goodwill
impairment” and Note 8 “Goodwill” to the consolidated financial

statements for related disclosure.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved valuation specialists to assist us in evaluation of
the key assumptions and methodologies used in the impairment
analysis, in particular discount rate and long term growth rate.
We paid specific attention to the forecasts used with respect to
future revenues and operating results by comparing the forecasts
with the historical performance of the respective CGUs and the
business development plan. Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy
of the Group's disclosures concerning goodwill in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Key audit matter
Capitalisation of development costs

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capitalised development
costs amounting to approximately RMB227 million for the
development of new pharmaceutical products. The expenditure
on development activities was capitalised when all the criteria
mentioned in Note 2.12(a) “Research and development” were
satisfied. Significant management estimation and judgment were
required in determining whether the Group met the capitalisation

criteria.

Note

4(e) “Capitalisation of development costs” and Note 9 “Intangible

Please refer to Note 2.12(a) “Research and development”,
assets” to the consolidated financial statements for related

disclosure.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We assessed the compliance of capitalisation criteria used by the
Group with ISA 38, evaluated the management judgment on the
satisfaction of criteria through comparison to industry practice,
and obtained trial readouts and regulatory announcements. We
obtained an understanding of the Group’s internal governance
and approval process and examined the internal commercial and
technical feasibility reports. We also assessed the adequacy of the

Group’s disclosures of capitalisation of development costs.
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Key audit matter
Impairment of intangible assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had deferred development
costs and product development in progress amounting to
approximately RMB1,084 million and RMB227 million,
respectively. The management made impairment assessment based
on estimated future cash flows of each pharmaceutical patent
or license in capitalisation of development costs and projected
product lifecycles experienced in the pharmaceutical industry.
This matter involved significant management judgements and
estimates, such as forecasted revenue growth, future beneficial life,
profit margin and discount rate. Changes in these assumptions

might lead to a change in the impairment results.

Please refer to Note 2.12 “Intangible assets”, Note 4(a)
“Impairment of deferred development costs” and Note 9
“Intangible assets” to the consolidated financial statements for

related disclosure.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved valuation specialists to assist us in evaluation of
the key assumptions and methodologies used in the impairment
analysis, in particular discount rate and future beneficial life. We
checked the key assumptions including the product’s projected
market share, expected selling price and associated costs to be
incurred against industrial analyst commentaries, consensus
forecasts of certain therapeutic area and benchmark data for
comparable companies where available. We also considered the
reliability of the management’s forecast by comparison of the
actual results and the projections made in prior periods. We
evaluated the Group's disclosures of impairment of intangible

assets in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with TFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from errot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

U Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

1 34 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

U Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Leung Wai Lap, Philip.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
Bt ZE-LE CE-RF
Notes 2017 2016
AR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Je B NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YIZE ~ BB B Property, plant and equipment 6 2,453,594 2,104,299
Eia<C/ES Investment properties 7 17,814 29,103
A Goodwill 8 2,843,903 2,247,728
& e Intangible assets 9 1,338,006 578,998
T Hh i IR Land use rights 10 702,661 647,769
i FIHE 2 IR AT A& Investments accounted for
using the equity method 12 1,012,091 1,272,851
R AE P AR B Deferred income tax assets 22 127,514 35,883
AJ R Available-for-sale financial assets 13 39,076 20,000
HoAhIE i) & Other non-current assets 14 282,880 56,000
I T A Total non-current assets 8,817,539 6,992,631
HEEE CURRENT ASSETS
T& Inventories 15 227,970 200,680
F 5 B oAt RE N 3k Trade and other receivables 16 747,141 877,256
] it o A Available-for-sale financial assets 13 2,967,354 1,709,964
B kBG5S EY Cash and cash equivalents 17 831,859 2,407,073
MENEEAE Total current assets 4,774,324 5,194,973
e E TOTAL ASSETS 13,591,863 12,187,604
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R+ZHA=+—H

As at 31 December
B 5 R —-BE R
Notes 2017 2016

AR T ARWTL
RMB’000  RMB’000

R EQUITY
NGk 2PN Ay B Equity attributable to owners of the Company
A Share capital 18 78,233 79,443
Ji A7 Treasury shares 18 — (255)
e A3 ¥ A Share premium 18 4,093,317 4,344,229
HoA it Other reserves 19 166,210 137,096
B8 2 F Retained earnings 19 6,719,232 6,340,925
11,056,992 10,901,438
e ek Non-controlling interests 279,078 69,655
MRS Total equity 11,336,070 10,971,093
Bl iR NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TIPSR B 1E Deferred income tax liabilities 22 264,396 74,094
HoAhIF B & Other non-current liabilities 20 88,084 103,924
JE R B A A Total non-current liabilities 352,480 178,018
WE R CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 B A A AR X Trade and other payables 21 1,804,787 827,306
R0 B A58 £ £ Current income tax liabilities 70,829 158,800
(=% Borrowings - 8,280
o fth 37 8 A £ Other current liabilities 20 27,697 44,107
B B AR Total current liabilities 1,903,313 1,038,493
MR TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,255,793 1,216,511
HE 25 e B A TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,591,863 12,187,604
HET 6 4 Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
#HH HH Director Director

55 145 % 268 BN B 5E 2 W0 55 45 6 A B 3R R 10 The notes on pages 145 to 268 are an integral part of these consolidated

FAE ) financial statements.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

Bk ZE-LE CE-RF
Notes 2017 2016
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
et Revenue 23 2,745,809 3,185,699
S A Cost of sales 24 (758,956) (996,753)
Bl GROSS PROFIT 1,986,853 2,188,946
FHAb A Other income 23 136,534 166,434
HoAth i £z — V54R Other gains - net 23 313,917 486,289
4 HERR I A Wi AR Gain on derecognition of associates — 3,851
K HERR BB A R i 2 Gain on derecognition of subsidiaries 33 125,771 871
8 A Distribution costs 24 (227,633) (145,765)
TTH 32 Administrative expenses 24 (629,028) (540,467)
HAh B Other expenses 24 (18,158) (29,003)
Syl OPERATING PROFIT 1,688,256 2,131,156
HAHS B 52 Finance expenses (46) (210)
gl PR A T R Y Share of profits of investments accounted
& i for using the equity method 12 40,865 21,624
Wik i 255 I ¥ ) PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,729,075 2,152,570
RES b Income tax expense 27 (250,167) (472,732)
Caisiyll PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,478,908 1,679,838
VL N A% F Attributable to:
/NCIE7 2N Owners of the Company 1,448,935 1,708,239
FRiig ) Non-controlling interests 29,973 (28,401)
1,478,908 1,679,838
MEBREREBEARD A
2017 F E & &
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Fif &t “E2—bE ZFERE
Notes 2017 2016
ANR¥EFL AREFL

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

A B i PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,478,908 1,679,838
Hab 2w A OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
I FLAE A TR B A R R A Y Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
HA 2 TEIA - to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
] it R Available-for-sale investments:
A TFEEEE) Changes in fair value 93,138 87,260
Et A SR G 1E A R I s B 1E Reclassification adjustments for gains included
W R in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
— R B s — Gain on disposal (85,137) (97,676)
ERERMRERA (R ) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
BB (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 13 8,001 (10,416)
G T YN Y TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,486,909 1,669,422
DL AL A - Attributable to:
/NG PN Owners of the Company 1,456,936 1,697,823
e 4 Non-controlling interests 29,973 (28,401)
A 2 A B TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR 1,486,909 1,669,422

AN TS BAEL R \MENG A EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
A JEE i 1 B 45 FBC R A X i 2 Basic and diluted earnings per share
for profit for the year 28 15.34} 16847

55145 % 268 EH A M E 2 LS5 AR A B IR R The notes on pages 145 to 268 are an integral part of these consolidated

o \ . o
%Eﬁi%ﬁ/ ° financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

LINTEZIN {17
Attributable to owners of the Company
EREg o

MhfzE ok AR RbEE  HbRt RERA Non- b o

Notes Share Treasury Share Other Retained M5t controlling Total

capital shares premium reserves earnings Total interests equity

ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBFT ARETLT ARETT AREFT

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000

REZ—AE—A—H At 1 January 2016 85,610 — 54848 172541 5,262,640 11,095,639 96,093 11,191,732

A A Profit for the year = = = —  1,708239 1,708,239 (28401) 1,679,838
FERbRTIA Other comprehensive income for the year

Wk B EATEES »  Changes in fair value of available-for-

B sale investments, net of tax 13 - - = (10416) = (10416) = (10416)
FEATRAEE Total comprehensive income for the year — — — (10416) 1,708,239 1,697,823 (28401) 1,669,422
1 B e ) < Employees share award scheme:

— ¢ B RS (EfE ~ Value of employee services 26 — — — (469) — (469) — (469)
“E-RERYKRE Final 2015 dividends 29 - - - — @750 63,750 — (463,750
SR Interim 2016 dividend 9 - - - — (43309 (143,309) — (143309
i A Repurchase of shares 18 = (6:422)  (1,230,619) = — (1,037,041 — (1,237,041
FESHEEAE M Cancellation of treasury shares 18 (6,167) 6,167 - - - — — -
HEE PR RES Transfer to PRC statuary reserve fund 19 — — — 22,895 (22,895) — — —
— I A A HERRBRE S Capital injection from non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary - - — (70) - (70) 7,240 7,170
W= B A Acquisition of an additional interest

HAMER in a subsidiary = = = (47,385) = (47,385) 6,277 (52,662)
REF—AE At 31 December 2016

TZHZ1—H 79,443 (255) 4,344,029 137,096 6,340,925 10,901,438 69,655 10,971,093
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR NHERG
Attributable to owners of the Company
FEEMHE i
i3 Ak Al Wbt EURE REEN Non- il 4]
Notes Share  Treasury Share Other  Retained A5t controlling Total
capital shares  premium reserves earnings Total interests equity

ARWTE ARKFE ARWTE ARKTE AREKTZ ARETE ARETZ ARKTZE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00)  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

WZF—tE—H—H At 1 January 2017 79,443 (255) 4,344,229 137,09 6,340,925 10,901,438 69,655 10971,093
AR A Profit for the year = = = — 1448935 1448935 29973 1478908
FEHMbARTIRA Other comprehensive income for the year
W EREATEZS > Change in fair value of available-for-sale
RRBIA investments, net of tax 13 - — — 8,001 - 8,001 — 8,001
SRR S Total comprehensive income for the year — — — 8,001 1448935 1,456,936 29973 1,486,909
1 B e 4 Bt ) - Employees share award scheme:
—{E BMREE(E ~ Value of employee services 26 - — - 1,775 - 1,775 - 1,775
“E-ANERBIRE Final 2016 dividends 29 - - - = (35990D  (359901) = (359900)
B Special cash dividends 29 = = = — (5209100 (520,910 —  (520910)
“FLETHRE Interim 2017 dividends 29 - - - = (170479 (170479) = (170479)
BRI Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders - — — - - - 92,800) (92,800)
EATpEy Repurchase of shares 18 = 955)  (250912) = — (251,867 —  (251,867)
AT B AT Cancellation of treasury shares 18 (1,210) 1,210 — — — — — —
RS PR E RS Transfer to PRC statuary reserve fund 19 — — - 19,338 (19,338) — — —
HE—Z KB A Disposal of a subsidiary 33 - - - - - - 346 346
L M 8 7 A Non-controlling interests arising on
e R a newly established subsidiary — = = = = = 2,907 23,907
YR — R M A Acquisition of a subsidiary 32(b) = = = = = — 147997 247997
REZF—EEFZA=4—H Ac31 December 2017 78233 — 4093317 166210 6719232 11056992 279078 11,336,070

55145 2 268 H I Mt 2F A & A2 A W E N The notes on pages 145 to 268 are an integral part of these consolidated
B o financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Bk “F-bE ZEAE
Notes 2017 2016
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
REBEHBeHE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
EEEANBE Cash generated from operations 30 2,359,243 2,613,776
E A B B Income tax paid (441,653) (595,750)
RSB AR R Net cash flows from operating activities 1,917,590 2,018,026
BREFEHB SRR CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
HEEATHE Capital contribution to associates 12 (110,831) (108,000)
HENHE A B S A TR Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries 33 139,646 20,624
B W 2 R B B A AR Net cash inflow from disposal of associates 12 — 75,336
e e i J 22 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries (576,114) —
SR - MR RS AR Payment for purchase of property, plant
and equipment (406,304) (241,116)
B AT B Purchase of intangible assets (22,165) (38,334)
i B 5 R RE Purchase of land use rights (58,564) (85,143)
i TR o e Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (12,434,239)  (9,513,100)
H A TR 5 S E AR SRR Proceeds from disposal
of available-for-sale financial assets 13 11,284,850 9,752,000
HEYIZE ~ R B s PR Ak Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 30 229 408
BB Fl R S Dividend received from a joint venture 12 — 40,000
B AE Interest received 86,238 97,676
WEFH ) B4R RETHE  Net cash flows (used in)/
from investing activities (2,097,254) 351
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HAEB AR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

i R -LE SRR
Notes 2017 2016
ANR¥EFL AREFL

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

TS B Bl i A CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
B &5 30H Repayment from borrowings 36 (3,500) —
i ] e e S A7 Repurchase and cancellation of shares 18 (251,867)  (1,237,041)
G e — R BT A R R SR A Acquisition of an additional interest

in a subsidiary — (52,662)
REOL TR 2 B G A 1) JEREREHE RS Non-controlling interests arising

on establishing new subsidiaries 3,907 —
30} UNCIE 23 Capital contribution by non-controlling

BRI shareholders of a subsidiary — 3,298

B AR Dividends paid (1,144,090) (607,059)
B FLE Interest paid — (210)
Rl 80 i ) B 4 i YR Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,395,550)  (1,893,674)

B4 RB &% (8P) / WmF4s  NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,575,214) 124,703
R BB EY) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,407,073 2,282,370
ERBLE KRB EFEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 17 831,859 2,407,073

5145 2 268 B M EE A 25 45 A MR I E The notes on pages 145 to 268 are an integral part of these consolidated
AR © financial statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BRE—Z— LA = — AL
For the year ended 31 December 2017

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an

exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are research
and development (“R&D”), and manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The holding company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”), a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands on 10
March 2004.

The address of the Company's registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, P.O. Box HM 1022, Hamilton HM DX, Bermuda. The
address of the principal place of business of the Group in Hong Kong is
Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, and the address of the principal place of business in Beijing
is 21/F, Building 2, Zhubang 2000, West Balizhuang, Chaoyang District,
Beijing 100025, the PRC.

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which include all IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations, promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”). These
financial statements also complied with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange.

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,

which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of

applying the Group's accounting policies.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BER b = L
For the year ended 31 December 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first

time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to TAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses
Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual Entities: Clarification of the
Improvements to IFRSs Scope of IFRS 12

2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. FEEHEHBORME ) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 CUE AL i oA A 2 A 1 s 2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

b e Al

75 452 (857 A 7 5% S A TS SR AR AR A D The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs

ISR N ERE R G &S that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

T I PR A T A ) o statements.

WHHEE  BRONAZEAE Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
B2 5E  Rafd! Share-based Payment Transactions'
Uzl

WIMBHE AR BRI Amendments to IFRS4  Applying IFRS 9 Financial
eI 2 4 550 BATRB LA FIE Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
71 S BIP Contracts'

B of /TR

HBpEaE MR IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
T 9 5%

WEBRE  AAAMEREY Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
RIS 9 SRR B IFE Negative Compensatior’

CHl

BBy REFHEAR S A Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
WHE 10N  HEELEZHY and IAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
BB RE  HEALE Joint Venturé'

HE I 28 5%
L)
(%)

BHBERE B A IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
R 15 97 with Customers'

WU EiEES Amendments to IFRS 15  Clarifications to Revenue from
RIS A4 Contracts with Customers'

BT
B H R A IFRS 16 Leases’
HERIE 16 9%

MEH RS KA’ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
HERS 17 5%

MR sHEl HEEL ARG E Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
5% 28 LY RN 7 Joint Ventures’

U]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RE-Z—HEF A= —HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 19

Transters of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments’

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28!

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,

IAS 12 and IAS 232

Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement?
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below. Of those standards,
IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 will be applicable for the Group's financial
year ending 31 December 2018 and are expected to have a
significant impact upon adoption. Whilst management has
performed a detailed assessment of the estimated impacts of these
standards, that assessment is based on the information currently
available to the Group. The actual impacts upon adoption could be
different to those below, depending on additional reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the Group at the

time of applying the standards.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies
to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety
as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if
the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction
is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. On adoption, entities are required to apply the
amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three
amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace TAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt IFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments against
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment of the impact
of the adoption of IFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the
classification and measurement and the impairment requirements

and are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held as available
for sale will be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the investments are intended to
be held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects
to apply the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot
be recycled to profit or loss when the investments are

derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either on
a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected credit losses
that are estimated based on the possible default events on its
other receivables within the next twelve months. The Group
expects that the provision for impairment to be made on 1
January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 9 will not be

material.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate ot joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,

the amendments are available for adoption now.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles
in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirement
under IFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments
are also intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of

applying the standard.

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 15 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only to
contracts that are not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group
expects that the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 January

2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not be material.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
SIC 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two elective recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability
to make lease payments and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
all leases using the same classification principle as in TAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under TAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the
practical expedients available and which transition approach and
reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 31(b) to the financial
statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately RMB2,114,000. Upon adoption of IFRS 16,
certain amounts included therein may need to be recognised as new
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however,
will be needed to determine the amount of new rights of use assets
and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to,
any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases

entered into before the date of adoption.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 28 issued in October 2017 clarify that the
scope exclusion of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied and does not
include long-term interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS
9, rather than IAS 28, including the impairment requirements
under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests. IAS 28
is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an
associate ot joint venture and impairment of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments on 1 January 2019 and will assess its business model
for such long-term interests based on the facts and circumstances
that exist on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief from
restating comparative information for prior periods upon adoption

of the amendments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 40, issued in December 2016, clarify when
an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment property.
The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change
in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the
classification of property held at the date that it first applies the
amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the
conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance on how
to determine the date of the transaction when applying IAS
21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary
asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary
liability (such as deferred income) arising from the payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation
on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from
the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior reporting
period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies
the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred
to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about
the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is
to be applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without
the use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from
1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Subsidiaries
2.4.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their

fair values at the acquisition date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.4.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by IFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.4.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
TAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly

in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's

accounting policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.4.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiaries in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.5

2.4.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of

the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or

joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group'’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's

investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal

is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-

current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and

obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

U its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

J its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

U its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the

joint operation; and

U its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred

jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the Group’s
interest in a joint operation are accounted for in accordance with
the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues

and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the

board of the Company that makes strategic decisions.



2. BEEHEORBEE )

2.8 AN

(a)

(b)

I EY T L

AR S T A R ) B B R B
BRI R T L%
e E EAOBBI B (2
AER W) RHH SR E H
RIGILA AT DR & &
AEENEIIRHARKE
3] -

R 5 R i bk

IS 5 Ty H 58 By FBCE B
Al 42 H F A9 A5 E H 3989 1
MR RN - 4%
5 4 5 L S DL Gt A
B EE R AR RER
WA R M SR AR > B
fn MRS > MR HE 4R AR AE
fER G ERB SR EEH MR
B BCE TR AR -

Jr A B 56 R i )5 5 5 1R 4
B Ho Aty 4 T Wi £ 3R T A
B S J B At e i — 15 R
25 o

DA G(E 3 8 2 T A5 o
BRI AT EEE
e oy 5 S A S Y I
FIRMHZ K2 B E L2
R 22 R o A7 B R A A
B 2 AR A D
11T B T 0 22 L 1t 528 B 7 A
T ONT T

TR R E % R R (I
AV EFTA G 2 HAR)
BB BB R RSN
FEEG - FEHEMEE
(7> 05 T o 4 HE 2R )
A A 2 T i
Ao

25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZRLETAST—HIREE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s

functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
profit or loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income within “other expenses” or “other

gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions);

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly factories and
offices. Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Historical cost includes purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for

its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss

during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Residual rate ~ Estimated useful lives

Buildings 5% 10- 35 years
Production and electronic equipment 3% 3 - 10 years
Oftice equipment 3% 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5% 4-10 years

Construction in progress represents properties and plants under
construction and is stated at cost less any impairment losses. This
includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in
progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed

and ready for use.

MEBEZREEER D A
2017 & E

al

off

171



172

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
RE=R— A = — AL
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. BEEHEORBEE )

2.9

2.10

W% ~ W Rt ()

i RO L T 42 01
WA R - AR
H g -

i 07 ) B T (L 7 LA T i e
A > FLHR A (1 B RS0 52wl [m]
S (HaE2.14) -

H B R 2 2 0 LU A5 KR B R
{E A > MR R R S Al 4 T i
RN T FC A A — 30 7 AR o

BEYE

R 3 (L A5 A ) o 1
RIS BB A R (R
S o ELE A S BT A P 0403 o

BB L A BT R
TR « 8 ok B ARk A Y 3E
At o P 430 R L B AR 4 i
ZHMBEERTH - RS iE A
teat SR E A R B RIRE
(R AT AR - ERT 2 R B
BIREETAH A -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.14).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains - net” in the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, comprising office buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that

is not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using a
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over the estimated useful lives of the properties. The residual values
and useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The effects of
any revision are included in the profit or loss when the changes

arise.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in

profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
petforms its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (the “CGUs”), or groups
of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of

the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGUs)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of

and the portion of the CGU retained.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Intangible assets

(@ Research and development

(i)

(i)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with
the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
is capitalised under the category of “product
development in progress” if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible, the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete the
development, the Group has sufficient ability to use or
sell the asset, the asset will generate future economic
benefit, and the cost can be reliably measured. Upon
the commencement of the commercial production of
a product, the expenditure on development activities
is transferred to “deferred development costs” and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of its expected benefit. Research and development
costs comprise costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that can be

allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

Deferred development costs that are acquired by
the Group are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated

amortisation and any impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Research and development (Continued)

(iii)  Subsequent expenditure on development activities
after its acquisition or its completion is recognised as
an expense when it is incurred unless it is probable
that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate
future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standard of performance and this expenditure
can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If
these conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure

is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

(iv)  Amortisation of deferred development costs is charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical
cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks over their estimated useful

lives of 5 to 10 years.

Computer systems

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 3 to

5 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Intangible assets (Continued)
(d) Customer relationships

The customer relationships have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the

straight-line method over the expected life of 5 years.

The amortisation period and amortisation method of
intangible assets are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. The effects of any revision are recognised

in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Land use rights

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-term
interests in the usage of land. It is stated at cost and charged to
profit or loss over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-

line basis, net of any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial assets

2.15.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose

for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’
and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the consolidated

statement of financial position (Notes 2.18 and 2.19).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it

within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

MEBEZREEER D A
2017 & E

al

off

177



B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
RE=R— A = — AL
For the year ended 31 December 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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2.15 Financial assets (Continued)

2.15.2Recognition and measurement
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Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date (the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset). Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables ate
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as ‘change in value

of available-for-sale financial assets’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale

R4 [ A RECBOR B A RN equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
IS e N A =Rl =X (ke 1] statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
e d KRR AR - as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
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payments is established.
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BEZRLETAST—HIREE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. If a loan or investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using

an observable market price.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the profit or loss.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exist, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the

impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the investment below its cost is an evidence
that the asset is impaired. If any such evidence exists,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are

not reversed through profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises research and
development costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as

current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are

shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Share capital

2.21

2.22

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or awards are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over

the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZRLETAST—HIREE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income, except to the extent that it

relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporaty differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associate. Only when there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not

recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which

the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in the retirement insurance and
medical insurance scheme organised by the local social
security bureau pursuant to the relevant provisions. The
Group is required to make monthly contribution in respect
of the above insurance scheme to the local social security
bureau based on the monthly salaries of its employees. The
Group has no further liabilities other than the above defined
contribution. The Group's contributions under the scheme
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are

discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a

past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Employee leaves entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

2.25 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share based payment transaction

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(awards) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the awards is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards

granted:

. including any market performance conditions (for

example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);

and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save or

holding shares for a specified period of time).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share based payment transaction
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of awards that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service

commencement period and grant date.

Share-based payment transaction among group entities

The grant by the Company of awards over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a

corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the group has a

present legal obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

|

MEBEZREEERALT
2017 & E

off

187



188

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
BER b = L

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. BEEHEORBEE )

2.27

2.28

U 4 Bl
SR R B ) FLA S
0 2 I B RS - BB
DA TR -

S RS AS A B ) R 6 B 7 AR SE
Sl BELHE B8 5 A8 ) A B
BT ST A A 1 L i %
THG Wi 4 S T B

A ~ W s A B A BUR
BYE IR B A R b aH R AE BURHE
Bl > AR B E W T AR T R 4%
HREER RN R -

Wik e
Wi 52 2 W sORE S R 9 2T
B RO R o BEOIR R > F0ER
i - B R B EBESIE - Fik
i YO SRR 200 T S B~ R AR
M ERARA AT REVA A B R A
1T A% 58 0 4 L B 14 45 5 St
HEGRIEIR - AR B R a o
AL RIEIR RSO S BF
R ~ 28 R B A TR DR R
A Ah L -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27

2.28

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received

and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match them

with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis

over the expected lives of the related assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the group entity; and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of transaction and

the specifics of each arrangement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of pharmaceutical
products in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered products
to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until
the products have been shipped to the specified locations,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract and
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been

satisfied.

Sales of distribution rights

Sales of distribution rights are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the term of the distribution

rights.

Rendering of services

Hospital service income is recognised when the service is

rendered.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term

of the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are

recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by

the Company’s shareholders or directors where appropriate.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iif)

is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.32 Related parties

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary

of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of

the post-employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);

and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including currency risk, price risk, cash flow interest

rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is RMB. All of the revenues of the Group
are derived from operations in the PRC. The financial
instruments of the Group are mainly denominated
in RMB. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The main foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group were certain
cash and cash equivalents (Note 17), which were
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”), Hong
Kong Dollars (‘HKD”), Great Britain Pound (‘GBP”)
and Euro (“‘EUR”). In the opinion of the executive
directors of the board of the Company, the Group
does not have significant exposure to foreign exchange

risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedge policy.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (2016: 3%) against USD
with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
have been approximately RMB10,494,000 (2016:
RMB38,213,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD-

denominated cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (2016: 3%) against HKD
with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
have been approximately RMB608,000 (2016:
RMB31,324,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD-

denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (2016: 3%) against GBP with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately RMB4,216,000 (2016: Nil) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of GBP-denominated cash and

cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (2016: 3%) against EUR with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately RMB459,000 (2016: Nil) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of EUR-denominated cash and

cash equivalents.
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii)  Price risk

The Group is not exposed to any significant equity

market risk, nor exposed to any commodity price risk.

(iff)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The interest-bearing assets of the Group mainly
include the available-for sale financial assets and
cash and cash equivalents, details of which have been
disclosed in Notes 13 and 17.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other

receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in
certain PRC reputable financial institutions and high-
quality international financial institutions outside the
Mainland China. All those irrevocable bank bills, classified
as notes receivable (Note 16), are issued by the banks in the
PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent history of
default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation to

these financial institutions.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to
ensure that certain cash advance has been received upon
the agreement of the related sales orders with customers.
For those with credit period granted, the credit quality of
the counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. It also
undertakes certain monitoring procedures to ensure that
proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses credit
risks and estimates the recoverability of groups of trade

receivables bearing similar credit risk based on historical

data and cash collection history.

Available-for-sale financial assets are the bank financial
products issued by certain PRC reputable banking
institutions. There was no recent history of default and the
executive directors of the board of the Company are of the

opinion that the credit risk related to the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the
debtors is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, relationship with the Group, credit history and
other factors. Management will also regularly review the
recoverability of these other receivables and follow up the
disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive directors

of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the

default by counterparties is low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit

risk.
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining
sufficient cash. The Group maintains sufficient cash balances
to provide flexibility in meeting its day to day funding

requirements.

The Group had net current assets of RMB3,091,011,000
which included cash and cash equivalents of
RMBS831,859,000 as at 31 December 2017. The executive
directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that

the Group maintains an adequate liquidity reserve.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

R4 £t
Less than
1 year Total

ARWTL  AR¥FL
RMB’000  RMB’000

At 31 December 2017
Trade and other payables 1,210,553 1,210,553

R-FR—AETFZA=Z+—H
B 5 B HCA A R K
A&

At 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables 533,675 533,675
Borrowings 8,733 8,733
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividends
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The Group has sufficient cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2017 and 2016. The executive directors of the board
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group does not have

significant capital risk.

—“FbE CRAE

2017 2016

ANRHFL  ARETE

RMB’000 RMB 000

B KB &% EY (Mak17) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 831,859 2,407,073
W e Less: Borrowings — (8,280)
831,859 2,398,793

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried

at fair value as at 31 December 2017 by level of the inputs to

valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are

categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

U Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that

is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level

2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

3).

Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 13)

E

Level 2
Rt ZEZ R
2017 2016
ANREFL ARFTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
3,006,430 1,729,964
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an

active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These

valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market

data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity

specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar

instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable

yield curves.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
determined using forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, with the resulting value discounted back

to present value.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of deferred development costs

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash
flows of each pharmaceutical patent or licence in capitalisation of
development costs. These estimates are based on projected product

lifecycles experienced in the pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations
and competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will recognise impairment loss on the capitalised development
costs when future cash flows are less than expectation and fall

below the amount of related development costs.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management's estimates as at 31 December 2017 and 2016,
the Group would have recognised no impairment loss on the

development costs (2016: Nil).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Goodwill impairment

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is indication that the goodwill may be impaired in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.11. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on

value-in-use calculations.

The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2017 were
RMB2,843,903,000 (2016: RMB2,247,728,000). Details of the
estimates used to calculate the recoverable amounts are disclosed in
Note 8.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management's estimates as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group would have recognised an impairment loss against the
goodwill of RMB154,867,000 (2016: RMB2,491,000).

If the discount rate had been 2% higher than management’s
estimates (for example, 17% instead of 15%) as at 31 December
2017 and 2016, the Group would have recognised an impairment
loss against the goodwill of RMB218,508,000 (2016:
RMB32,252,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(0)

(d

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

The estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment was made by the management with reference to
the established industry practices, technical assessments made on
the durability of the assets, as well as the historical magnitude and
trend of repair and maintenance expenses incurred by the Group.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in responses to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are less than those previously estimated or
it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic

assets that have been abandoned.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income tax and deferred taxation. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain

during the ordinary course of business.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be

different. Details of the deferred taxation are disclosed in Note 22.
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227,137,000 TG (& — 7S 4E - f1A
K% 227,137,000 70) » L FE 7
ZBIMEE9

SR
FEABRRECUREAAANESR
GITHY o KA T EY T
5 0 A AP O B
U - T A A
h -

ARrERGYTEREENALEE
B o AR BEREE — B 0 o B
TE P BT~ RO R - BEC
F-tETZA=t—HLFEE > F
5 A8 0 B TR A 2 I 3 R P
At A IS A A AR S Wi i 109 SR (2
TN ) -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e) Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in Note
2.12 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to
be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December
2017, the best estimate of the carrying amount of capitalised
development costs was approximately RMB227,137,000 (2016:
approximately RMB227,137,000). More details are given in note 9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the board of the Company. The executive directors of the
board of the Company reviews the Group'’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has determined

the operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors of the board of the Company consider the
business from product perspective. The Group is engaged in only one
business segment, being the research and development, manufacturing
and sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. During the year ended
31 December 2017, all sales were from distributors and there were no
distributors of the Group from which the revenue amounted to 10% or

more of the Group's revenue (2016: None).
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W > i Bk 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EER
SR (]
Production
and  HARM fi FRIE
B electronic Office Motor  Construction it
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ANRHFE  ARWFE  ARWFT  ARKTE  ARETFZ  ARETx
e ko i el 31 December 2017 RMB'000  RMB'009  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00)  RMB'000
WEF=AEFZHZ1—HE  Ac31 December 2016 and

"Rt at | January 2017:

S Cost 1,578,202 595,130 37,106 36,067 410289 2,656,794

it Accumulated depreciation Q74748)  (233,3%3) (24,379) (20,03) = (55249)

ifed Net cartying amount 1,303,454 361,797 12,727 16,032 410289 2,104,299
REF—LE--H At 1 January 2017,

Ik 25t e net of accumulated depreciation 1,303,454 361,797 12,721 16,032 410289 2,104,299
KE Additions 77,860 43,062 2,645 4455 294927 422949
R B 2 ([ E 32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) 125,342 38,073 564 413 — 164,392
HERTRIR Transfer from construction in progtess 317411 - - - (317411) -
B ARG () Transfer from investment properties (Note 7) 10,109 - - - - 10,109
it (st 30) Disposals (Note 30) — (66) @n (223) - (316)
iR A (5L 33) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33) (60224 (19,836) - - - (80,060)
BRI (3 24) Depreciation charge (Note 24) (85,466) (73,298) (5,826) (3,189) — (167,779
REF—LEF=A=+—H >  At31 December 2017,

R 25t net of accumulated depreciation 1,688,486 349,732 10,083 17,488 387,805 2,453,594
REFZ—tEFZA=T—H:  At31 December 2017:

Wk Cost 2,021,204 643,021 38,767 30,877 387,805 3,130,674

2k Accumulated depreciation (332,718)  (293,280) (28,684) (22,389) = (677,080)
SR Nt cartying amount 1,688,486 349,732 10,083 17,488 387,805 2,453,594
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6. ¥ -~ Wb Kifi o) 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
EER
Production
and iU Y ERIRE

BF electronic Office Motor ~ Construction i5i)

Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

NRETFT  ARETT AREFE  AREFr  ARETr  AREFT

ZZ-NEFZAZA-H 31 December 2016 RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'000

BEZ-REFZAZHH 431 December 2015 and

REZ-nE-A-H: at | January 2016;

fiAk Cost 1440910 565,633 34,583 I8 368861 2445808

ZitiiE Accamulated depreciation 92773 (16754) (16719  (17422) — (9449

IR (6 Net carrying amount 1,248,137 398,109 17,864 18399 368861 2051370
Qii*f\iﬁ*ﬁ ! At 1 January 2016,

L net of accumulated depreciation 1,248,137 398,109 17,864 18399 368861 2,051,370
WA Additions 23,674 29,625 2587 836 160,902 217,624
BRAGRTE Transfer from construction in progress 119,236 - - (119,236) —
& (ft3E 30) Disposals (Note 30) - (57) (1) (38) - 96)
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries (1,150) (12) ) — (239) (1423)
IR Mk 24) Depreciation charge (Note 24) (86443)  (65,868) (7,700) (3,165) - (163,176)
RoZ—AEFZH=1+—H> A3l December 2016,

REGHTE net of accumulated depreciation 1303454 361797 12,727 16032 410289 2104209
REBE=ANEFZA=+=H " Ac31 December 2016:

S Cost 15782020 595,130 37,106 36067 410089 2,656,794

LS kit Accumulated depreciation QA48 (2333%) (4379 (2003 - (55249)

RmEE Net carrying amount 1303454 361,797 12,727 16032 410089 2104299

206 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense of the Group was included in the following
categories in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income:

= i

2017 2016

ANREEFIL ANRETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B LA Cost of sales 94,336 83,306
I3 8 A Distribution costs 132 103
TTECBA Administrative expenses 73,311 79,767
167,779 163,176

BoB—bEt A=t AWERT
S 60 4 7 o B T 40 9
-

N oE—-EEF+ A=+ —H &
£ R BEIRE A AL AR
913,495,000 76 (— F — AN 4+ AR ¥
639,911,000 7G ) 25 T 48 = 1) Jir A v
(TFERIAHER]) « AANRIHERRZS
A% 42 [ R S ARG B R A RE R I
SRR > FLAS € A 4R [ i 0 AR
BEETAERRFIE -

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2017 mainly comprised new
pharmaceutical manufacturing plants being constructed in the Mainland
China.

As at 31 December 2017, the ownership certificates of certain
buildings (“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB913,495,000 (2016:
RMB639,911,000) had not been obtained by the Group. The directors of
the Company consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and it should

not lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.
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7. BEWE

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

- St ot S S A
2017 2016
AR ARETFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

L S8 T
Buildings Buildings

i A B At Cost
i—H— H Rl E Carrying amount at 1 January 29,103 30,881
R HRME Transfer to owner-occupied property (10,109) —
Pres (Bt sk 24) Depreciation (Note 24) (1,180) (1,778)
P H =4 A R E A Carrying amount at 31 December 17,814 29,103
R+ZH=+—H: At 31 December:
JRA Cost 27,337 43,320
e Accumulated depreciation 9,523) (14,217)
P H =4 H R Carrying amount at 31 December 17,814 29,103
A [ AR A AR 2 TR 4 i A The Group’s property held under operating lease for the purpose of
HHER AN G R AR earning rentals is measured using the cost model and accounted for as

B o BB PR

iRt R BUE Y

an investment property. The investment properties are located in the
Mainland China.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties

=
2017 2016
ARMTT ARMTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

AU (B 5E23) Rental income (Note 23) 3,803 3,785
e (Pt 24) Depreciation (Note 24) (1,180) (1,778)
2,623 2,007

AEMPR_F—LET_H=1T—HZ
BEWEL N R H66,996,000 76 (— F
— N4 AR % 90,700,000 76) 2 2 TFE
Ty i AR A T #8825 W B 2 2 AT
TEEE » WAL ERERES G -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2017

The fair value of the Group's investment properties of approximately
RMB66,996,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB90,700,000) has
been determined by the directors of the Company with reference to the
estimated market value of similar properties, and has been classified into

level 2 fair value hierarchy.
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wE GOODWILL
i
Goodwill
ANRBTT
RMB’ 000
REF—ANF—H—H » ZF—NF At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
ToA=+—HRER=F—tE-A—H: and 1 January 2017:
JRA Cost 2,284,788
25 E Accumulated Impairment (37,060)
AR T A Net carrying amount 2,247,728
WEE—CE—A—HIBA > fIBR 2FHEE  Cost at 1 January 2017, net of accumulated impairment 2,247,728
W — R Wi W Acquisition of a subsidiary 616,967
th B — K 2w Disposals of a subsidiary (20,792)
W_F—tHE+FZH=+—H At 31 December 2017 2,843,903
Ro_F—tEFZA=+—H: At 31 December 2017:
AR Cost 2,880,963
L R Accumulated Impairment (37,060)
R 1A L Net carrying amount 2,843,903

1 Bk 0

S TS OF A ) o ol (E
7 22 i O ) A
i o B A A B F T g o] SRR e
EERBEEE - &R R
Y L TR TR 2 A TR B BT B
KRB SR BEAFH - TEHU
A B R R T 2 A RS R
SEATHERT o 3R 0 R B B R
I o R S ) = -
&R

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
acquired subsidiaries, which are CGUs, for impairment testing. The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by the management. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average

growth rate for the pharmaceutical business in which the CGU operates.
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8. W%

1 E 2 4% B 4 e A LA A PR BR 1 (L

8. GOODWILL (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs are as

Wy follows:
ZR—-tE TRE
2017 2016
AR ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FMIUBR A B ) ([FAPUER ) Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Led.
(“Jilin Sihuan”) 2,126,800 2,126,800
/0 S48 (5 ) A BRA F Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Co., Ltd.
([ LA RE2E () |) (“Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)”) 481,706 —
TR REEA R A ] ([FHAER])  Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Led.
(“Jilin Sichang”) 135,260 —
REMBHELGRAR ([ZEMB])  Changchun Xiangrong Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Changchun Xiangtong”) 57,137 57,136
AR R EA PR A ([ A% ])  Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Benxi Hengkang”) 30,870 30,870
BN IR B2 A BR/A ] ([EYIPUER |)  Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Led.
(“Shenzhen Sihuan”) 11,836 11,836
e B R GEA /AR ([JE5T 3R )  Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Led.
(“Beijing Sihuan”) 294 294
o R ([ n i = ) Beijing Boren Hospital (“Beijing Boren”) — 20,792
2,843,903 2,247,728

I ] e e L
—F—AETCAS T —BREEE
501 F R LD L BRI B -
S R T B W0 2
KRG R IR 2 4 E B

2 .
A -

SRS E S e
iR L L
EF% -

WEE: RN R R
SR TR 5

MBLA 0 BRI RB R B BT -
Sl S WA I BEL o7 P 5 E J

BXAEO

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs for
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections

to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Gross margins: Management determined budgeted gross profit
margins based on past performance and their

expectations of market development.

Growth rate: The average growth rates used are consistent

with the forecasts included in industry reports.

Discount rate: The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant

units.
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GOODWILL (Continued)

For each of the CGUs with significant amount of goodwill, gross profit
margin, long-term growth rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use

calculations in 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

SRRE

(H7E)

TAmg  BIR EHIR REME ABRER WHBR Ambest
Beijing  Shenzhen Jilin - Changchun Benxi Jilin - Pharmaceutical
Sihuan Sthuan Sihuan ~ Xiangtong  Hengkang Sichang (China)
49% 45% 86% 60% 78% 80% 61%
3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 1% 3%
18% 19% 19% 19% 19% 19% 18%

BoZ—RE+-H=+—H  Asat31 December 2016

B Gross profit margin
REERE Growth rate
fiBi% Discount rate

59% 17% 87% 12% 85% - -
3% 3% 3% 3% 3% - -
17% 19% 17% 18% 18% - -

FEPRE flint T Bl R b AEHBE T H
TRAfTEETARK RS ZEEF
ALK > KA TR %
JETA & PR A o

When determining the estimated discount rate, the Group used the
key parameters by reference to the certain listed companies of the same
industry. Given the nature of the Group’s business, the discount rate

adopted falls within the reasonable range.
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

i T
BRI AR & B g
X FHIR Deferred Product T S 1
Customer ~ development ~ development ~ Trademark A5t
relationship costs  inprogress  and software Total
ANRETFIL  AREFE  AREFT  AREFT  AREFx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REF—RE—H—H: At 1 January 2016:
A Cost 433,932 451,822 325,311 23465 1,234,530
St Accumulated amortisation (G16,744)  (235,066) = (16231)  (368,041)
il Impairment — (1,063) (96,089) — (97,152)
AR 8 Net carrying amount 117,188 215,693 229,022 7,234 569,337
REFE—AE—H—HHHA » Costat 1 January 2016,
G 25T A net of accumulated amortisation
and impairment 117,188 215,693 229,222 7,234 569,337
NE Additions — 99,867 25,456 24,667 149,990
HESHPA (BiF3E 24) Amortisation charge (Note 24) (77,293) (30,865) — (3,661) (111,819
WA (FiE3E 24) Impairment (Note 24) = (969) (27,541) = (28,510)
REF=AFFTZHA=1—H  Net carrying amount ac 31 December 2016
F R T 39,895 283,726 227,137 28,240 578,998
MZE—AREFZA=+—H : Ac31 December 2016:
A Cost 433,932 551,689 350,767 48,132 1,384,520
2Rt Accumulated amortisation (394,037) (265,931) — (19,892) (679,860)
B Impairment — (2,032) (123,630) — (125,662)
BRIV E Net carrying amount 39,895 283,726 227,137 28,240 578,998
e S o S R Cost at 1 January 2017,
B > IR 2RI net of accumulated amortisation
and impairment 39,895 283,726 227,137 28,240 578,998
e Additions - 13,797 — 2,808 16,605
Wik B 4 Acquisition of subsidiaries — 856,228 — 1,130 857,358
S 3 (et 24) Amortisation charge (Note 24) (39,895) (69,477) — (5,583) (114,955)
MZZ—tHFE+ZH=+—H Net carrying amount at 31 December 2017
f R 5 — 1,084,274 227,137 26,595 1,338,006
RZZ—tEFZA=+—H : Ac31 December 2017:
A Cost 433932 1,421,714 350,767 52070 2,258,483
St Accumulated amortisation (433,932)  (335,408) — 25475)  (794,815)
il Impairment — (2,032) (123,630) — (125,662)
e Net carrying amount — 1,084,274 227,137 26,595 1,338,006

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2017
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TR B ) 9.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
AN 45 8] ) 48 6 B S 0 4 AE R B 48 45 2 Al Amortisation charge of the Group was included in the following
N categories in the profit ot loss:

e
2017 2016
ARWTTE ARMTT
RMB 000 RMB 000

S A Cost of sales 86,056 93,274
(i3 Administrative expenses 28,899 18,545
114,955 111,819
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10. 34 pi A

10. LAND USE RIGHTS

=t i {5 P
Land use
rights
ANR¥ T
RMB’000
REF—NFE—~H—H : At 1 January 2016:
RS Cost 637,354
g T Accumulated amortisation (40,947)
AR T A Net carrying amount 596,407
R —NE—A— BB > 1Bk 2SS Cost at 1 January 2016, net of accumulated amortisation 596,407
NE Additions 85,143
e Disposal (19,537)
S BA S (K 5E 24) Amortisation charge (Note 24) (14,244)
M E N A = — H R E Net carrying amount at 31 December 2016 647,769
REF—ARNEFZA=Z+—H At 31 December 2016:
JA Cost 702,390
BTk Accumulated amortisation (54,621)
R 1 v Net carrying amount 647,769
AR H— WA B A5HES  Cost at 1 January 2017, net of accumulated amortisation 647,769
R Additions T
1 i B 8 A Acquisition of subsidiaries 68,023
WS BA S (B 5E 24) Amortisation charge (Note 24) (13,131)
REE—CHE T = — H AR R E Net carrying amount at 31 December 2017 702,661
R-F—EFEFZA=+—H: At 31 December 2017:
%N Cost 770,413
AR Accumulated amortisation (67,752)
MR 3 Net Carrying amount 702,661

I f P RE 4 b BB A B R AR A T 29
BESOFE(FE—AF 122504 ) T3
il IR

R-F—tFE+_H=+—H KM@
3 H 4 A\ R ¥ 402,360,000 70 (= & — 8
% N R 400,660,000 70 ) B9 1 4 B
I HEREES ALAERGR
o AEEGE - AR A S A %
EN

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2017

The land use rights represent land use rights in the PRC with the

remaining period ranged from 29 to 50 years (2016: 12 to 50 years).

As at 31 December 2017, land use rights with a net book value of
approximately RMB402,360,000 (2016: RMB400,660,000) had not

obtained property title certificates. The directors of the board of the

Company are of the opinion that the Group is lawfully and validly

entitled to occupy or use these land.



11. JAF B A A B E
FARR-E—HEFH=+—HMN
R AR EERINT o 2B A
HREEAT -

AR

Name

BB

Directly held

RESER FEARLAF (TR

Sun Moral International (HK) Led. (“Sun Moral”)

et
Indirectly held
ERREARAR (NEHILR )

Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan”)

R mMRRERRAR

Beijing Sihuan

BHNRRERSARAR (GHLREER)
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Information Co., Ltd.

(“Hainan Sihuan Information”)

EENRLEL SRR ARAR
(MEEmRL KL E L))

Hainan Sihuan Cardiocerebral Vascular Drugs Research Institute
Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Sihuan CVD Research”)

RINRRERRAR
Shenzhen Sihuan

e R R A RA R ([T ])
Xuanzhu Pharma Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Pharma”)

P AR A R (bR )
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (‘Langfang Gaobo Jingband”)

TRRAEMH AR ARAR (LRRAEMHE))
Beijing Ao He Research Institute Co., Led.

(“Beijing Ao He Research”)
IrmsmEERERARAR (E5EE)
Beijing Gao Duan Wei Ye Pharmaceutical Technical

Co., Ltd. (“Gao Duan Wei Ye”)

ZRERARAT (23]

Dupromise Holdings Limited (‘Dupromise”)
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11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2017, all of which

are limited liability companies.

LTRGBS
Principal activities

and place of operation

Investment holding inHong Kong

REEHREER

Marketing of pharmaceutical products in PRC
TR BB R

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products in PRC
HR B A S

Provision of information support setvices in PRC

TR B LB R
Provision of research and development

services in PRC

IR RS ELER

Marketing of pharmaceutical products in PRC

T BT A

Research and development of pharmaceutical

products in PRC

Manufacture of pharmaceutical materials in PRC

I
Provision of research and development

services in PRC

REEE A AR &
Cooperation with other research companies
inPRC

TR BB
Investment holding in PRC

REM AL M

Place of incorporation

Eik
Hong Kong

il
PRC

il
PRC

i
PRC

G|
PRC

il
PRC

HRELHR
British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")

RE M

T LA (%)

Proportion of

aljce interest held by

Registered capital the Group (%)

10,000 7T 100
HKD10,000

AR 200,000,000 76 100
RMB200,000,000

B 50,000,000 76 100
RMB50,000,000
B H1,000,000 70

RMB1,000,000 100

B 6,000,000 78 100
RMB6,000,000

50,000,000 78 100
RMB50,000,000

B 50,000,000 78 100
RMB50,000,000

B H30,000,000 76 100
RMB30,000,000

3,600,000 8 100
RMB3,600,000

B H 5,000,000 0 60
RMBS,000,000

1%7 100
USD1

continued/ "
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11. TR 2 vl 8% 4)

A

Name

[ihssdi)

Indirectly held

EHRMRRERRAR

Jilin Sihuan

REMEEEARAR

Changchun Xiangtong

ILEEREL AR (R ])

Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Tonghua Jida")
Fif5 EL AR A A ) ([ T A )

Smart Baskets Investment Limited (“Smart Baskets”)

TR RERRAR (a2 4 %))

Hainan Litzman Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Litzman”)

ARERREARAR
Benxi Hengkang

FERERBAOFRAR (2R )

Maifu Nutrition Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Maifu Beijing”)

RHREREE ) ARAR
¢-HMO (Beijing) Co., Led.

ARV A ] (5 AR BR R )
Jilin Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Co., Led.
(*Jilin Sihuan Aokang”)

EHRMRAEA RAR (5 HIRAL)

Jilin Sihuan Technology Co., Ltd. (*Jilin Sihuan Technology”)

B MR ELAR A R

Jilin Sihuan Haisikaier Technology Co., Led. (‘Jilin Haisikaier”)

TR A A (R )
Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Zhen'ao Pharm”)

EIET REARAR (M)
Jilin Jinsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Led. (‘Jilin Jinsheng”)

RRERER S (S ARAT (EHEERE])

Shengke Aesthetic Medicine PharmaSciences (Jilin) Co., Ltd.

(“Shengke Aesthetic Medicine”)

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2017

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

LR RS
Principal activities

and place of operation

e B B

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products in PRC
R BB R R

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products in PRC
TR R

Marketing of pharmaceutical products in PRC
TR BB

Investment holding in PRC

T BT A A

Project preparation for the manufacture of

pharmaceutical products in PRC

TR R

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products in PRC

HAeh Bt A A
Sale of medical appliance in PRC

TEr R MR i

Promotion of technology in PRC

A B R R

Construction of medical project in PRC

TR B AL

Promotion of technology in PRC

TR B A

Promotion of technology in PRC

T B A

Promotion of technology in PRC

e B B

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products in PRC
REEHREER

Marketing of pharmaceutical products in PRC

ML S

Place of incorporation

HE
PRC

]
PRC

HE
PRC

FRRARE
BVI

G|
PRC

HE
PRC

HE
PRC

]
PRC

PRC

PRC
il
PRC
HE
PRC

HE
PRC

]
PRC

A

Registered capital

A BH100,000,000 78
RMB100,000,000

AEH 16,880,000
RMBL6,880,000

B H12,000,000 78
RMB12,000,000

B
USDI

A&H19,500,000 78
RMB19,500,000

AE¥21,500,0007C
RMB21,500,000

A BH100,000,000 78
RMB100,000,000

B 60,000,000 78
RMB60,000,000

AR 301,000,000 78
RMB301,000,000

B H10,300,000 78
RMB10,300,000

18,870,000 78
RMB18,870,000

B 58500,000 G
RMB58,500,000

B 20,000,000 78
RMB20,000,000

ABH1,000,000 70
RMB1,000,000

Al

L EL A0
Proportion of
interest held by
the Group (%)

100

80

100

100

100

100

92.8284

51

100

51

100

100

100

continued/" "
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Ik

Name

s
Indirectly held
IR BmRREER A IRAR

Beijing Boaotai PharmaSciences Co., Led.

C§ PharmaSciences. Inc

CS PharmaSciences. Inc

BRI LR ERARAR

Longyu Hongda Investment Management Co., Ltd.

TR EEARAT
Xizang Kangxin Pharmaceutical Co., Led.

HERREA R
Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

EMAELTARAR
Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd.

il v B I
Tonghua Zhongjian Analysis Testing Setvice Co., Ltd.

EE AR ER A R A

Jilin Xuchuan PharmaSciences Co., Ltd.

HHRERER AR
Jilin Woxuan PharmaSciences Co., Ltd.

EHEREER A RAR

Jilin Juao PharmaSciences Co., Ltd.

EHEREERA AR
Jilin Nutrition Technology Co., Ltd.

P () R ATRAR
Jilin (Beijing) Medical Technology Co., Led.

LRI (R

Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)

25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
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11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ST VL e
Principal activities

and place of operation

Sk BB B e b s
Promotion of technology and consulting services
inPRC

TREE (TR ) BB

Investment holding in United State (‘US")

TR BB E R

Investment holding in PRC

B AR LER

Marketing of pharmaceutical products in PRC

IR RERLER

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products in PRC

R

Manufacture of Pharmaceutical products in PRC

TR B kB R

Provision of research and development services
inPRC

i B A S
Provision of research and development services
inPRC

i B B S e
Provision of research and development services
inPRC

il
Provision of research and development services
inPRC

s B A S e
Provision of research and development services

inPRC

T B BT S8
Provision of research and development services
in PRC

G
Provision of research and development services
inPRC

ML S

Place of incorporation

HE
PRC

20

G|
PRC
i
PRC
HE
PRC

]
PRC

G
PRC

HE
PRC

Gl
PRC

NEBREZREEERA

A

TR LM (%)

Proportion of

FEMRE A interest held by

Registered capital the Group (%)

BH4500,000 8 70
RMBA4,500,000

AE%7,099,580 76 70
RMB7,099,580

ABRH100,000,000 78 100
RMB100,000,000

B 50,000,000 78 100
RMB50,000,000

BH30,000,000 78 100
RMB30,000,000

A BH100,000,000 78 100
RMB100,000,000

AEH50,000,000 78 100
RMBS50,000,000

AEH2,700,000 70 100
RMB2,700,000

AEHS,700,000 76 100
RMBS,700,000

B H 1,800,000 0 100
RMB1,800,000

80,000,000 72 100
RMB80,000,000

B 30,000,000 78 100
RMB30,000,000

B 50,000,000 8 100
RMBS50,000,000

g/

continued/" "

ofF ol

2017 F E #



B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZZLETAST—HIRAEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

11. TR 2 vl 8% 4)

A

Name

22l
Indirectly held
CS Sciences Limited

CS Sciences Limited

ERRREARRE A ARAT

SunCro Aesthetic & Cosmetic International Co., Led.

CS-BAY THERAPEUTICS Inc.
CS-BAY THERAPEUTICS Inc.

CS Pharmatech Limited
CS Pharmatech Limited

R ERRAR
High Great Investment Co., Ltd.

IR RER AR AT
Xuanyi (Beijing) Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

BEHTNEE R ERARAR
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Management Co., Ltd.

REARA
Well Nova Limited

HkMR
Jilin Sichang

R_F—tEF+_H=+—H Rk
2 A B A D AR R T RE £ A A\ R
#279,078,000 TG (& — N4 - AR
69,655,000 7G) » HifE Al i 5 0 A E K o

21 8 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

LI R R
Principal activities

and place of operation

TSR IR SR B RS
Provision of research and development services
in BVI

RESERRFAENEL NG RS
Import and export trade and
marketing of pharmaceutical and aesthetic

medicine in Hong Kong

EB R
Provision of research and development services
inUS

JREE R B R R OB AR
Provision of research and development services
in BVI

TRE SR D B s
Provision of research and development services

in Hong Kong
TR
Provision of research and development services
inPRC
et J B e B B TAR
Provision of general hospital services and hospital

management setvices in PRC

TSR e B AT B RS

Provision of research and development services
inBVI

R R R EREER
Manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products
inPRC

R S

Place of incorporation

SRELHE
BVI

ik
Hong Kong

SRR TRE
BVI

i

Hong Kong

i
PRC

Gl
PRC

HH
PRC

PRC

A

Registered capital

50,000,000 76
USD50,000,000

2,000,000 B
EUR2,000,000

20,000,000 78
USD20,000,000

BH5.1000,000 78
RMBS,000,000

K 49,999,999 76
RMB49,999,999

B 50,000,000 16
RMB50,000,000

B 50,000,000 78
RMBS0,000,000

35,000 % T
USD35,000

NEEH28 300,000 7
RMB28,300,000

Al
R o)
Proportion of
interest held by
the Group (%)

70

749

70

70

70

70

60

70

51

The total non-controlling interests in non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB279,078,000 (2016:
RMB69,655,000), which are individually not material.
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RE-Z—tHE+ZA=+—H 8%
T 5 W77 3N R 85 220,682,000 0 (%
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11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, cash and short-term deposits of RMB220,682,000
(2016: RMB86,335,000) were held in subsidiaries in Mainland China and
were subject to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange
control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from

Mainland China, other than through normal dividends.

WHAEZRE AR 12. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD
SRk F AR
2017 2016
ANREFL ARFFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
JREAG B R Share of net assets 551,557 824,380
W R 11 Goodwill on acquisition 460,534 448,471
1,012,091 1,272,851
e
2017 2016
ANR¥FL  ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
i —H— H W ER 458k Opening balance at 1 January 1,272,851 1,189,118
b7k /N )) Addition of associates (i) 90,832 108,030
] — [ BLA W W B Gi) Capital contributions to an existing associate (ii) 19,999 65,564
T e R /A\ﬂ Derecognition of associates (19,076) (71,485)
BUHER — R A Eaw (f5E32) Derecognition of a joint venture (Note 32) (393,380) —
N jﬂ] BN Share of post-tax profit of associates
Fidz i A (B 5E 30) and a joint venture (Note 30) 40,865 21,624
ORI A R Dividend from Jilin Sichang — (40,000)
BT A Z T —HIERE & Closing balance at 31 December 1,012,091 1,272,851

mMEBEEBEREREREEERA
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R AR 2 AR Wy L% ()

) MZF—LENLH AEEM
Pharmadax(Hong Kong) Limited i
St L T S A PR D ([ L
AT ) 8919.99% A - RUE A
A R# 80,000,000 JC ©

RE-Z—LHELH > AERAR
Medifood International SA f9.29%
JEHE > Slff [4] Medifood International
SAH B NS 4 742,856 BT
(SR AR 5,832,553 70) °

Gy MEF—LERHA > AEEHERT
HH A BE AR Big LAY
90 A FR A 7 (T b g 37 4 ]) ) 348
%o BAEC RN _F—HHERAL
B4 A Bigsrah > Tigs
R —F—LET -

DUT#HIIAEER - F—LFE+ A
:+*H%*%%%&ﬂ7ﬁ§$m%
HEALEME I BEK - TIBEL
i ) B A G A ol AR 4 I R B A 1
L -

HH A

Name of entity

WA T

Associate

1205 B B PE A IR A )
Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd.

B 1 73 (— 20 v B 2 /R S M
EGEAR LM AR SN > ZEFHEL
7 o AN 25 ) L PO I 40 T 35 A
S A0 A I A T W % B A Y AR
A

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

12. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(i)

(i)

In September 2017, the Group acquired 19.99% equity
interest in Pharmadax(Foshan) Co., Ltd. (“Pharmadax(Foshan)”)
from Pharmadax(Hongkong) Limited at a consideration of
RMB80,000,000.

In July 2017, the Group subscribed a 9.29% equity interest in
Medifood International SA and paid EUR742,856 (equivalent to
RMBS,832,553) by cash to partners of Medifood International SA.

In May 2017, the Group recognised an additional investment in
an existing associate, Shanghai Lide Biotech Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Lide”). The capital was injected to Shanghai Lide by cash at the end
of June 2017, and the legal and substance modification procedures

was completed in 2017.

Set out below is an associate of the Group as at 31 December 2017,

which, in the opinion of the directors, is material to the Group. The

associate as listed below has share capital consisting solely of ordinary

shares, which are held indirectly by the Group.

wl MR K
BRI
Place of
incorporation

and operation

SR PR LRy
BVI

i B e

TR L)

Proportion
of ownership ~EEHEHK

interest  Principal activities

38.14% SR MR K e RS
Provision of general hospital services and

hospital management services

Except for Shanghai Lide, a public company in the National Equities

Exchange and Quotations in the PRC, the associates are private companies

and there are no quoted market price available for these shares. There are

no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the associates.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the associates.

AR D FE i B Summarised statements of financial position
=05 B oAb A7l
Renfang Medical Other associates
SR CFERE 2R CFAE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ANRWETFE ARBTT ARWFT ARWTIT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
e Current
&7 Assets 502,234 471,395 585,667 514,848
AfR Liabilities (121,534)  (151,224)  (322,404)  (582,417)
ARBEEFE Total net current assets 380,700 320,171 263,263 (67,569)
R Non-current
B Assets 672,178 710,890 669,282 1,582,690
f Liabilities (24,740) (24,485)  (428,840)  (357,499)
B (E Total net non-current assets 647,438 686,405 240,442 1,225,191
BEFH Net assets 1,028,138 1,006,576 503,705 1,157,622
S Summarised statements of profit or loss
5 B Fo At Bt 28
Renfang Medical Other associates
R CFE-RFE R LE CFERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ANRWETFE ARWTT ARWFT ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
g Revenue 528,097 529,380 112,820 325,971
BRETEBL AT A/ (1) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 21,562 17,573 (54,495) 9,260
P Bl 2 Income tax expense — — — (30,227)
EEERA/ () Profit/(Loss) for the year 21,562 17,573 (54,495) (20,967)
2HIA/ (1R 4% Total comprehensive income/(loss) 21,562 17,573 (54,495) (20,967)

DA _E OB S I R B R B 2 5
FRY B A S 1) BEL I 4 W)t BUOR 22 BT
PR B

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies

among the Group and the associates.
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12. $RHELR 2 A MR 8L (41) 12. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

FF 75 LM B S Reconciliation of summarised financial information
i 52 1] B 5 e AR L A e 4 N D R £ Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the
R TR (L ) BB o carrying amount of its interests in associates.
(Vi AR 22 R
Renfang Medical Other associates
e I T e e
2017 2016 2017 2016

ARETL ARKTE AR¥ETT ARETE
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB’000

= H— B G (E Opening net assets 1 January 1,006,576 817,103 1,157,622 1,237,612
e bR Capital injection by shareholders — 171,900 24,997 130,438
i) -GN Addition of associates — — 37,906 1,163
EREA/ (ER) Profit/(Loss) for the year 21,562 17,573 (54,495) (20,967)
s Dividends = = — (80,000)
I N Derecognition of associates — — (662,325) (110,624)
FREEFHE Closing net assets 1,028,138 1,006,576 503,705 1,157,622
T A A TR Interests in associates 392,132 383,908 159,425 440,472
T2 Goodwill = = 460,534 448,471
TR (B Carrying value 392,132 383,908 619,959 888,943

229 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
ZR—LE CEAE
2017 2016

ARHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

#—H—H At 1 January 1,729,964 1,959,280
WA Additions 12,553,315 9,533,100
=5 Disposals (11,284,850)  (9,752,000)
AT S E A THEE) Change in fair value of available-for-sale

financial assets 8,001 (10,416)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 3,006,430 1,729,964

AL EEMEEAEUT

K EmHER A - HORASE ()
A (i)

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

ZF b ZFRF
2017 2016

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Unquoted equity share, at cost (i) 39,076 20,000
Short-term investments (ii) 2,967,354 1,709,964

3,006,430 1,729,964

() ZSKETIALRR LR P BT A R
/AW } Orion TC Holdings Limited
FF LTI R A P B AR B o %
FERETIHRRAEAN - B AA
SERZERRYESE I EA
ERR ERE T YN Z X

(i)  EACETEE T B RAT
RATIRAT R & - HE S
HATAMEA ~ R AEREE PR K
A RANEIEE - ZFEHEY
LLARWRHE -

(i)  The amount represents equity investments in the unquoted equity
shares of Jiangsu Antai Biotechnology Co., Ltd. and Orion TC
Holdings Limited. The investments are accounted for using cost
method, because the Group has no representative on the board of

directors of these entities and no significant impact on them.

(i)  The amount representing short-term investments are the bank
financial products issued by certain PRC reputable banking
institutions with maturity of less than 6 months, non-determinable
return rate and part of the principle guaranteed. These investments

are all denominated in RMB.
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13. WAk B A RE A () 13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

A G 2N (B T B T8 A T e The fair values of these investments are based on an average estimated
R45%(ZF—NE 1 3.9%)5E o return rate of 4.5% (2016:3.9%).
R BB RKEERR R ZEEE The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
ZIRH{E values of these investments.
SO 0 A 7 A0 B 1 01 W R L 5 O R The credit quality of available-for-sale financial assets that are neither past
{5 BB K ] 2 7% AT B A B A5 BT due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the banking institutions
SAE R FEAN o 3% 5F 4 Rl 2 BE A a1 R internal credit ratings. None of these financial assets is either past due or
MEWAH - impaired.

14, FAib 0 By ¥ 14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

“FbfE CF AR

2017 2016
Wi ARETTE  ARKTE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

JRE WA K 8 /A T AR I Amount due from an associate i/34 120,000 —

Lt R Wi S Other receivables ii 100,000 —

R A e Y LA IR Prepayments for purchase of long-term assets iii 62,880 56,000

282,880 56,000

Q) JEUHE N A i ol fE T T R A (i)  The receivable from an associate, Pharmadax(Foshan) Co., Ltd.
B R (8 L 48 3 7T J) 3008 A 5t (“Pharmadax (Foshan)”), was interest-bearing, unsecured, repayable
B BRI JEN HLAR O fEAR o in five years.

Gi)  PEAL s A 2R IE T DAL s 1A (i)  The receivable from Beijing Boren was secured by 100% interest
1009 HE gt A H6 1316 780 7 - 4F 1A 15 in Beijing Boren and repayable in seven years. Interest is charged
o FIEIREE3%FH - at 3% annually.

(i) w2 & A6 8 E R0 E A R (i) The amount represented prepayments for purchases of long-term
TH o assets.

224 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017



I5.

16.

R

25 A i

Notes to the Financial Statements
BER b = L
For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. INVENTORIES
ZR—LE CEAE
2017 2016

ARHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

LR Raw materials 88,630 71,739
TER Work in progress 66,359 48,386
B Finished goods 72,981 80,555

227,970 200,680

17 B B B 5 BR S R AT 8 8 AR |
4 %8 B N R % 412,006,000 T (= &
—7N4E 0 NR MK 638,747,000 JC) ©

S50 B 3 b ek

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of
sales” amounted to RMB412,006,000 (2016: RMB638,747,000).

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
=
2017 2016
Wi ARETTE  ARKTE
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000

G o IR — B = Trade receivables — third parties i 167,854 97,455
T =% Notes receivables ii 290,589 493,731
A 7 KT Prepayments to suppliers 112,594 172,404
JRE A 5 /A i K OE Amounts due from associates 1ii/34 107,959 13,500
FEL— A 2 IE Amount due from a joint venture iii/34 — 74,519
JRE s HL i R B S Amount due from other related party 34 9,675 9,673
oA R A R Other receivables 58,470 15,974

747,141 877,256

() AREHITRL M B 5 B A
W HR AR A8 2% 35 F 05 A B 4 X
U~ BRI E e KIS E
R JEE S0 BB AT WA -

(1) Trade and other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
were assessed by referring to historical information about default
rates, reputation, liquidity and other financial information of the

counterparties.
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16. S 5h Be JU Al HEW MRk (42

AEERTEFRERANF—MAZE
—4F o BRI DTN — 0 H B BE ORI
B R BB E - AL BB Bk
il A Wi (e B Wi Rk o RS b U At K
AL H B REUUR S BK B & B
F o o 8 E KR B S o AR S
S B M SO K G B A AL (T
SUCHAL R AR - A EBORF AR -

(i) RIEMR > HH ORI
PR I ERES AT a0 (RE4TBR

M)

38 H LA
3 &2 61 H
6 H &= 14
14EDL |

16.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group's credit terms granted to customers range from one month

to one year. Trade receivables that are aged less than one year are not

considered impaired. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over

its outstanding receivables. In view of the aforementioned and the fact

that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified

customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group

does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

“FbfE N
2017 2016
ARBFL  ABHTT
RMB 000 RMB’ 000

Within 3 months 161,537 93,942
3 to 6 months 2,613 3,211
6 months to 1 year 3,700 3
More than 1 year 4 299

167,854 97,455

R_F—-Lt&E+_H=+—H 85
JEE Wi B N B 6,317,000 6 (& — 8
M NR 3,513,000 0 ) B H 4 ik
{6 o %% FIH B2 2 1 T H 3R A B
T A4 55 ST 06 R B Bk [ A > OB A Al A

Rl > ZE PR Y

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of RMB6,317,000 (2016:
RMB3,513,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent wholesalers experiencing no significant financial
difficulty and based on past experience, the overdue amount can be

recovered.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables, which were past due but

A TN not impaired, is as follows:
“-tE  ZBAR
2017 2016
AR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=2~ MHA 3 to 6 months 2,613 3,211
NE A £ —4F 6 months to 1 year 3,700 3
AR —4F More than 1 year 4 299
6,317 3,513

W FE—-tLtER _F—-ANET A
=t+—H0 B85 EIRRXE WE - I
FEFE B M - B 5 MENUIR A B A

(i)  MEWCERSE d b B 5 AP Y
SRAT I ) 9 K TSR RAT 50 -

Gi)  FEMREEE A R X— M A B R IA

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no trade receivables were impaired

and no allowance was made. The trade receivables were fully performing.

(i)  The notes receivable represent the irrevocable bank bills issued by

the banks in the PRC with high credit rating.

(ii)  The breakdown of amounts due from associates and a joint venture

HIBHAEN R - is as follows:
ZER-LE ZEAE
2017 2016
g ANREFLE ARFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000
SR ELRAT  Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd. (a) 30,000 13,500
ikl E 2l R YN Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Led. (b) 77,942 74,519
Medifood International SA  Medifood International SA 17 —
107,959 88,019

(a) The receivable from an associate, Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co.,

@ RS R Sl R
ARAF (T8 ) i
TA T3 LA b 3 8 2E 0 B A R AL
IS RS T BH 3 PR
R F19 109 HE 42 VR HEAH
A S EFAE 59 515 -

Led. (“Beijing Ruiye”) was secured by 10% interest in Beijing Ruiye’s
parent company Beijing Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co.,

Ltd. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

MEBEZREEER D A
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16. B 5 B 3l Wk K (4 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) ﬁ q&%%/& ﬁ‘] ;E/ft f’fg’ %% % (b) The receivable from an associate, Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
HRAR(EL KT K (“Tonghua Tianshi”), including a loan principal of RMB69,400,000 and
o S e A interest amounting to RMB8,542,000, was unsecured and repayable in full
S (1 %E:—j: i : E on demand. Interest is charged at 4.75% annually.
69,400,000 JC &
8,542,000 7T ) J3 A K A
REORBRBER - FIEHE
F475% 75 -
TN O kS S W Bk & The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the total
P JRE O 2 B T 4 o carrying value of all classes of receivables mentioned above.
17. B4 BB 45 17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
e e
2017 2016
AREFIE ARETL
RMB’000 RMB 000
& N RAT 45 B Cash and bank balances 333,129 439,008
ERF K Time deposits 498,730 1,968,065
Bl BB &EEY Cash and cash equivalents 831,859 2,407,073

SRATBL & 4% DU B RAT A7 R R Gt
BN S, o T A 4 T B R B 2
K > E#ERFFIRNF—RE=
R B R TR TR o S % A Bl 4
A AR RS

ALERE RS AN E & R E%HE

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit

rates.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are

PILL R 5 & HEHE denominated in the following currencies:
R —-BE A
2017 2016
ARETE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
N RMB 305,957 88,675
%70 USD 349,790 1,273,760
ko EUR 15,298 =
Hom oo SGD = 491
HigE GBP 140,535 =
Ev HKD 20,279 1,044,147
831,859 2,407,073

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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18. JBeAN ~ ARy BB Ay v 1 18. SHARE CAPITAL, TREASURY SHARES AND SHARE

PREMIUM

o#fr

R

BE Lok

FERUE  Numberof

Numberof  issued and

authorised  fully paid Bk EERR  RbEE

ordinary ordinary Share Treasury Share it
shares shares capital Shares  premium Total
Th T ARETT ARETR ARMTT ARETT
Share 000 Share 000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000

REE—NE—H—H Asat 1 January 2016
(G RmE0.01 L) (HKDO.01 per share) 100,000,000 10,364,182 85,610 — 54848 5660458

“F-NE-A—=AEZF—AE  Movement from | January 2016 to
ToHET—ANES 31 December 2016:
AT Repurchase and cancellation of shares - (777,498) (6,167) 2%)  (1,30619)  (1,237,041)

REF—NEFZA=+—H Asat 31 December 2016

(001 %) (HKDO.01 per share) 100,000,000 9,586,084 79443 2%5) 4344229 4423417
RZZ—tHF-f—H Asat 1 January 2017

(Bfko.0ni) (HKDO.01 per share) 100,000,000 9,586,684 79,443 (255) 4344229 4423417
“R—tE-A-HEZF—tE  Movement from | January 2017 to

ToAST-HMES 31 December 2017:
ATY & Repurchase and cancellation of shares — (115,602) (1,210) 259 (250,912) (251,867)

REZ—LEFZA=1—A Asat 31 December 2017

(Bo.01i7c) (HKDO.01 per share) 100,000,000 9,471,082 78,233 — 4093317 4171550
A5 7 bL 48R 1B 282,283,000 5 7T (4 The Company purchased 115,602,000 of its shares on The Stock
TN B 251,867,000 78 ) 1A 7 W B A 2 Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at a total consideration of
5y BT A B R IR 115,602,000 % A% HKD282,283,000 (equivalent to RMB251,867,000), which was paid
> A SRR W 23 FI R 1568 257 e BA wholly out of share premium in accordance with section 257 of the Hong
B3 i (8 R B A o M= — LT Kong Companies Ordinance. As at 31 December 2017, all purchased
A=+—H A CERG M - shares were cancelled.

mEBEBREEREEER A A 229
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19. 3l i i B D8 ¥ 2 A 19. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

L
WEYE  EREE
4 Available-

PRC for-sale B ARGk RE A
statutory financial Capital Mt Retained
reserve fund assets reserve Total earnings

ABHFR  ARKTE  ARMTFZ  ARKTZ  ARKTFT
RMB'000 ~ RMB'009  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RE=F—AF—H—H At 1 January 2016 245,995 25,280 (98,734) 172541 5,262,640
SRR A Profit for the year = = = — 1,708,239
B (HiaE 29) Dividends (Note 29) - - - — (607,059
0 UNGESE PR 2 Acquisition of an addition
interest in a subsidiary - - (47,385) (47,389) -
—FWB A FERBAIEE  Capital injection from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary — — (70) (70) -
1 B R fy S Bt ) Employee share award scheme
— R AR EE — Value of employee services - - (469) (469) -
A ESMEEATERE  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets — (10,416) — (10,416) —
HEETREEMEEZ0)  Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund (i) 22,895 — — 22,895 (22,899)
R=% /\@‘f‘ A=1—H  At31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017
& —tFE-J—H 268,890 14,864 (146,658) 137,096 6,340,925
SR A Profit for the year = = = — 1448935
B (Wi 29) Dividends (Note 29) - - - —  (1,051,290)
1 & f 52 bt 1 Employee share award scheme
— (R B IR A — Value of employee services - - 1,775 L,775 -
At EREAFEES Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets — 8,001 — 8,001 —
B 2 o R E R 4 ) Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund (i) 19,338 - - 19,338 (19,338)
BEF—LFEZA=T—H  Ac31 December 2017 288,228 2865 (144883) 166210 6,719,232

230 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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19. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Continued)

(i)

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are required to follow
the laws and regulations of the PRC and their respective articles
of association. These subsidiaries are required to allocate at least
10% of their net profits for each financial year to the reserve fund
until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their respective
registered capital. The reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar authorities, to
offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The reserves fund is
not available for distribution to shareholders except in the case of

liquidation.

20. OTHER LIABILITIES

ZF L CEF R
2017 2016
ANRWTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
S 3 BHHE AR AE A (i) Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights (i) 44,222 82,592
I S R A 30 i) Deferred government grants (ii) 71,559 65,439
115,781 148,031
W E R Less: current portion
S BHHE AR AL A (i) Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights (i) 21,300 39,501
A S R A 30 i) Deferred government grants (ii) 6,397 4,606
27,697 44,107
FEFENEB 4 Non-current portion 88,084 103,924
()  HISH SR T RS M s HES (i) It represents the cash advances received for sales of distribution
s 4F T o0 B P E I B & B o rights of certain pharmaceutical products to distributors for 5
M R 1 AR A A 4R S years. The revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of
2 TR 0 A R TR o profit or loss and other comprehensive income based on straight
line basis.
Gi) HISERE - B KA i (ii) It represents the deferred revenue of government grants received

B W IR E BURF R B as o HAF IR AR
I T A 4 AR
A 5 2 1 A B L At 4 T Wi AR R A
i o

for the construction of property, plant and equipment. It will be
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected

lives of the related assets.

MEBEZREEERALT
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21. B 5 B 30 b REA) ek 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—B-bE —ZAE
2017 2016

AR T ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

B 5 REAT R K (1) Trade payables (i) 34,320 82,662
o B % IR Advances from customers 360,594 235,401
JREASS AR I Costs of construction and purchase
AR PRI R of equipment payables 51,857 68,703
WL B — [ P 2 ) A T Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary 300,000 —
JEAF— R A 23 IE Amount due to a joint venture = 69,302
B AF SHE A B 6 7 L (B 34) Amount due to other related party (Note 34) 83 83
JRE AT 4 4 Deposit payables 241,225 149,486
JREASH 4615 T 1 B A 1 Accrued reimbursement to distributors 505,833 47,369
B A At B I Other taxes payable 180,749 58,230
JRE AT 387 4 Salaries payable 52,891 57,074
Fo A B AT HRR Other payables 77,235 58,996
1,804,787 827,306
() HBEHEMERAFE - TR A (i)  The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
40K ° term of 40 days.
R IR > g H B 5 An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
fHERFX I HRES AT 0 R period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—F-tE —“FAF
2017 2016

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000 ~ RMB’000

6fE A Within 6 months 24,329 79,411
6fE A & 14 6 months to 1 year 3,766 1,268
14ERL | More than 1 year 6,225 1,983

34,320 82,662
5 Ty HABEAT IR 2 2 /A e B L The fair values of trade and other payable approximate their carrying
TA{EA o amounts.

232 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Y& %L P 13 B 22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
W A0E Fify 150 72 A0 A I A5 B 15 4 The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
m liabilities is as follows:
—“F—tE Z-RF
2017 2016
AR ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
R T A Deferred income tax assets
—I7E 1248 H Ay — to be recovered within 12 months 115,481 28,758
— AR 128 A AR — to be recovered after more than 12 months 12,033 7,125
127,514 35,883

EAE 3B A 1
—MFTE 12 A RAS
— MAEEE 1210 A R & H

Deferred income tax liabilities
— to be settled within 12 months (57,305) (28,639)
— to be settled after more than 12 months (207,091) (45,455)

(264,396) (74,094)

L BT B0 B 0 — 1

Deferred income tax liabilities - net (136,882) (38,211)

AL TG BLAR P S B AN

The gross movements on the deferred income tax accounts are as follows:

e i

2017 2016
ARMFL  ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

#—H—H At 1 January (38,211) (107,730)
W B Y g 2 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries (200,363) =
R &R A S A A T 4 R (Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement

(Z8H) /AR of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 101,692 22,889
BB K Payment of withholding tax — 46,630
WrtZHA=+—H At 31 December (136,882) (38,211)

MEBEZREEER D A
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22.

9B L it £ 8L 4) 22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
AR BN IR AE TS BUE B S AR E W The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
(R R — BB 7 e HE [ A B i 45 4 year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
) the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
PEIE PSR Deferred income tax assets
e e L4 i il
MR gl RS
iy S Al
Government  REH Al Unrealised
subsidies ~ Unrealised profit of
associated profit of s dii sale of
with fixed  intra-group Accrued  distribution it
assets sales expenses rights Total
ANRBTE  ARWTZ  ARWFT  AREFT  ARETx
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
RZZ—A~E—A—H At 1 January 2016 - 9,037 4235 4,874 18,146
TER A B A Credited/(charged) to consolidated statement of
2Tl EAR/ G profit or loss and other comprehensive income 7,500 (30) 13,589 (3,322) 17,737
REZF=AFFZA=+—H  Ac31 December 2016 7,500 9,007 17,824 1,552 35,883
RoZ—tE—A—H At 1 January 2017 7,500 9,007 17,824 1,552 35,883
e R Credited to consolidated statement of profit or
e EFIN loss and other comprehensive income 1,234 4207 81,089 5,081 91,631
BoF—tF+ZAZF—H  Ac31 December 2017 8,734 13,234 98913 6,633 127,514

A ] 400 308 A AR JE A o i ) 5 B A IR o T
0 B > ) T A 9 A5 A R A
B o B A R 2 @ 5 R
TE A AT A1 R A HE AN B U A - AR AR
R = —t4E+ = H =+ — 3 i ik
8 B JE s 48N R 171,729,000 0 (Z
T—~F AR %¥222,127,00000) A B
11 0 AiE T 75 B & 2 A9 N R 142,932,000
(= F — AN F: AR 55,532,000
JG) o i%5F R AT DA A5 D) G 8 R A RE R
Bl A o fEtE A R 3,368,00070 © AR
11,854,000 76 » A B 31,434,000 76
N 78,289,000 76 & A R 46,784,000
TEAE A R 2 — A~ 2 — A
SR DR ER R
FIH -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the
future taxable profits is probable. Due to the fact that the directors of the
board of the Company are not certain on whether future taxable profits
would be available, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB42,932,000 (2016; RMBS55,532,000) in respect of
tax losses amounting to RMB171,729,000 (2016: RMB222,127,000) as
at 31 December 2017 that can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable profits. Losses amounting to RMB3,368,000, RMB11,854,000,
RMB31,434,000, RMB78,289,000 and RMB46,784,000 will expire in
2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.
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22. WHEMFBE 40 22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
B ERARS Deferred income tax liabilities

TS £

EC oy I )Y

AR i

e ity Lk

R Fair value

WAL Withholding  adjustment

AFE tax of the arising
Fair value  unremitted from
gain earnings  recognition
arising from of a PRC of joint gt
acquisitions subsidiary venture Total

ARWTE  ARWTZ  ARETFT  ARWETZT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

WoE—tHFE—-H—H At 1 January 2016 33,791 46,630 45455 125,876
REG R R Credited to consolidated statement
HoA 4 T it = AR of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (5,152) — — (5,152)
XA Payment of withholding tax = (46,630) = (46,630)
RZFE—REFZA=1—H Ac31 December 2016 28,639 — 45,455 74,094
R-Z—t4—H—H At 1 January 2017 28,639 — 45,455 74,094
W i o A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 200,363 — — 200,363
S REE LY Charged to consolidated statement
oA 4 T i AR 7% 8 of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (10,061) — — (10,061)
AZE—LHF+"HA=+—H At 31 December 2017 218,941 — 45455 264,396
MESBE2REMARALA )35
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22. BB ) 22.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

2

2
J

6

BREFARAR )

MR ZF T L F+ 2 H 78 B 05
A>3 T 15 B 15 B it 4 B (T 20 M e ] 1)
A T NAE— F — H A
WA E M EE IR RE > &
e 109% 9 TE AN B o A S B R & H R F
Vb S A oL ELAS A i B B R O 1 B
BB R B RS E - R B
BRI A 1028 E5% ®E_-F—L
FHZHA=Zt—HIEFE BHENERE
IR TR AR 2 I B BB 2 B 590 (— %
—NEE 1 5%) °

AZE—LET A =T —H REE
Sl 408 T T e R A D A T B R AR
BEE L4 1) 8 A e R AT R I B R A i (— %
—NAE ) o FAE LR H B LAY
4 ORI A S I TR I p e R
O B ELAE W] T M AR B L o 1
i F AN R 3,032,923,000 6 (ZF—7
M N 1,984,354,000 78 ) K ASEF)
JB SRR - I SR TE AR -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to Detailed Implementation Regulations (“DIR”) for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, a 10% withholding tax is levied on the dividends
declared by the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. If a foreign investor is
incorporated in Hong Kong and meets the conditions or requirements
under the double taxation arrangement entered into between the PRC
and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding tax rate will be reduced to 5%
from 10%. The withholding tax rate levied on the dividends declared by
Hainan Sihuan to Sun Moral was 5% for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 5%).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not recognise any deferred tax
liabilities (2016: Nil) on the earnings anticipated to be remitted by the
PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. No withholding tax has been
provided for the earnings of approximately RMB3,032,923,000 (2016:
RMB1,984,354,000) which are expected to be retained by the PRC
subsidiaries and not to be remitted out of the PRC in the foreseeable
future based on management’s estimated requirement for funding outside

the PRC and the dividend distribution policy of the Group.
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23, Weak ~ AN R oAb 28 23. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Wezs ~ HAbg A R gs A An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:
e
2017 2016

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

W35 Revenue
2T ) Sales of pharmaceutical products (i) 2,743,803 3,170,469
SE6 B BEIRES i as Revenue from general hospital services 2,006 15,230
2,745,809 3,185,699
HAtte A Other income
o B Sales of distribution rights 35,256 51,118
AW (Ff5E7) Rental income (Note 7) 3,803 3,785
FLEWA Interest income 97,475 111,531
136,534 166,434
Hoftu i 5 — A Other gains - net
R A B (i) Government grants (ii) 304,963 374,058
T 2, Wi £ Exchange gain — 79,513
HAth Others 8,954 32,718
313,917 486,289
(i) 4 0B R K P AL & AR > (1) Sales of pharmaceutical products represent the sales value of goods supplied to
MRay Rl - BB - BYEE ) R customers, net of sales tax, value added tax, sales returns and commercial discounts.
E{D
(i) TR 4 B ARG 1 Hh R ICEN B A R (ii) The total government grants represented the subsidies received from the local
ST 4 o A o R A o government and no specific conditions were attached to them.

mMEBEEBEREREREEERA
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24. FAEECE 2 0

24. EXPENSES BY NATURE

“F—tE CEFRE
2017 2016
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F3E A Research and development costs
Eﬁ?{'% H Research expenses 163,932 109,997
0 SIE BR B% AR RS (FfE 5t 0) Amortisation of deferred development costs (Note 9) 69,477 30,865
233,409 140,862
Jor P TR (B 15) Raw materials used (Note 15) 401,607 577,408
B B A B A B L (5T 15) Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress (Note 15) 10,399 61,339
1 B AR I A 2 Employee benefit expenses
L& LEE Wages and salaries 309,967 270,435
fafl Welfares 63,538 46,281
ARy 1o SE R 1 451 3k (B3 26) Share-based payments (Note 26) 1,775 (469)
YIZE - R B ST 8 (M3t 6) Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 6) 167,779 163,176
BOEW AT (M5 7) Depreciation of investment propetties (Note 7) 1,180 1,778
Y & e S (R B IR 4 Amortisation of intangible assets excluding
B B A 5 ) ( |§ﬁn£ 9) the amortisation of deferred development
costs (Note 9) 45,478 80,954
TV 5 WA (W 3T 9) Impairment of intangible assets (Note 9) — 28,510
Bt it 2 Tax surcharges 90,238 54,184
A B Office expenses 43,022 38,197
2 iR B 3 Travelling expenses 28,649 23,130
HEMRBS B 32 Professional services expense 48,258 62,274
P B 3 Transportation expenses 24,600 24,355
IKEMYEE Utilities and property management fee 9,476 9,192
FHE R 52 Rental expenses 8,673 19,685
sl o8 AR B (PR 5E 10) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 10) 13,131 14,244
i ik I BB 52 Advertising and promotional expenses 47,885 14,856
T Auditor’s remuneration 5,500 5,500
EBARLFB L Entertainment expenses 8,131 6,928
WITFHELE Bank charge 561 493
HAs Others 70,519 68,676
B A ~ RS BAS ~ ATIBURA 52 Total cost of sales, distribution costs,
o HoA B = 48 %8 administrative expenses and other expenses 1,633,775 1,711,988

g 8 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.

Annual Report 2017
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25. I B A A B 5 25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(a) HEMWE (a) Directors’ emoluments
BE-Z—-tE+-A=t+—H1 The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December
SRR EEWHI T ¢ 2017 is set out below:
Bk
w3k ERABAL
Pension Performance
g ¥ie Scheme related )
42 Name Fees Salary  Contribution bonuses Total
ANREFLE  AR¥FLE  AR¥TZ  AR¥TLZ ARFFE
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
£ Director
HITES Executive directors:
HETHEAE () Dr. Che Fengsheng (i) — 10,000 17 — 10,017
BHEMBAE () Dr. Guo Weicheng (i) — 6,000 23 — 6,023
= IEE (i) Mr. Meng Xianhui (ii) = 4,000 38 — 4,038
B Mr. Choi Yiau Chong — 1,728 — — 1,728
FRU L Dr. Guo Feng — 1,499 = = 1,499
FHTES Non-executive directots:
TRIFERE (i) Dr. Zhang Jionglong (ii) — - - — —
Balet Mt. Homer Sun — — = = =
B FEPUITHE S+ Independent non-executive
directors:
FE Mr. Patrick Sun 304 — — — 304
51y vte M. Tsang Wah Kwong 304 — — — 304
RS Mr. Zhu Xun 280 — — — 280
888 23,227 78 — 24,193

NEBEZREEER A H

al

2017 & E

off

239



240

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZZLETAST—HIRAEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

25. @ BRI B3 ar)

) BHEHEME )
BE_Z-AFE+_H=1T—HL

25.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December

SRR EEWHI T 2016 is set out below:
Bk
w1 Ak SERARAL
Pension Performance
g ¥ie Scheme related Mt
w4 Name Fees Salary Contribution bonuses Total
AT AREFT  AREFT  ARBFT  ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#H Director
HITES Executive directors:
HEFEAL () Dr. Che Fengsheng (i) — 10,001 4 — 10,005
DA () Dr. Guo Weicheng (i) — 6,024 23 — 6,047
m B EE Gi) Mt. Meng Xianhui (ii) — 4,000 23 — 4023
FafrES Non-executive directors:
SRAMHER £ (i) Dr. Zhang Jionglong (ii) — - — — —
el A Mr. Homer Sun = = = = =
BV HEMATES © Independent non-execurive
directors:
FEFELL Mr. Patrick Sun 299 - - 500 799
EiS e M. Tsang Wah Kwong 299 — — 500 799
Rk Mr. Zhu Xun 280 - - - 280
878 20,025 50 1,000 21,953
() BEFFEARN R —-NES (i)  Dr. Che Fengsheng resigned as the chief executive officer on
B =+ HBHETEAEE > T 20 October 2014 and Dr. Guo Weicheng was appointed as
S A B ETRAT B AN H] the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
RATH A > B — 4 20 October 2014.
TH A HEARL
Gy WMWZZ—tHE+-HANHHE (i)  Mr. Meng Xianhui resigned as the executive director and

EERACHENTESRR
RMFEC BHE AT ES -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Dr. Zhang Jionglong resigned as the non-executive director
on 8 December 2017.
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25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include five (2016: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining two individuals in
2016 are as follows:

=
2017 2016

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Basic salaries, housing allowances,

ARG B F 45 other allowances and benefits in kind — 3,630
AR 4 LB Y A5 K Share-based payments — 189
- 3,819

A T DL 8 1 B e R B
E5 £ VT3 LI ONIPN ¢

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

T as follows:
R ZEZAF
2017 2016
1,500,001 # JE 2 2,000,000 #C  HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000 = 1
2,000,001 #EICE 2,500,000#5C  HKD2,000,001 — HKD2,500,000 = 1
= 2

BE-ZTLHER T AETZ
A=+ — IR AL B %
5 e B A Lt s | A
SN R L IR T S 0 T A
5 R e A L R SO A ]
A B -

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no payments
had been made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid
individuals in respect of inducement to join or compensation for
loss of office, and no directors or the highest paid individuals

waived any of the emoluments.

MEBEZREEER D A
2017 & E

al

off

241



242

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
RE=R— A = — AL
For the year ended 31 December 2017

26. PAIBCAR 2y B i 45k K

(a)

e Bt i 1

2T A G T T 4R A A
A ) A T R (B Plenty Gold
Enterprises Limited ([ Plenty
Gold]) ~ BT U Th & A I 0 4fE &
EER-F-FHE+A-TEHHA
PRA0 — TR A% T3 (108 B B3 58
Ft# St d ) o T — =4
—HZAHH s AREMS—BR
(RFPMSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.)
N2 LR B R 38 By st &) - %5t
PNV S ) &g WAL
ANfE#E/AF > HiPlenty Gold & &
WA CEZERZEN > RIERE
B 5 Wb it 3 1 A TR A o
Plenty Gold ~ HUG T 5848 T #h Ak
BEERELNMER TN EH
B A 36 33,750,000 A 24
J§cA 5 1l MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V. T B K 48 t 841 3,750,000 i
AR TR o P A % S LA i 52 E
NG FIAR SRR B B0 52 Byt ) DL Z
FEANI B FE A o B R 38 st
B RAR 2 SN AR B
A et > WA AR B A A7 4
T BT

747 A AR 7 LA JBCRE ARG 31
W3R HWHE > wHREIER R
AR MBS T B 3 0 1
SR A2 B E BRI E R - A2
R AN AR AR (R BB B2 D 0 %
TRy > BB G iR B A 4%
JEl 0 S 4 A 28 A B R 7 5
e 332 X

AR BB SE Myt &1 - B2 547
FAEBGERER - ATEAR
AR B ELAE (Bt FB R 2
45t 1A A B0 4% D Je 3 Y 39 L 2
]) 48 € 19 % i€ N R B A B A
KNSR E R -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share award schemes

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management
of the Group (the “Employee Share Award Scheme” or the
“Scheme”) has been adopted by certain shareholders of the
Company (namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty
Gold”), Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng) on 25 October
2010. On 25 January 2013, another shareholder of the Company
(namely, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.) also participated in
the Employee Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co (a private trust
company established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly
owned by Plenty Gold) has been appointed as the trustee to hold
the reserved shares under the Employee Share Award Scheme.
Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as
settlors of a trust, have reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000
shares; and MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. has reserved and set
aside an additional 3,750,000 shares, all of which are being held by
the Trustee Co as trustee for the Employee Share Award Scheme.
The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting of existing
shares held by the Trustee Co and no new shares will be issued

pursuant to the Employee Share Award Scheme.

The Company measures the services received from its employees
in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions, with a corresponding increase
recognised in equity as a contribution from the major shareholders.
No new share will be issued by the Company under the Employee
Share Award Scheme and there is no dilution impact to earning per

share calculation as a result of the Employee Share Award Scheme.

Under the Employee Share Award Scheme, awards were granted to
the eligible employees of the Group, which are exercisable into the
specific number shares of the Company, held by the Trustee Co.,
designed in each financial year during the period from the grant

date up to the expiry date of the relevant awards granted.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)

The summary of the share awards granted to certain employees of

the Group is as follows:

g
SEEATHE ORI
wr WA TR)

Exercise =~ Number of

price in awards

HKD per granted

EimEh ] Grant date share award (thousands)
“F——H=H_1H 20 March 2012 3.19 14,150
X -=FNAZHER 27 September 2013 3.19 19,750
N WA I el 21 October 2013 0.7 2,050
35,950

RZF—ANEANAZFAB > &
AT RMERE - B
T234% B B A KRBT HERET
31,448,172 3 B I HE L oy 9 i - 48
B (A (58 2% 55 P 4 B D 157 8%
Jo) AR -

On 28 June 2016, the Group modified the share award schemes.
The remaining 31,448,172 share options, which were granted to
but not yet exercised by 234 employees, were replaced by new

share awards with an exercise price of HKD1.57 per share award.
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26. PAIBA 2y FE R B 4 3k (a0 26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Concinued)
(b) B 5 5 B) (b) Share award movement
DL B IR AR R w3 R 4 0 R AT The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
fif during the year:
(531403
R F1
Fr R T
Average

exercise price

in HKD
per share B (T-47)
award Awards (in thousands)
R CENE
2017 2016
R—H—H At 1 January 3.19 — 32,835
#—H—H At 1 January 0.70 — 4,100
w—H—H At 1 January 1.57 5,403 -
B Rk Forfeited 0.70 = (4,100)
EREL ) Forfeited 3.19 — (1,387)
BB Modified 3.19 — (31,448)
Bk Granted 1.57 — 31,448
EATfE Exercised 1.57 (2,260) (25,895)
2Rk Forfeited 1.57 (239) (150)
wmt+—HA=+—H At 31 December 2,904 5,403

244 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share award movement (Continued)

Share awards outstanding at the end of the year had the following

expiry date and exercise price:

&
e e
frfe i B B AR AT
Exercise TR A SR (T4
price in HKD TRt EE RIS (T-r) Number of outstanding
per share Number of outstanding  vested and exercisable awards
EIRiRp Expiry date award awards granted (thousands) (thousands)
e S
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEZERAZTAH 28 June 2021 1.57 2,904 5,403 - 103
2,904 5,403 - 103

N E—tEFZA=Z+—H
1 2,904,00013 (= F — N 4 :
5,403,000 1% ) 7 A7 {6 4E i o - JE
(ZF—784F £ 103,00017) 42 2
HEAT Al o

RN ) R B B AR 0 52 B
T 48 i B JEC At 4 TRT Wi 45 3%
SR A S N 1,775,000 76 (=
T — N4 AR AR 469,000
J6) R HESS N RERRAH EAE )

Out of the 2,904,000 (2016: 5,403,000) outstanding awards, no
(2016: 103,000) awards were exercisable at 31 December 2017.

During the year, total expense amounting to RMB1,775,000 (2016:
RMB469,000-credited) was charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for share awards

granted to employees with a corresponding change in equity.
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26. DAIBAR 2o BB WA 5k ()

(c)

e A S I ) 2 F- i

ARrIERGUTEFCHEN A
AR A i S T S IR 2
FHSER A H - AN FIEEE
HATE SR I AR R 2R
E G0 R R A B AR R T
B2 WA E A S5 2N
(i A BR RO BEZ AN T

TARZ i F R Wi
g | R

fr 8%

TR i)

() % BRI A (o] s e A2 0
Z A BB - IR
AN A5 H R B
i AT R E
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share awards

The executive directors of the board of the Company have used the
binomial model to determine the fair value of the awards granted,
which is to be expensed over the vesting period. Significant
judgement on parameters, such as risk-free rate, dividend yield
and expected volatility, is required to be made by the executive
directors of the board of the Company in applying the binomial

model, of which the inputs are summarised as below.

S
AHZ+AH
R HiHY

B 173 5
2016

Share awards
granted on
28 June

Closing price at the grant date 1.60 ¥ 7T

HKD1.60
Risk-free rate 0.64%
Dividend yield 2.14%
Expected volatility (i) 41.38%

(1)  The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is determined based on the
average daily trading price volatility of the shares of the

Company.
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27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended 2017 and 2016

is analysed as follows:
e
2017 2016

ARBTE  ARETL
RMB’000  RMB’000

R IA - Current taxation:
AF B i A Provision for the year 326,858 387,721
TR Provision for withholding tax 25,001 154,430
R T 4 %A Total current tax 351,859 542,251
IRAERLIE Deferred tax:
710 26 LY 7 AR R Origination and reversal of temporary differences

(W5t 22) (Note 22) (101,692) (69,519)
I AR JH AR AR Total deferred tax (101,692) (69,519)
PR30 B 52 Income tax expense 250,167 472,732
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27. Wif BB 3 (40
24 45 I 8 3 ) 0 TEL B T )
o 2 B i 035 0 B T
AR @I

27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise from using the statutory tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

“E-tE  FRE
2017 2016
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BRBL Al i 1 Profit before tax 1,729,075 2,152,570
e v B TV E R 25% Tax calculated at the PRC applicable statutory tax
(ZF—R45  25%) IR BIA rate of 25% (2016: 25%) 432,269 538,142
T E B Tax effects of:
— B I SE R MR I B e 4E — Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (1,415) (1,634)
— B H R — Effect of tax concessions and exemption (201,366) (229,038)
— AT B 52 — Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 25,641 27,056
— BB A B CENRE AR — Profits and losses attributable to joint
119 i 1| S i 4 ventures and associates (10,216) (5,406)
— WIEAEBIA — Income not subject to tax (31,443) =
— A R A A0 I 15 — Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset
MBLIHIR R was recognised 11,696 35,712
— 59 TR 24 7 52 (3] v 22 Jg A ) — Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the
T3 E A Y 5 distributable profits of the
Group'’s PRC subsidiaries 25,001 107,900
JIr A5 i B 32 Income tax expense 250,167 472,732

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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BRI F 7 % -

A SR T B e B B W EARSRCR AR
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AR S T 1A 4 T WA 2 W) A B R B A
KAWL ZEMBLAFAR -F
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MR F B BB A v BB Y

ARIH ZETZNF—H—HREEN

i A1 17 41 B A5 0 VR P S AR 109%

M FEHIBL o i 0 B 4% 25 I A v o 1 A

7 L 2 F I B A T 7 1 B B A Bk

1 {6 A2 sl B 2 > BIE BR FE A0 B R K |

10% W ZE 5% °

g SRR A B 42 AU B PO T 11 9 T 5
2R S [ 1 74 AR A 0 1) ¥ A1) £ VR AR
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Bermuda profits tax

The Group is not subject to any taxation in this jurisdiction during the
year (2016: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the year (2016: Nil).

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the companies now
comprising the Group derived from the PRC, adjusted for those items

which are not assessable or deductible for the PRC CIT purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and paid the
corporate income tax in accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law
of the PRC at 25% tax rate.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-tech enterprises.
Accordingly, those subsidiaries” corporate income tax for 2017 and 2016

was provided at the rate of 15%.

PRC withholding tax on retained profits

According to applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends distributed by
a company established in the PRC to a foreign investor with respect to
profits derived after 1 January 2008 are subject to a 10% withholding
tax. If a foreign investor is incorporated in Hong Kong and meets the
conditions or requirements under the double taxation arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding

tax rate will be reduced to 5% from 10%.

* For purpose of cash dividends payment and shares repurchase, the domestic
subsidiaries of the Group distributed dividends amounting to RMB500,000,000
to overseas to meet the special requirement for funding which was out of dividend

plan in year 2016 and paid relevant withholding tax in year 2017.

|
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28. WM

@) HEA

B A B AL A ARG
Vi B DAAF T B 34T 4 AR T

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average

Bt E o number of ordinary shares in issuance during the year.
“BtE  FAE
2017 2016
AN T HEA N A i Profit attributable to owners of the
(ANR¥T0) Company (RMB’ 000) 1,448,935 1,708,239
FIEARIEABF 1T Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
e FBOIMARET- 2 BB B (T ) issue for basic earnings per share (‘000) 9,482,649 10,140,612
BEREARZ R (BN ¥4Y)  Basic earnings per share (RMB cents per share) 15.3 16.8

(b)
WoB—HER - E—AERLA
TEAETBAEHE I A O 3
FEE S 0 0 2 P L o
BRI &AL N AR &
%Eo

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

(b)

Diluted

There was no dilution to earnings per share during 2017 and 2016
because there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares existing
during these years. The diluted earnings per share amounts

equalled to the basic earnings per share amounts.
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DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were RMB1,051,290,000 and
RMBG607,059,000, respectively. A final cash dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 of RMB123,124,000 was recommended by the board
of directors and subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

Dividends approved and paid to owners of the Company during the year:

=
2017 2016
ARBTT  ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Final 2016 dividend of RMB3.8 (2015: RMBA4.5)

TR NERMIBE N3850

cents per ordinary share for the previous year,

(ZF—H4: AR¥455) paid during the year 359,901 463,750
SEINIREE b — 4 B A IR 2 i Final 2016 special cash dividend of RMB5S.5
CRANERPRERIB SRS (2015: Nil) cents per ordinary share for the
ANEHEs.5 3 (ZF—T4F - &) previous year, paid during the year 520,910 —
AR R UR R IR R A Interim dividend of RMB1.8 (2016: RMB1.4)
AR AR 1.8 4 cents per ordinary share, declared and
(ZF—NE ANE#1.45) paid during the year 170,479 143,309
1,051,290 607,059
FEFRNRERZANFIRE Dividends proposed by the Company during the year:
St SRR
2017 2016
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHR M B4 S B Proposed final cash dividend of RMB1.3
TR AR 135 (2016: RMB3.8) cents per ordinary share
(ZF—RHE : ARH3.87) 123,124 360,243
IR B BE (ZF—R4F Proposed special cash dividend (2016: RMBS.5
A i N R 5.5 4) cents per ordinary share) — 521,405
123,124 881,648
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30. WBEENBE 30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
it S e
2017 2016

AR T ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

W iy e 7] Profit before tax 1,729,075 2,152,570
LA I H % Adjustments for:
— W~ JE B s (B e 24) — Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 24) 167,779 163,176
— G (MH5E 24) — Depreciation of investment properties (Note 24) 1,180 1,778
— T EE R (P ek 24) — Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 24) 114,955 111,819
— M A A (BT 24) — Impairment of intangible assets (Note 24) — 28,510
— i A8 () E 24) — Amortisation of land use rights (Note 24) 13,131 14,244
— fi AR A s AR — Share of profit of investments accounted for
JREAL 45 38 1 (B 5E 12) using the equity method (Note 12) (40,865) (21,624)
—HEWE - B R — Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
R, (k) () plant and equipment (i) 87 (312)
— 8RR — R B A Al i — Gain on derecognition of an associate — (3,851)
— K- FERR— SR MY s A M 4 — Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary (125,771) (871)
— DU IBeA 25 FE B 1 A 5 B 2 — Share-based compensation expenses 1,775 (469)
—FLE B — Interest expense — 210
— AR A — Interest income (86,815) (97,676)
BEE SRR SN Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,774,531 2,347,504
EHEERABET Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—HE — Inventories (9,965) 32,348
— & 5 K H A U AR 3K — Trade and other receivables 146,210 49,187
— & 7 I At e A Bk — Trade and other payables 448,467 184,737
RO B P AR I B Cash generated from operating activities 2,359,243 2,613,776
() NEAHERERTD > HEYE - (i) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal
W= R s b ) i A5 JE AL 4 of property, plant and equipment comprise:
e A
2017 2016

ARWHTE  ARETT
RMB’000 ~ RMB’000

MR T V(L (Fff e 6) Net book amount (Note 6) 316 96
WY - BUE K Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property,

Weti,/ (1) plant and equipment (87) 312
HEYE . R Proceeds from disposal of property,

R 15 ?—')( plant and equipment 229 408

252 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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31. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet provided at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:
e e
2017 2016

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Wi - BB KA Property, plant and equipment 148,135 219,791
Y & e — PR R Intangible assets - product development in progress 73,875 50,782
222,010 270,573

AR LR

4 S TR AR R T B BT 5 W
HEETHAENE - HEMRE
REE NP GV E TES
1 A 0 R o A4 =

AR A T S A0 L M Ao 9 AR

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various office premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 5
years and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end

of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

R4 s cancellable operating leases are as follows:
S
2017 2016
ANR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
—4ERLA Within 1 year 1,460 15,379
ZERAF Between 2 and 5 years 654 18,180
TAERL B More than 5 years — 98,508
2,114 132,067
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32. BHADE

(a)

W A A R (e )
RoF—LE=AZ+H > A%
LA R % 1,100,000,000 7C ) £
A 5 8 — 67 % vl R A Y 3F |
T 23 W) 5L F B EE () (9 1009 A%
T > %/ F SR A s K
ST > DA BB BEE SRR - Ll
TSR I B AT AR o A% 4 [ 2 i B
R EE () > JREAEERT
BAFEMAE -~ mI5 0 KT
73 o WSO R AR © SR
pr s E TR TINIEE AT NN
AR GR AN GGl E S

SIS () A AR RS R

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a)

Acquisition of Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)

On 22 March 2017, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
in Ambest Pharmaceutical (China), an unlisted company
based in Mainland China that specialises in the manufacture of
large volume injections, and research, technology transfer and
technology services of pharmaceutical products, at a consideration
of RMB1,100,000,000. The Group has acquired Ambest
Pharmaceutical (China) because it expands the existing product
portfolio, market share and competitiveness. The acquisition has
been accounted for using the acquisition method. The consolidated
financial statements include the results of Ambest Pharmaceutical

(China) for the eight month period from the acquisition date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Ambest

AIEE R EEATES Pharmaceutical (China) as at the date of acquisition were:
AR T T
RMB’000

B Assets

ER S Property, plant and equipment 48,332
T G Intangible assets 733,130
& s iff R Land use rights 61,623
i Inventories 4,662
O ERIN A Trade and other receivables 17,790
B kB &EEY) Cash and cash equivalents 5
865,542

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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32. BB 32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
(a) WoEBARIBLLE (g ) (45) (a) Acquisition of Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) (Continued)
ANRHFIL
RMB’ 000
A Liabilities
TRAL TSR B fE Deferred income tax liabilities (170,959)
B 5 T H A A5 R K Trade and other payables (75,550)
R0 A5 & Current income tax liabilities (739)
(247,248)
e AT I R AR Total identifiable net assets at fair value 618,294
I i A Y Goodwill arising on acquisition 481,706
e i AR Purchase consideration transferred 1,100,000
Wi v B R R A AT Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:
I Y W Y 3 < 1R Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in
(EAEBCEIE B PTG B &) cash flows from investing activities) 5
CAT B4 Cash paid (800,000)
Wi A B 4 i R Net cash flow on acquisition (799,995)
AU HE H I > B 5 K At i BE K At the date of the acquisition, the fair value of the trade and other
A8 B N % 17,790,000 7T © receivables was RMB17,790,000. The gross amount of trade and
& Gy R HAth FE i R 2K 0 R 4 5 other receivables was RMB17,790,000. There was no difference
AR H17,790,000 JC o /8- (B B4 between the fair value and the gross amount. At 31 December
SR MM o i FE— LA 2017, none of the trade and other receivables were impaired.
TZA=1T—H > 5 RHME
HE MR ol 1
MEAEREBEREERAT )55

2017 & E
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32. BBA Pk

(a)

(b)

WO 54 A R (R IR ) (42)

SRR G N A
B ) E A4 O R e A R
76,873,000 7G LA J% B B i 40 F A R
36,116,000 7C > fiff I % i 4F 47
A AR [ Ui aR A% 2 A R
2,762,585,000 JT S 7% 5 [ 341 1Ay i |
1% B N 1,727,764,000 TC ©

EL TR 8 5 T 3L 2
() ) 7 BT 6 B B 4
IO T B 2 A A R T
AR LI - BB
B & AT -

AR 396,000 TG 28 5 WA B 32
B MmN GE A R R AT BB S e
S B A B4 R P A B AR

B~ 5 -

W bk Y = S A R A )
TP A R — M r
i e 7 4 G b T R 5 AR D
(BRZETR o s KM & TSl > DA
BB i B9~ Al e R
T AR5 ) 19 509 REHE > TR =
BB A PR A (TR R )
R RS0% M - R —F—+&
AEf—H o AR S AR R Y
2 I 2 7B AL K E 509 M
1 i 1L RS R R AL R B
ARS500% BEHE o Jut% > A 4 [ DUE
b R 19 B ) 1L 3 R A5 #t
H R0 19 FREHE o 58K b3 2
e g% > AREERA H YR
5196 e HE o i B L 0 R i B 0k A
iR o A B WMEAREEHRINE A
S B SR T 0 D 0T S
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(@

(b)

Acquisition of Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) (Continued)

From the date of acquisition, Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) has
contributed RMB76,873,000 of revenue and RMB36,116,000 to
the net profit before tax of the Group. If the acquisition had taken
place at the beginning of the year, revenue of the Group would
have been RMB2,762,585,000 and the profit of the Group for the
period would have been RMB1,727,764,000.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected
synergy and other benefits from combining the assets and activities
of Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) with those of the Group. The

goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

Transaction costs of RMB396,000 have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and are part of operating cash flows in the

consolidated statement of cash flows.

Acquisition of Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

In 2014, the Group subscribed a 50% equity interest in Jilin
Sichang, an unlisted company based in Mainland China that
specialises in the manufacture of large volume injections,
and research, technology transfer and technology services of
pharmaceutical products, and Shandong Buchang Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Buchang”) subscribed the other 50%
equity interest. In November 2017, the Group acquired 50%
Tonghua Tianshi, the wholly-owned subsidiary of Jilin Sichang,
and Shangdong Buchang subscribed the other 50% equity
interest in Tonghua Tianshi. After that, the Group exchanged
1% equity interest in Tonghua Tianshi for 1% equity interest in
Jilin Sichang with Shandong Buchang. Upon the completion of
all the transactions above, the Group held 51% equity interest in
Jilin Sichang. The acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consolidated financial statements include
the results of Jilin Sichang for the two month period from the

acquisition date.
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

(# (Continued)
AR A e i H 3 A R kA The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jilin
REEATES Sichang as at the date of acquisition were:
AR BT
RMB 000
2923 Assets
Wi - BB KA Property, plant and equipment 116,060
WL Intangible assets 124,228
T Hh ol IR Land use rights 6,400
& Inventories 15,485
5 e HAt R I K Trade and other receivables 107,056
Ak B Available-for-sale assets 100,000
H& KRB E&%EED Cash and cash equivalents 223,881
693,110
AR Liabilities
A PIT 158 B AR Deferred income tax liabilities (29,404)
B 5 B At e A Bk Trade and other payables (156,506)
RIS i 15 £ Current income tax liabilities (1,084)
(186,994)
8 P 5 0 Rk 1 S A Total identifiable net assets at fair value 506,116
IR EIg R Non-controlling interests (247,997)
i A Y Goodwill arising on acquisition 135,261
i i AR Purchase consideration transferred 393,380
LI ) B AL R A3 AT Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:
I R WS B Y B < 13 Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in
(AEREEB I EHERE) cash flows from investing activities) 223,881
e BE Cash paid =
W i A B 4 i YR A Net cash flow on acquisition 223,881

NREEZEZREEBARARL
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32. BBA Pk

(b)

WA 7 b O R B A R )
(#E

i B RS - SRR A A
4 ) B i i g A\ R 60,258,000 7
DA B BRBE i AL A A R ¥ 48,719,000
TG o fi 050 T A AE R BE A > AR AR
1 i 45 5t 25 N R 2,786,503,000
TC I A AR T B A 3 R A 2 N RS
1,750,435,000 JC ©

O fle 8 1 B R D M 55 MR
9 7E % S5 Y B 5 I 0
T S0 305 B e O 7 A O FEUU 17 ) 2k
di S HAR i o BB ALRT B &
AT, o

33. BB A F R

A L R AR
MoE—FAENAZTH - AEE LA
B4 AU E A R # 90,740,000 TG 6] — 4
N7 45 = 7 L B A 1 70,79 JROHE S
AL R PRI HE o A B — N
+—A > AEBLUUE AR 52,662,000
TC [i] JF 2 e R SRS I T TEEA 1Y 24.3.9%
[t o AR SR A 3L 5 A AR E 70.7%
B 95.0% °
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32.

33.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Continued)

From the date of acquisition, Jilin Sichang has contributed
RMB60,258,000 of revenue and RMB48,719,000 to the net profit
before tax of the Group. If the acquisition had taken place at the
beginning of the year, revenue of the Group would have been
RMB2,786,503,000 and the profit of the Group for the period
would have been RMB1,750,435,000.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected
synergy and other benefits from combining the assets and activities
of Jilin Sichang with those of the Group. The goodwill is not

deductible for income tax purposes.

DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of an interest in Beijing Boren

On 30 June 2015, the Group acquired a 70.7% equity interest in Beijing
Boren from an independent third party at a total cash consideration of
RMB90,740,000 and obtained control of Beijing Boren. In November
2016, the Group acquired 24.3% of the shares of Beijing Boren from the
non-controlling shareholders at a consideration of RMB52,662,000. The

Group’s interest in Beijing Boren was increased from 70.7% to 95.0%.
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33. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Disposal of an interest in Beijing Boren (Continued)

During the year, the Group transferred its entire interest in Beijing Boren
to a third party, Beijing Gaobo Hospital Management Co., Ltd., for a
consideration of RMB140,000,000. An analysis of the net gain and cash

WASTHTAT - inflow in respect of the disposal of Beijing Boren is as follows:

ANREF

RMB’000
B Assets
VERY Y& Property, plant and equipment 80,060
[k Goodwill 20,792
& Inventories 2,822
B 5 K H A WU AR K Trade and other receivables 1,671
HEeRBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 354
=Ly Liabilities
-+ Borrowings (73,613)
B 5 B Fopth REAF AR AR Trade and other payables (18,203)
TP et A Non-controlling interest 346
AL HERR I T Net assets derecognised 14,229
B A R AU Consideration for disposal of Beijing Boren 140,000
b mERR AL R R U AR Gain on derecognition of Beijing Boren 125,771
BB S A SRR T Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of
Beijing Boren:

B LA E Cash consideration received 140,000
O E LS LB EY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (354)
L 1Y B 4 O A Net cash flow on disposal 139,646

mMEBEEBEREREREEERA
2017 F E #
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34. W RS

ARSE M H Plency Gold (FE3EJE R Wt 5t
{57 ) #2E W R 53,389 F 00 JE U7
Ao AR A T (Y d A% M P O B
H oo

WL i 7 % G I BEL et 7 RO B AR A0 R

34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Plenty Gold (incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands). The remaining 53.38% of the shares are widely held. The
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group is Dr. Che Fengsheng.

Name of and relationship with related parties are as follows:

i

Name

Network Victory Limited ([ Network Victory )
Network Victory Limited (“Network Victory”)

7 BRI IR 7

Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd.

Jem R EL R AT

Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
BICREREARAF

Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
b 1L 78 T R A R A R

Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd.

b S A A PRI A PR R

Shanghai Lide Biotech Co., Ltd.

Medifood International SA
Medifood International SA

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Wil 1%
Relationship

o B 08 P A

Controlled by Dr. Che Fengsheng

AL AN A

Associate of the Group

AL R

Associate of the Group

AL B E A

Associate of the Group

A B
Associate of the Group
A 1 B )
Associate of the Group

AN B AR

Associate of the Group
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34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Year-end balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

“F-tE —“TAF
2017 2016
AT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
I Wi e ) i R M Purchase of R&D service from an associate
— RS A AR PR T — Shanghai Lide Biotech Co., Ltd. 154 —
2R B m AL A Interest Income from associates
—dem g — Beijing Ruiye 1,102 240
— L KE — Tonghua Tianshi 3,423 —
4,744 240
JE Wi s ) kA (5t 14 & 16) Amounts due from associates (Notes 14 and 16)
—BIERE () — Tonghua Tianshi (i) 77,942 —
— LR ] (i) — Pharmadax (Foshan) (i) 120,000 —
— 38 G) — Beijing Ruiye (i) 30,000 13,500
— Medifood International SA (i) — Medifood International SA (i) 17 —
227,959 13,500
JRE S EC At R 7 0 (M3 16) Amount due from other related party (Note 16)
—BIEFREE G) — Dr. Che Fengsheng (i) 9,675 9,673
JRE AF JEC At R 7 0 (WA 3 21) Amount due to other related party (Note 21)
—Plenty Gold — PlentyGold 83 83

() MEd S BRMG  R i O R ARORZR

(1) The amounts due from/to related parties and associates are

repayable on demand.

MEBEZREEER D A
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34. BTS2 5 (AH)
BB -

JE 1 B AR A
LABCAR 75 FE B £+ 3K

34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of key management compensation during the year are as follows:

“F b CF A

2017 2016
ARMTE  ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Short term employee benefits 30,727 29,515
Share-based payments 307 660

A B N B AR

Total compensation paid to key

management personnel 31,034 30,175

BEZF-LFEFTZA=Zt+—HILF
JE > A 4 B Sy S AT A ] R T b T AR
SIISECT A e R D B A A A I B
R G BAFHER L 5 (ER A LT -

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not conducted
any connected transaction ot continuing connected transaction (as defined
under the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review

requirements under the Listing Rules.
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35. &R HAR 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY
N HAR > SRR 4 R T E A BR T The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
SEEINR ¢ at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
—E—tHEt+—_H=+—H 31 December 2017
SRVEE Financial assets
H B B
SRE B
iEv 98 Available-
JRE Wk T for-sale
Loans and financial A5k
receivables assets Total

ARWTFE  ARWTE  ARBETT
RMB’000 ~ RMB’000  RMB 000

Tk Y G B Available-for-sale financial assets — 3,006,430 3,006,430
B 5 Jo FoAth E Wik I Trade and other receivables

(LG TEAT 0 excluding prepayments 854,547 — 854,547
B BB % B Cash and cash equivalents 831,859 — 831,859

1,686,406 3,006,430 4,692,836

o =L Financial liabilities

ek g

JRA T
HAtv b £ 65
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARWTF
RMB’000

L 5 o FoAth A FRIE O L35 2 R B AR Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,210,553

al
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35. ZMTHRAE(4H) 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (Continued)
HREIIR > S8 4 T H i IR 4 The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
BT () at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued)
—E-ANET+-H=1+—H 31 December 2016
GEEE Financial assets

]t H

S E

Bk Available-

JRE Wk JH for-sale
Loans and financial At
receivables assets Total

ARBFL  ARWTT AR¥FL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ATk G R Available-for-sale financial assets — 1,729,964 1,729,964
B 5 Jo Fopth R Wi IR Trade and other receivables

(REHEFEA ) excluding prepayments 704,852 — 704,852
& R &5 EY) Cash and cash equivalents 2,407,073 — 2,407,073

3,111,925 1,729,964 4,841,889

SRAE Financial liabilities

el o

AT S
oAb il £1 6%
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ANRHT T
RMB 000

{45 Borrowings 8,280
B 5 I FoAth e A5 R IE R 456 JF B A 1) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 533,675

541,955

264 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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38.

Tl 1 B P A ) 2 R

R_F—tFE—-H—H
Al A O )
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

{55

Borrowings

ARHTT

RMB’000

At 1 January 2017 8,280

Changes from financing cash flows (3,500)

Decrease arising from disposal of a subsidiary (4,780)

moEF—tF+-H=+—H

At 31 December 2017 —

ok IO 45 R A e

AR SN R R EZ Al B
A A% A FOK A o

Po g Y

BT SRR BEBRAAR — B KL HOR
AT TEH M -

37.

38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD END

The Group has no significant events after the reporting period up to the

date of this report.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the

current year's presentation.

mEBEBREEREEER A A
2017 F E ® &
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39. AA W BHR UL 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
AN T BRI FE Statement of Financial Position of the Company

=
2017 2016
ARMTE  ARMT
RMB’000 RMB 000

B ASSETS

FEI I A NON-CURRENT ASSETS

YIZE - R Bttt Property, plant and equipment 3 3

i) A OEs S <y Investments in subsidiaries 208,617 208,617

208,620 208,620

B CURRENT ASSETS

B 5 F A B K Trade and other receivables 472 472

JRE e o o ) D Amounts due from subsidiaries 5,348,880 6,375,045

B KB EEEY Cash and cash equivalents 30,078 363,610
5,379,430 6,739,127

B TOTAL ASSETS 5,588,050 6,947,747

266 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
ARNT B BIRDLFE (45) Statement of Financial Position of the Company (Continued)
“ER—biE ZFERE
2017 2016
AR¥ETFIL  ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EQUITY
A Share capital 78,233 79,443
JEEAT B Treasury shares — (255)
Je 73 i A Share premium 4,093,317 4,344,229
BATH () Capital reserve (i) 22,608 22,608
TREB & () Retain earnings (i) 1,350,956 2,428,849
HRELS TOTAL EQUITY 5,545,114 6,874,874
& LIABILITIES
B A CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 T Fopth REAF AR K Trade and other payables 42,936 72,873
A TOTAL LIABILITIES 42,936 72,873
R % £ AR AR TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,588,050 6,947,747

NEBREZREEERA
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39. AR BN IR (4) 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
() ANEREEBENE (i) A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows:
EAGE PR &L A
Capital Retained
reserve earnings

AREFE  ARETT
RMB’'000  RMB’000

REF—RFE—H—H At 1 January 2016 22,608 257,627
A5 Y Profit for the year — 2,778,281
e (Bt 5 29) Dividends (Note 29) = (607,059)

WoE—NE+_H=+—H At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

k=% —tH—H—H 22,608 2,428,849
AEJE R Loss for the year — (26,603)
B (HF5E 29) Dividends (Note 29) —  (1,051,290)
WoFE—LFEF_H=1—H At 31 December 2017 22,608 1,350,956
40. UM B@RFE 40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WoE— NE=ZH - FAH > BFEHRE The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
M B e S PR o board of directors on 26 March 2018.

268 Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
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